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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Sino-i Technology
Limited (the “"Company”), | present to the shareholders the annual report
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018. In 2018, the Company continued to
focus on its corporate digital intelligence operation and cloud services
business through its key subsidiaries, namely & {8 R BRE D
A (CE Dongli Technology Company Limited) (“CE Dongli”) and 1t =743
= B H T A R 2 7 (Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information Company
Limited) (“Xinnet”). In 2018, the Group continued to accelerate its
internet transformation process. The cloud computing service of Xinnet
and the portal business of CE Dongli experienced a stable development,
which contributed as a significant driver for the increase in users.

In the past decade, the Group remained confident about providing cloud
computing infrastructure services, cloud application, corporate
e-commerce services and industry solutions, “corporate digital
transformation” total solutions and big data-based business intelligence
cloud services for enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). Thanks to its unremitting efforts, the Group has successfully
established an outstanding national business and localization services
network in the industry, so as to address “the last kilometer” problems
between service providers and corporate clients by continuously
enhancing its capability to provide localization service. In the meantime,
in respect of product development, the Group has successfully launched
a series of leading cloud services for corporate digitalization and smart
operation as well as industry solutions in the industry after long term
exploration and promotion.

New technologies such as big data and cloud computing have gradually
become mature and entered the stage of commercialization. Amid this
backdrop, it is imperative to carry out the digital transformation for
micro, small and medium-sized enterprises and traditional enterprises.
The coming 10 years will be a golden decade for corporate internet
application, while continuing to evolve towards business intelligence
based on big data. To grasp this historic opportunity, the Group is
dedicated to establish an internet application industry ecosystem for
enterprises in the PRC by leveraging on its advantages established over
the years, such as substantial resources, core competencies and
extensive operating experience in the enterprise market, thereby
becoming a driver of industrial transformation and upgrading with
information technology and Al technology in the PRC.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The Group’s management believes that enterprises in the PRC will
continue to increase its investment in the transformation of corporate
digitalization and smart operation in the future. Although it still needs
some time for market ramp-up and promotion, cloud services for
corporate digitalization and smart operation as well as industry solutions
will enjoy diversified market opportunity. The Group continues to focus
on the development of cloud services for corporate digitalization and
smart operation through its key subsidiaries, namely CE Dongli and
Xinnet.

With 19 years’ experience in providing services for enterprises in the
PRC, CE Dongli has not only formulated a corporate “Internet+" product
system at operational level, but also established an extensive network of
business and localization services, providing effective one-stop solutions
of corporate smart operation for small and medium-sized enterprises.

Xinnet continues to provide cloud services such as laaS, domain name
registration, cloud computing and synergistic communication, and
actively develops various cloud application and value-added services for
small, medium and micro enterprises through online network and agent
channels established across the PRC.

Finally, I would like to express my gratitude to the shareholders’ concern

for and support to the Company, and also to the Board and all staff for
their dedication and contribution.

Liu Rong
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
EEENWED N
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

By virtue of the comprehensive cloud computing infrastructure services,
e-commerce and “Internet+” total solutions offered to corporate clients
in the PRC, the Group remained confident about the development of
digitalization and smart operation. Leveraging on its unremitting efforts,
the Group has successfully established an outstanding nation-wide
business and localized service network in the industry, so as to
effectively address “the last kilometer” problems from service providers
to corporate clients. In the meantime, in respect of product
development, after prolonged exploration and promotion, the Group
successfully launched a series of leading cloud services corporate
digitalization and transformation in the industry. CE Dongli's all-net
portal business and Xinnet's cloud computing services have also
commenced stably, which played a significant role in promoting the
growth of the number of users.

During the year, with key subsidiaries CE Dongli and Xinnet as the
Group's main business entities, more efforts were continuously made in
the development of cloud services for corporate digitalization and smart
operation by providing comprehensive laaS (Infrastructure as a Service),
cloud application, corporate e-commerce services, “corporate
digitalization transformation” total solutions and big data-based business
intelligence cloud service to the PRC market. During the year, revenue of
the Group was approximately HK$1,012.5 million (2017: HK$833.2
million), representing an increase of 21.52% over the corresponding
period of last year. Profit for the year was approximately HK$375.8
million (2017: HK$10.0 million). The increase was mainly due to the gain
arising from the completion of disposal of 92.36% equity interests of X
BEAEEEIERH AR AR (Digital HUIGU Real Estate Management
Co., Ltd.) by the Group during the year (please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 25 April 2018).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN

CE Dongli

With 19 years’ experience of being a service provider for enterprises in
China, CE Dongli has not only established a corporate “Internet+"
product operating system but also built an extensive business and
localized service network, providing one-stop solutions regarding a
corporate smart operation for small and medium enterprises (SMESs).
During the year, CE Dongli, on the basis of all-net portal services,
continued to launch portal products for different industries and
enterprises via its cloud platform, so as to meet the specific needs of
different customers. While constantly improving its core business, CE
Dongli is also committed to keep seeking breakthroughs in all key
aspects of digital marketing, integrate its resources into key aspects
such as transactions and customer management as well as launch new
products in e-commerce and new retail business segment and foreign
trade customer management segment. CE Dongli not only constantly
improved its product system, but also continuously strengthened its
management of direct branches across China and further enhanced its
localized service capacity through the establishment of customer care
divisions in various branches across China. In particular, the
enhancement in service capacity of the “the last kilometer”, which is
crucial to enterprises, would make such services closer to user needs. In
addition to providing digitalization and operation solutions for SMEs, CE
Dongli is also constantly exploring new market opportunities. During the
year, CE Dongli launched a high-end customized brand CE Ultimate (/1
& & £), which is committed to providing high-end customers with a
continuous “MarTech” digitalization and smart operation flagship
service, continuously establishing digital marketing technology service
capabilities, with a view to creating brand-new business value. Since its
inception, CE Ultimate has provided a full range of digital operation for
more than twenty Fortune Global 500 companies and approximately 100
top companies in various industries in China. In the meantime, in the
process of meeting the complex digital needs of high-end customers, CE
Dongli has continued to build its product and service capabilities,
perform sampling and integration, and rely on the support of the middle
structure of business (% # A &), gradually forming specific products
and industry solutions for different industries and meeting the needs of
customers at different stages. CE Dongli has also insisted to enhance
the enterprise digital value and provide all customer groups with a full
range of products and services of enterprise digital management
suitable for their industry and their own development stage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Xinnet

During the year, Xinnet continued its cloud services such as laaS
(Infrastructure as a Service), domain name hosting and synergistic
communication for SMESs and micro-enterprises through internet online
and distributor channels established across China. In 2018, relying on its
core product “Arrow Cloud (&5 28 )" and resources in the cloud data
centre, Xinnet launched various solutions such as Public Cloud (R B E),
Proprietary Cloud (2% & ) and Hybrid Cloud (& & =) to meet the
growing business needs of users. The “Arrow Cloud” is also the first
product to support IPVé (Internet Protocol Version 6) with Trusted Cloud
Qualification Certification (7] {5 & & & i %) and Computer Level 3
Protection Record (3T & # = A % 4 R # & %), thereby enhancing
product quality as well as improving and promoting the industry
reputation and market brand awareness. In the meantime, Xinnet
continued to improve the cloud business and operation platform,
optimized customer experience and operational efficiency and ensured
the effective implementation of strategies in the cloud computing
business.

PROSPECTS

The management of the Group considers that enterprises in China will
continue to increase its investment in digitalization and transformation,
and business intelligence services based on big data will be developed.
Although it still takes time for market ramp-up and promotion, cloud
services for corporate digitalization and smart operation and industrial
solutions will enjoy the enormous room for development. Going forward,
the Group will continue to improve its ground services capability by
putting users as its core, relying on the industry and making full use of
the Internet, which allows it to quickly respond to the needs of
enterprises and provide timely solutions to issues. Meanwhile, the Group
will enhance its overall operational capability and online services
capability. In respect of product application, with an in-depth
understanding of the industry’s business scenarios, the Group will
quickly respond to the needs of business scenarios in different industries
based on the cloud product model and the middle structure of business
(% % ® £&). Furthermore, the Group will also increase its capital
investment in the data centre, cloud computing technology, automatic
operation and maintenance technology as well as big data technology,
and enhance its overall technical core competence to further develop
and optimize its products and services for the enterprise’s digital
intelligent business scenario.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group continued to adopt prudent funding and treasury policies. As
at 31 December 2018, net assets attributable to the owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$1,539.1 million (31 December
2017 approximately HK$1,806.0 million), including cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$170.4 million (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$304.9 million) which were mainly denominated in
Renminbi, US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group had no bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$163.4 million, of which approximately HK$19.3 million was bearing
interest at fixed rates while approximately HK$144.1 million was at
floating rates). The Group has not taken any interest rate hedge during
the year under review.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's gearing ratio, which is calculated
as net debt divided by the total equity plus net debt, was not applicable
(31 December 2017: not applicable). The Group recorded net cash and
cash equivalents as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
gearing ratio is therefore not applicable.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no capital commitment (31
December 2017: approximately HK$57.2 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's contingent liabilities were
approximately HK$20.4 million in connection with the guarantees given
to secure credit facilities (31 December 2017: approximately HK$19.5
million).

As at 31 December 2018, no assets were pledged to secure the credit
facilities granted to the Group (31 December 2017: certain interests in
leasehold land and buildings pledged amounting to approximately
HK$595.5 million).

Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
notes 28 and 30 to the financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES

The majority of the Group’s borrowings and business dealings were
primarily denominated in Renminbi. Both the operating expenses and
revenue were primarily denominated in Renminbi. The Renminbi
exchange rate is expected to fluctuate due to uncertainties in global
economic development. The Group’s reported assets, liabilities and
results may be affected by the Renminbi exchange rates. During the year
under review, fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rates affected the assets
and liabilities translation from Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars in financial
reporting of the Group, and the Group will keep on monitoring the
fluctuation in exchange rates between Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group proactively seeks control measures to minimize the impact
arising from risks and uncertainties as far as practicable, and considers
using foreign exchange hedging instruments (if appropriate) from time to
time, to minimize the risk exposure arising from changes in Renminbi
exchange rates. During the year under review, the Group did not use any
foreign exchange hedging instruments.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company employs and remunerates its employees based on their
qualifications, experience and performance. In addition to basic salary
payments, other benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory
provident fund, group medical insurance, group personal accident
insurance and, examination leave etc. Employees are eligible to be
granted share options or restricted shares (as the case may be) under
the Company’s share option scheme or restricted share award scheme
at the discretion of the Board. In general, salary review is conducted
annually. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 6,403
employees (31 December 2017: approximately 6,888 employees). The
salaries of and allowances for the employees for the year ended 31
December 2018 were approximately HK$816.3 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2017: approximately HK$668.5 million). The Group
focuses on providing skill and quality training for various levels of staff,
and provides on-the-job capability training to its staff; in respect of staff
quality, corresponding training on personal work attitude and work
habits is also provided.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHS

The Board herein present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries of the Company were principally engaged in enterprise
cloud services during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Particulars of the Group's revenue and segment information for the year
are set out in notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may
be facing is provided in the Risk Management and Internal Control
section on pages 65 to 71 of this annual report, and a fair review of the
Group's business during the year, and the probable future business
development of each segment of the Company are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 6 to 13 of this
annual report. Also, the financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Group can be found in note 50 to the financial statements.
There is no important events affecting the Group occurred since the end
of the financial year ended 31 December 2018. An analysis of the
Group's performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Five-Year Financial Summary section on
page 264 of this annual report. In addition, discussions on the Group's
environmental policies, relationships with its consumers and employees
and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Group are all contained in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 72 to 96 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 104.

The directors of the Company have resolved not to recommend the
declaration of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018
(for the year ended 31 December 2017: nil).
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 264.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31 December 2018 are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the financial
Statements respectively.

BANK BORROWINGS

The Group's bank borrowings as at 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

During the year, details of the movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements and on page 110, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the amount of Company’s reserves available
for distribution was approximately HK$939.6 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s sales to the five largest customers for the year ended 31
December 2018 accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total
revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers was 30.71% with the
largest supplier accounted for 13.57%.

None of the directors of the Company, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the number of issued share of the Company) had any interests in
these major suppliers.
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DONATIONS

Charity donation for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to approximately HK$12,000.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 42 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the directors of the Company has an
interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of retirement benefit plans in respect of the year are set out in
note 41 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Ms. Liu Rong (Chairlady)

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi

Mr. Chen Ming Fei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Bing Kwan*

Prof. Jiang Ping*

Mr. Fung Wing Lap*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

# Non-executive director
* Independent non-executive directors

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group's subsidiaries can be
found in the Company’s website at www.sino-i.com under “Investor
Information/Corporate Governance”.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
existing independent non-executive directors confirming his
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
Company considers that such directors are independent to the
Company.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Articles 117 and 118 of the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”), Ms. Liu Rong, Mr. Chen Ming Fei, Mr. Lam
Bing Kwan and Prof. Jiang Ping shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM"). All of the above
retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors and senior management of the
Company as at the date of this report were as follows:

Biographical Details of Directors
Executive Directors

Ms. Liu Rong, aged 47, graduated from the Law School of Anhui
University with a Bachelor degree in Laws, and got a Master of Laws
conferred by the Law Institute of Chinese Academy of Social Science,
and is also a qualified lawyer in the PRC. In addition, Ms. Liu graduated
from the International MBA School of National School of Development of
Peking University in 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Liu worked in
Chinese government departments and law firms.

Ms. Liu joined the Group in April 2002 and has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company since March 2009. Ms. Liu has been
appointed as the chairlady of the Board and the chairlady of nomination
committee of the Company since January 2018. Ms. Liu is also a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Liu has been the executive director, executive committee member
and nomination committee member of Nan Hai Corporation Limited
(“Nan Hai"), the listed holding company of the Company, and has been
appointed as the chief executive officer of Nan Hai since February 2018.
Ms. Liu is also a director and/or general manager of a number of
subsidiaries of Nan Hai. She is responsible for the culture and media
services business of Nan Hai.

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi, aged 60, holding a degree of Doctor of Philosophy
conferred by Peking University, was a director of the Company from
October 1991 to October 1994, and re-joined the Board in January 1997.
Mr. Yu is currently the executive director and nomination committee
member of the Company. He served as the chairman of the Board and
the chairman of nomination committee of the Company from January
1997 to January 2018 and from March 2012 to January 2018,
respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yu is also the chairman of the board of directors, controlling
shareholder, and the chairman of executive committee and nomination
committee of Nan Hai and a director of a number of subsidiaries of Nan
Hai.

Mr. Chen Ming Fei, aged 42, has more than 10 years' sales ,and
possesses with acute insight in IT business, and has extensive and
professional experiences in product creation, business strategy planning
and business management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked
in Vorwerk of Co. KG, a German company.

In 2000, Mr. Chen joined CE Dongli and was appointed as a national
commercial director, sales deputy general manager, executive deputy
general manager and business general manager, In January 2012, Mr.
Chen was promoted to a general manager, responsible for management
of CE Dongli. Mr. Chen is also the general manager of Xinnet, responsible
for operation management of Xinnet. In December 2016, Mr. Chen has
been appointed as the executive director and the general manager of
the Company. In January 2018, Mr. Chen has been appointed as the
chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Chen is also a member of executive committee of Nan Hai, and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and Nan Hai.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan, aged 69, graduated from the University of Oregon
in the United States of America with a Bachelor degree in Business
Administration in 1974. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lam had
accumulated extensive experience in industries such as banking,
property development and investment business.

Mr. Lam joined the Board in October 1991, and was re-designated as a
non-executive director in April 2002. Mr. Lam is also a non-executive
director of Nan Hai, and an independent non-executive director of Lai
Sun Development Company Limited, Lai Sun Garment (International)
Limited and Lai Fung Holdings Limited. The securities of the above-
mentioned companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. Jiang Ping, aged 88, graduated from Moscow University with a
Bachelor degree in Laws in 1956. Prof. Jiang is the lifetime professor of
China University of Political Science and Law, conducting lectures for
doctoral degree class in civil and commercial laws. Prof. Jiang is also the
honorary president of China Comparative Law Research Centre, the
chairman of Beijing Arbitration Commission, and the honorary arbitrator
in China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission.

In June 2006, Prof. Jiang joined the Board and has been appointed as a
member of audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. In March 2012, Prof. Jiang has been appointed as a member
of nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Fung Wing Lap, aged 58, graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1992. Mr. Fung is a fellow member of
Association of International Accountants, an associate member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a certified public
accountant (practising). Mr. Fung is an executive director of FCC and
Partners CPA Limited.

Mr. Fung joined the Board in September 2004 and has been appointed
as a member of audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. In March 2012, Mr. Fung has been appointed as a member of
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Fung is also appointed as
the chairman of audit committee of the Company in September 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning, aged 71, graduated from Yunnan Finance and
Management College, majoring in enterprise management; senior
economist recognised by Bank of Communications. Mr. Xiao is the
independent director of Beijing SPC Environment Protection Tech Co.,
Ltd., and the independent non-executive director of Haitong Securities
Co., Ltd.

Mr. Xiao joined the Board in April 2016, and has been the chairman of
the remuneration committee, the member of the audit committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Xiao is also the
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee, the member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of Nan Hai.

Biographical Details of Senior Management

Mr. Chen Ming Fei (aged 42)

General Manager

P8 RGO BRAF

(CE Dongli Technology Company Limited)

General Manager
R A EERMAER AR

(Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information Company Limited)

Chief Executive Officer and General Manager
Sino-i Technology Limited

Biographical details of Mr. Chen are set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors” on page 18.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

The Company

Long position in shares in issue
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Approximate

Capacity/Nature Number of percentage
Name of Director of interest shares held holding Notes
BREQ
R B RmE FriERaE A Bat et
Yu Pun Hoi (“Mr. Yu") Corporate interest 12,838,585,316 (L) 59.11% 1
TmE(FEED NEIER
Chen Ming Fei Family interest 6,120,000 (L) 0.03%
PR IS 7 ERIEY T
Corporate interest 199,100,000 (L) 0.91% 2
N
Other 1,566,000,000 (L) 7.21% 3
Hit
Fung Wing Lap Personal interest 10,000 (L) 0.00005%
it hva B AR
Notes: Hiat -

1.

Mr. Yu by means of his corporate interest controls the exercise of more than
one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Nan Hai, the holding
company of the Company. These 12,838,585,316 shares were collectively held
by Goalrise Investments Limited, View Power Investments Limited and Wise
Advance Investments Limited, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Nan
Hai. As such, Mr. Yu was taken to be interested in these shares for the purposes
of Part XV of the SFO.

These 199,100,000 shares were held by Top Standard Consultants Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Chen Ming Fei.

These 1,566,000,000 shares may be transferred to Mr. Chen Ming Fei as
selected participant (which will be subject to the vesting conditions) pursuant to
the restricted share award scheme adopted by the Company on 9 October
2018.

(L) denotes long position.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Associated Corporations

As disclosed above, Mr. Yu is entitled to control the exercise of more
than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Nan Hai. As
such, Mr. Yu is taken to be interested in the shares of the associated
corporations of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
Nan Hai is a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange,
and is an associated corporation of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO. As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the
directors of the Company in shares and underlying shares of Nan Hai
were as follows:

Nan Hai

Long and short positions in shares in issue

EERROREEROZEZREAXRE
()
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Approximate

Capacity/Nature Number of percentage
Name of Director of interest shares held holding Notes
EEHE B RatE FrisRm &R Aot Mtz
Mr. Yu Corporate interest 40,673,177,261 (L) 59.25% 1
FhaE NEER 9,734,516,130 (S) 14.18% 2
Chen Ming Fei Family interest 2,800,000 (L) 0.004%
FERAS 7H ERIY o
Fung Wing Lap Personal interest 15,756 (L) 0.00002%
ISER ST B A=
Notes: Bt -

1. These 40,673,177,261 shares were collectively held by Rosewood Assets Ltd.,
Pippen Limited, Staverley Assets Limited, First Best Assets Limited and Unicorn
Assets Group Limited, companies indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through
Dadi Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu.

2. These 9,734,516,130 shares were charged by Pippen Limited, a company
indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company
wholly owned by Mr. Yu.

3. (L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the directors
nor chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

22 WWW.sino-i.com

1. Z 40,673,177 261 IR 5 Bl T e B @ A
2EEBHNRARRMIERERAARFAEDN
Rosewood Assets Ltd. ~ Pippen Limited - Staverley
Assets Limited - First Best Assets Limited &
Unicorn Assets Group Limited il & 2454 o

2. #%%9,734516,130 RN B FREBBEEEHE
BHMRARAMIZERBERAGBEE2EERSDN
Pippen Limited #£# o

3 LEFA - MOEAR -

Br EXXRT#EEE SN - M2018F 124318 » &
ARREEREBITRABBMEREA QRS ET
IR EE (F& RES R E KR EXVED)
25 - BEROSESFTEEALERRE
BENMEEEHEIRIGTFE 2B LM o 8
DRE EH R BIM R 10T H MIZESF B A E
ARG AR B KRR Z S EAR o



—E\EEFR | FEBBESERAT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 May 2012 (the “Adoption Day”), the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, share options may
be granted to directors, employees of the Group and those who have
contributed or will contribute to the Group at any time within ten years
after its adoption at the discretion of the Board.

Since the adoption of the Scheme and during the year ended 31
December 2018, no share options have been granted under the Scheme
by the Company. No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed by the Company under the Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2018 and there were no outstanding share options under the
Scheme as at 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report. A
summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
participants for their contribution or would-be contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interests (the “Invested Entity”).

(2) Participants

The participants include:

a. any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive director but not any non-executive
director) of the Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested
Entity;

b. any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

c.  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity;

d.  any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(2)

(3)

(4)

24

Participants (Continued)

e.  any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity;,

f. any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

g any ex-employee who has contributed or may contribute to
the development and growth of the Group and any Invested
Entity.

Maximum Number of Shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all share options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the relevant class of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme and
the limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30%
of the relevant class of shares of the Company in issue from time
to time. No share options may be granted under the Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company if this will result in such limit
exceeded. The number of shares available for issue in respect
thereof is 1,991,450,487 shares representing approximately 10% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue on Adoption
Day.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted to each participant under the Scheme
and any other schemes (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1 per cent of the
relevant class of shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant
of share options above this limit shall be subject to certain
requirements as stipulated in the rules of the Scheme and to the
relevant rules under the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

9)

the Period within Which the Shares Must be Taken
Up under a Share Option

The period within which the shares must be taken up a share
option shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
at the time of grant, but such period must not exceed 10 years
from the date of grant of the relevant share option.

Minimum Period for Exercising a Share Option

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance and Payment on Acceptance

The share option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate letter duly signed by the grantee, together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company.
To the extent that the offer is not accepted within 28 days in the
manner aforesaid, it will be deemed to have been irrevocable
declined and lapsed automatically.

Basis of Determining the Exercise Price

The exercise price for shares under the Scheme shall be a price
determined by the directors of the Company, but it must be at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; and (i) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Remaining Life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 29 May 2012 up to 28 May 2022.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A.

26

Restricted Share Award Scheme

On 9 October 2018, to recognise the contributions made by the
Group's employees, the Company adopted a restricted share
award scheme (“Restricted Share Award Scheme”), and the
Restricted Share Award Scheme supersedes in its entirety the
share award scheme (“Share Award Scheme”) adopted by the
Company on 8 February 2018 (Details of Share Award Scheme are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8 February 2018.
No share award was granted by the Company under the Share
Award Scheme). The Restricted Share Award Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten (10) years commencing on the
adoption date. The Restricted Share Award Scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme of the Company.

Pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme, the Board shall
select eligible participants for participation in the Restricted Share
Award Scheme and grant not more than a total of 2,462 million
restricted shares to selected participants. The restricted shares to
be granted may comprise of (i) new shares to be issued by the
Company to the selected participants; or (ii) existing shares
purchased by the custodian on the market, the costs of which will
be borne by the Company, and such restricted shares will be held
by the custodian for the benefit of the selected participants before
vesting. The restricted shares and the related distribution shall be
transferred to the selected participants when the relevant vesting
conditions have been satisfied.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has granted a total of 1,806
million restricted shares to selected participants under the
Restricted Share Award Scheme by way of issue and allotment of
new Shares, and such grant was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the general meeting on 19
December 2018. These restricted shares are held by the custodian
on behalf of the selected participants. As at 31 December 2018, no
restricted shares were vested under the Restricted Share Award
Scheme.

Other Employee Benefits

In December 2017, CE Dongli, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, implemented a scheme to incentivise
the senior management of CE Dongli. This scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme of CE Dongli. For
further details, please refer to note 29 to the financial statements
of the Company.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than the statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and senior management’s liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its directors and senior management arising from corporate
activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of
the directors as required by section 470 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”) when the Report of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies
Ordinance.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which any controlling shareholder had a material interest
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2018.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance has
been entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2018, and no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries has been entered into
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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CHANGE IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

There was no change in the Board since the date of the Company’s 2018
interim report and up to the date of this report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning, an independent non-executive director of the
Company, resigned as an independent director of Zhongrun Resources
Investment Corporation (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 000506) in mid-2018.

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan, a non-executive director of the Company, retired as
an independent non-executive director of eFORCE Holdings Limited
(listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 943) in mid-2018.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company remunerates its employees based on their qualifications,
experience and performance. In addition to basic salary payments, other
benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory provident fund,
group medical insurance, group personal accident insurance and
examination leave and etc. Employees are eligible to be granted share
options or restricted shares (as the case may be) under the Company’s
share option scheme or restricted share award scheme at the discretion
of the Board. In general, salary review is conducted annually.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors
of the Company and the directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 27(a), 27(b) and 48 to the financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements, or contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
companies or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the financial year or at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2018, those persons (other than directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were
as follows:
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Approximate
Name of person percentage of
holding an interest Number of issued share
in shares which has shares in issue capital of the
been disclosed to the  HERBEFFRPEHEH subject to Company
Company under EXVHE2R3IAPEME  Nature long position L N
Divisions 2 and 3 of ERAREERDERZ of interest FRSRZ BRITRAZ Notes
Part XV of the SFO AT ER BERENE ERITROEE BAES {iE
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Webers Trust Management  Webers Trust Management Custodian (other than 1,806,000,000 (L) 8.31% 2

(Hong Kong) Limited (Hong Kong) Limited an exempt custodian
interest)
AEANERRTEA
kBRI

Notes:

1. Those 12,838,585,316 shares were collectively held by Goalrise Investments
Limited, View Power Investments Limited and Wise Advance Investments
Limited, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Nan Hai.

2. Such shares represent the restricted shares granted to selected participants
pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme to be held by the custodian for
the benefit of the selected participants before vesting.

3. (L) denotes long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person (other than
directors and chief executive of the Company) had notified to the
Company any interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares
of the Company which was required to be recorded in the register kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 48
to the financial statements.

Save for the transactions mentioned in the below section headed
“Connected Transactions” and the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transaction” which are subject to the disclosure and annual
review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are
subject to all connected transaction requirements when any of the
relevant agreement is renewed or its terms are varied pursuant to Rule
14A.60 of the Listing Rules, certain transactions mentioned under the
note also constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company had complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
relation to these connected translations.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) Loan Agreement

On 29 May 2009, the Company as lender and Nan Hai, the
immediate holding company and connected person of the
Company, as borrower entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) in relation to the loan in the principal amount of
approximately HK$1,645.5 million advanced by the Company to
Nan Hai (the “Loan”). The Loan was advanced for the settlement of
the consideration payable to the Company pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement entered into between the Company and
Nan Hai on 13 November 2007, in relation to the sale of 51% issued
share capital of Listar Properties Limited by the Company to Nan
Hai. The Loan Agreement was later supplemented by the first
supplemental agreement, the second supplemental agreement,
the third supplemental agreement, the fourth supplemental
agreement and the fifth supplemental agreement dated 20 May
2011, 31 October 2012, 9 May 2013, 30 April 2015 and 2 May 2017
respectively, which among other things extended the repayment
date for the outstanding principal and varied certain terms and
provisions of the Loan Agreement.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Loan Agreement (Continued)

On 21 March 2019, the Company as lender entered into a
supplemental agreement with Nan Hai as borrower in relation to
the extension of the repayment date for the outstanding principal
for two years from 30 June 2019 to 29 June 2021, which is
conditional upon (1) Nan Hai having settled in full the outstanding
interest accrued on the outstanding principal on or before 29 June
2019; and (2) the independent Shareholders having approved the
supplemental agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules.
As at the date of this report, such conditions have not been
fulfilled. As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding principal and
the accrued interests are approximately HK$1,005,858,000 and
HK$121,254,000 respectively which are being secured by the share
mortgage (by way of first fixed charge) dated 7 December 2012
executed by Nan Hai in respect of the 100% issued share capital of
Nan Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan
Hai. The Loan is subject to an interest rate of 8.0% per annum
accrued daily during the extension period based on a 365-day year
and shall be paid in arrears when the outstanding principal shall be
repaid or prepaid. The default interest rate is 10.0% per annum on
the default amount accrued daily based on a 365-day year.

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 16 March 2018, the Group conditionally agreed to dispose of
92.36% equity interest in Digital HUIGU Real Estate Management
Co., Ltd ("Digital Huigu") to a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan Hai
at consideration of approximately HK$520,600,000. The disposal
was completed on 21 June 2018.

On 21 June 2018, the Company as lender and Digital Huigu, the
subsidiary of Nan Hai and a connected person of the Company, as
borrower, entered into a loan agreement (the “2018 Loan
Agreement”) in relation to the loan in the principal amount of
approximately HK$342,506,000 owed and payable to the Company
and its subsidiaries by the Digital Huigu. Such amount owed
became a term loan repayable within three years from the date of
the 2018 Loan Agreement (the “2018 Loan”).

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding principal and the
accrued interests are approximately HK$342,506,000 and
HK$14,489,000 respectively. The share mortgage provided in
respect of the Loan Agreement over the entire issued share capital
of Nan Hai Development Limited have been expanded to cover the
obligations under the 2018 Loan Agreement. The 2018 Loan is
subject to an interest rate of 8% per annum accrued daily based
on a 365-day year and shall be paid in arrears when the
outstanding principal (or the relevant part thereof) shall be repaid/
prepaid. The default interest rate is 10% per annum on the default
amount accrued daily based on a 365-day year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

connected restricted shares

On 19 December 2018, the Company’s independent shareholders
resolved to approve the granting of 1,566 million restricted shares
to Mr. Chen Ming Fei, an executive director of the Company, and
60 million restricted shares each to Ms. Wang Hao and Ms. Wei Yu
Na, both directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company, in
connection with the Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted by
the Company on 9 October 2018 (the “Connected Restricted
Shares Grant”). The Connected Restricted Shares Grant is a
incentive plan to motivate the parties involved to commit in the
long-term to the Group’s development.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) Property Leasing Framework Agreement

32

0]

Nan Hai Property Leasing Framework Agreement

On 1 August 2016, Digital Huigu, a then subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Nan Hai Property Leasing
Framework Agreement with Nan Hai, pursuant to which,
Digital Huigu agreed to lease certain properties to Nan Hai
and its subsidiaries (excluding the Group) (“Nan Hai Group”)
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2018, subject to the entering into of
separate leasing agreement pursuant to the Nan Hai
Property Leasing Framework Agreement. As Nan Hai is the
immediate holding company of the Company, Nan Hai is a
connected person of the Company.

The following table sets out the proposed annual caps of the
transaction amount in respect of the leasing of properties to
Nan Hai Group by Digital Huigu under the Nan Hai Property
Leasing Framework Agreement:

BEXS (#)
(C) EAEMRBIMERL

2018412 H19H » AR F &% &
FORALETE AR R 20184 10 A 9 H IR
W R MR ) SREN AT B R AR R BT
EEMRIERIL AR H 15.66 18 R5% PR Hil 145 A%
B YEARAETHBERARZES T
Z = REFREM L F IR 0.60 B R
MEREAD ([ B BR SRR D)) o &
BRI AR (D B — B AR RT &) - LA
FLMERANEE  REER o

KERERS
(@) MEEEERGE

@

B XA EERGE

R2016F8A1H  RRARERZ
BRI BSEAEM SR L ME
WEEEER DR - B BIEE
ARRAEZEMEERENBAR(TE
BAEE) ((mE&E ) BHEET
W B2016F1H1H#EZE2018
FI2ANBIEABH=F EEAFF
RIEmE YR EELE R LE
FEERZE -  BEREEALRARZ
BEZERAR  WEESBEAARZ
AT ©

TR EEBBEAREREY
XHEEERBZAEEEELEY
RZRHERIESRFELR

For the year ending 31 December

BILE12A31MBLEZFE

(HK$'000)
(F#x)
2018 2017 2016
Total consideration BRE 16,000 16,000 5,800

On 16 March 2018, the Group conditionally agreed to dispose
of 92.36% equity interest in Digital Huigu to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Nan Hai and the disposal was completed on 21
June 2018, as a result, the proposed annual caps is no longer
applicable.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(@) Property Leasing Framework Agreement (Continued)

(i)

GD Cinema Circuit Property Leasing Framework
Agreement

On 1 August 2016, Digital Huigu also entered into the GD
Cinema Circuit Property Leasing Framework Agreement with
B R K E b &K% A R 2 7(GD Cinema Circuit
Company Limited*) (“GD Cinema Circuit”), pursuant to which,
Digital Huigu agreed to lease certain properties to GD Cinema
Circuit, its shareholders, and its subsidiaries (“GD Cinema
Circuit Group”) for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2018, subject to the entering
into of separate leasing agreement pursuant to the GD
Cinema Circuit Property Leasing Framework Agreement. As
at the date of the GD Cinema Circuit Property Leasing
Framework Agreement, Ms. Liu Rong, a director of both the
Company and Nan Hai, owns 80% of At B (b EHE (4t
) ABRA A (Dadi Century Culture Media (Beijing) Company
Limited*) (“Dadi Century Beijing"), which directly owns 85%
equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit, and has an effective
control of 15% equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit through
bR AR EFIRE A B % (Beijing Dadi Legend Investment
Partnership*), which is an associate of Ms. Liu. In addition,
Mr. Yu Cheung Hoi, an associate of Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (a director
of the Company), owns 20% of Dadi Century Beijing. Given
the foregoing, GD Cinema Circuit is a connected person of
the Company.

The following table sets out the proposed annual caps of the
transaction amount in respect of the leasing of properties to
GD Cinema Circuit Group by Digital Huigu under the GD
Cinema Circuit Property Leasing Framework Agreement:

ESEEHS

BFERERS @)
(a) WEBEEERHZEE)

(i)

Ko 4R ¥ AR EE LR =

R2016F8 A1H » BIEE AR
BRAMEZEERMDERA A
([RBTAR |) 5T S AP i B 5 70
EERDE - Bt BEEARE
MR AR EIREMEMB AT
([Rifrip @ ]) HBH T -
B2016F1A1H #£ 22018412
A3NBIEAE=% " EEFIRE
Aty =R EER G L@
B ERH - PRI ERE
EXRBHEH ARRINEEZE
FR B EFH AR S EE
(db5) AR A A KR
1) 1)80% HEss M A B (AER)
HEH B KRR 85% LA - INiE
WP+ BB AT RIS
HRE G B EF BT KT AR
15%ARAE LA - RRREZESE T m
BEEZBEBEBALTTEELESS
KB (AL ) 20% #E2s - ED
SR - KRB 4R B AR A B 2 B
At e

TRENEEBB2ARBEAR M
RMERERERGE R A AR
HOEZR 5B ZREEFEL
BR -

For the year ending 31 December

BIE12A31ALZEE

(HK$'000)
(F#%m)
2018 2017 2016
Total consideration wRE 2,000 2,000 1,200

On 16 March 2018, the Group conditionally agreed to dispose
of 92.36% equity interest in Digital Huigu to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Nan Hai and the disposal was completed on 21
June 2018, as a result, the proposed annual caps is no longer
applicable.

R2018F3 A16H » KEE H 1%
HREAMEE2ENBRATHE
HEEA 72366 HE HESE
TR 20184F 6 A 21 H5EAK » AL -
BEFELRTAER -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Property Leasing and Management Framework
Agreement

On 21 June 2018, the Company entered into the Property Leasing
and Management Framework Agreement with Nan Hai, pursuant
to which, Nan Hai Group agreed to lease certain properties and
provide property management services to the Group from 21 June
2018 to 31 December 2020. As Nan Hai is the immediate holding
company of the Company, Nan Hai is a connected person of the
Company.

The following table sets out the proposed annual caps of the
transaction amount in respect of the lease and management of
properties provided to the Group by Nan Hai Group under the
Property Leasing and Management Framework Agreement:

BFERERS @)
(b) MEXBEEREEERGZ

R2018F 6 A21H » NARIEFEFE] 7
MEMERETEERGS B =8
EERBN 201846 21 BE 20204 12
A3TBRAAEEKAE TWELERY
XEERS - mNmEAARRIZEE
PR AT MEEBA AR ZBEAL -

TR EHEAEEEREVEHEER
EEERBZAASRELEREEDE
IR TR EFRFE LR -

For the

period from

21 June 2018 to

31 December 2018

For the year ending
31 December
BL12A31BZEE

20186 H21BE
2018%12H31H

34

(HK$'000) 1EHA
(F#m) (HK$'000)
2020 2019 (F#%7t)
Total rental and HehEEEEEE
management fees 11,500 10,500 5,000
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Information Service Framework Agreement

)

Nan Hai Information Service Framework Agreement

On 10 January 2017, Xinnet entered into the Nan Hai
Information Service Framework Agreement with Nan Hai,
pursuant to which, Xinnet agreed to provide certain
information products and service to Nan Hai Group for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019, subject to the entering into of individual
information service agreements pursuant to the Nan Hai
Information Service Framework Agreement. As Nan Hai is
the immediate holding company of the Company, Nan Hai is
a connected person of the Company.

On 30 August 2017, Xinnet and Nan Hai entered into the
supplemental agreement (“Nan Hai Supplemental
Agreement”) to the Nan Hai Information Service Framework
Agreement, pursuant to which the parties agreed to increase
the annual caps for each of the two years ending 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2019 for the continuing
connected transactions under the Nan Hai Information
Service Framework Agreement (the “Revised Nan Hai Annual
Caps”). Save for the Revised Nan Hai Annual Caps, other
terms of the Nan Hai Information Service Framework
Agreement (including the annual cap for the year ending 31
December 2017) remain unchanged.

ESEEHS

BFERERS @)
(c) EEREERG=E

0

RS B RISIELR 1 3

R2017% 18108 @ ¥ & /05
AVEEEERBERGE &
I EREREESREREET
EEREEMERS - B2017F1AH1
HEZE2019F 1283181t A8 =
F B FREREEBRFIESR
RIS A RS BRRTS ek - AR
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BEBAARZEEAL -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

36

Information Service Framework Agreement (Continued)

)

Nan Hai Information Service Framework Agreement
(Continued)

The following table sets out the Revised Nan Hai Annual
Caps:

BFERERS @)
EEREELRT = (&)

(c)

0

RS B IRISAE LR 15 5 ()

TREINLETHEFE LR

For the year ending 31 December
HIE12A31MBLEZEE

(HK$’000)
(F#&x)
2019 2018 2017
Total Consideration BRE 6,600 6,000 4,000

On 30 May 2018, the Company entered into the Information
Service Framework Agreement with Nan Hai, pursuant to
which, the Company and/or its subsidiaries agreed to
provide certain information products and services to Nan Hai
Group from 1 June 2018 to 31 December 2019, subject to the
entering into of individual information service agreements
pursuant to the Information Service Framework Agreement.
The Information Service Framework Agreement will replace
and supersede in its entirety the Nan Hai Information Service
Framework Agreement entered into between Xinnet and
Nan Hai on 10 January 2017 and the Nan Hai Supplemental
Agreement entered into between Xinnet and Nan Hai dated
30 August 2017. As Nan Hai is the immediate holding
company of the Company, Nan Hai is a connected person of
the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BFEBREXRS &)
(c) Information Service Framework Agreement (Continued) (¢) =2 REIERHE (&)

(i) Nan Hai Information Service Framework Agreement () FEBEERBERBRE
(Continued)
The following table sets out the proposed annual caps of the TREVNBERRAR R REWE

NEREBESRBERBEREE

transaction amount in respect of the information products = .
SERHEEEERMRBIRSE

and services provided to Nan Hai Group by the Company - N

) . . . B BEEFE LR
and/or its subsidiaries under the Information Service
Framework Agreement:

For the
seven months

For the year ending from 1 June 2018 to
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
20186 A1HZE

B 1L 2019 F 20185128318

12B31HILLEE IEE{EA

(HK$’000) (HK$'000)

(F#&x) (F#Ex)

Total consideration BRE 29,000 22,000
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

38

Information Service Framework Agreement (Continued)

(i)

GD Cinema Circuit Information Service Framework
Agreement

On 10 January 2017, Xinnet also entered into the GD Cinema
Circuit Information Service Framework Agreement with GD
Cinema Circuit, pursuant to which, Xinnet agreed to provide
certain information products and service to GD Cinema
Circuit Group for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019, subject to the entering
into of individual information service agreements pursuant to
the GD Cinema Circuit Information Service Framework
Agreement. As at the date of the GD Cinema Circuit
Information Service Framework Agreement, Ms. Liu Rong, a
director of both the Company and Nan Hai, owns 80% of
Dadi Century Beijing, which directly owns 85% equity interest
of GD Cinema Circuit, and has an effective control of 15%
equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit through 4k 5 K {8 &
B A2 Beijing Dadi Legend Investment Partnership*),
which is an associate of Ms. Liu. In addition, Mr. Yu Cheung
Hoi, an associate of Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (a director of the
company), owns 20% of Dadi Century Beijing. Given the
foregoing, GD Cinema Circuit is a connected person of the
Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BFEBREXRS &)
(c) Information Service Framework Agreement (Continued) (¢) =2 REIERHE (&)

(i)

GD Cinema Circuit Information Service Framework (i) KRiuprigs BRIEIERGE (&)
Agreement (Continued)

On 30 August 2017, Xinnet and GD Cinema Circuit entered MR2017F8 A30H + #4382 K i
into the supplemental agreement to the GD Cinema Circuit Br4Ra] 3 K BT 4R 12 B AR TS EBE 1%
Information Service Framework Agreement, pursuant to R B ST ARE
which the parties agreed to increase the annual caps for the e A4S B RS IELR %18
continuing connected transactions under the GD Cinema THERESSHZFE LR ([&1E
Circuit Information Service Framework Agreement (the STAMITAREE FR ) o BRIEET
“Revised GD Cinema Circuit Annual Caps”). Save for the AT R FE RN - KRBT ARIE
Revised GD Cinema Circuit Annual Caps, other terms of the EREEREEMERERT
GD Cinema Circuit Information Service Framework %o

Agreement remain unchanged.

The following table sets out the Revised GD Cinema Circuit TREVKIET A M EEE
Annual Caps: R :

For the year ending 31 December
BILE12A31MBLEZFE

(HK$'000)
(F®x)
2019 2018 2017
Total Consideration wRE 3,700 3,100 2,100
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

All the independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above connected transactions and confirmed those
continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(20 onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as awhole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged its auditors to report on the continuing connected transactions
as mentioned above, and the auditor has issued to the Board a letter
confirming that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that any such continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board,;

(20  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

(3)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(4)  exceed the proposed annual caps as determined by the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.
PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best knowledge of
the directors, the Company has maintained during the year and up to
the date of this report sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 51 to 71.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
all the independent non-executive directors of the Company, namely Mr.
Fung Wing Lap, Prof. Jiang Ping and Mr. Xiao Sui Ning. The Audit
Ccommittee has reviewed with the auditor of the Company and
management, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018, and discussed the auditing, financial
control, internal control and risk management systems.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were
audited by BDO Limited (“BDO"). A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.

STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS

Reference is made to the joint announcements of the Company and Nan
Hai, dated 15 November 2013, 6 December 2013 and 31 July 2015
(collectively, the “Announcements”) in relation to a discloseable
transaction under which Xinnet Technology Information Company
Limited ("XWHT"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
by means of the Structured Agreements, shall be entitled to control over
Xinnet's management, businesses and operations in substance in
addition to recognize and receive all economic benefits of the business
of Xinnet. All capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the Announcements unless otherwise
stated in this annual report.

The Board hereby provides updated information in relation to the
business operations of Xinnet through the Structured Agreements and
the implications thereof as follows:
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

42

Particulars and principal activities of Xinnet:

Xinnet is a limited liability company established in the PRC and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ZQHT. Mr. Jiang is a PRC citizen, and
an ultimate beneficial owner of 100% equity interest of ZQHT.
Xinnet's main businesses are provision of virtual server hosting
and maintenance services, provision of email services and
registration of domain names in the PRC, which are all regarded as
a kind of internet content services. Xinnet has obtained a valid
licence for providing internet content services, issued by 3t =i
=& 12/ (Beijing Communications Administration).

Summary of main terms of the Structured Agreement:
(1) Loan Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

(i) Parties: XWHT as lender; and Mr. Jiang as borrower

(i) Loan amount: RMB1,500,000

(i)  The loan is interest free, and has no maturity date for
repayment. Mr. Jiang shall have no right to effect any
early repayment unless having the written consent
from XWHT.

(2)  Equity Pledge Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

(i) Parties: XWHT as pledgee; ZQHT as pledgor; and Xinnet

(i) Assets pledged: 80% equity interest of Xinnet, free
from encumbrance, as first fixed charge to XWHT as
security.

(i)~ ZQHT shall not dispose of the pledged 80% equity

interest to any other party without obtaining the
written approval of XWHT.

WWW.Sino-i.com

EEHE @

(a)

(b)

FRHBEREERE
HMBARTBEKZZBRAR - BPE
ERZEEWMBRAR - BELERTER
B BHREERI00%KRIE L ZEEmHE
BA-HBEcERXHARTEERE
BRERBFFEREERY  RHUHETH
AR K I B e T ARTS o PRB SR
BESEBMEEERBZ & - HEC
BBt mREEERE LRT T KA
=R Z B RUEIR -

REBBRTERRBE

() ExwaE(BH A2013411 815
H):

() FIR77 : HWEBRERET
KR EERtET

(i)  ExkEE : ARH1,500,0007T

My

(i) ER/R BRI EDHER
RIFRFTEEREER
VAR A EBIER

Bl et 1D
o S
»

T
o]]si

2 BEDGHHE(HEAE2013411 A
158) :

() FI#7: FEERERERE
A RRERE[SHEAN:
&

(i HEWEE: UE-BEML
A B EERERHEL
HEEERYE 2 80% MHE -

(i) BRFFEFPEEREMAE -
BRI 1 2 B S 1S A )
HAlh A+ &2 E#HZ80%
Pt -



T \FEFR | FEBEELAERAT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Summary of main terms of the Structured
Agreement: (Continued)

©)

Management and Technology Services Agreement (dated 15
November 2013):

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Parties: XWHT; and Xinnet

XWHT shall provide certain exclusive management and
technology services to Xinnet.

The Management and Technology Services Agreement
is solely terminable by XWHT but not Xinnet. In return
for the provision of the exclusive services, XWHT shall
be entitled to receive a service fee which is equivalent
to the net profit of Xinnet as per its yearly audited
financial statements.

Option Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

0]

(if)

Parties: XWHT as grantee; ZQHT as grantor; and Xinnet

ZQHT shall grant an exclusive option to XWHT at an
option price of RMB1.00 to acquire up to 100% equity
interest in the registered capital of Xinnet (no limit on
the number of times the option may be exercised by
XWHT). The total subscription price for 100% equity
interest of Xinnet shall be equivalent to the total loan
amount (being RMB1,500,000) under the Loan
Agreement, and the subscription price for each option
exercised shall be paid by direct set off on a dollar-for-
dollar basis against the outstanding loan amount under
the Loan Agreement.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)
(b) Summary of main terms of the Structured

(c)

44

Agreement: (Continued)
(5)  Power of Attorney (dated 15 November 2013):

(i) Parties: ZQHT; and XWHT

(i) Itis an irrevocable power of attorney under which
XWHT shall be the sole attorney of ZQHT. XWHT shall
have full power, without having to obtain ZQHT's any
further consent or approval, to exercise such rights in
Xinnet as (a) all shareholder’s rights and voting rights in
accordance with the corporate memorandum of
Xinnet; and (b) rights of nomination and appointment
of legal representative, chairman of the board,
directors, general manager and other senior
management personnel of Xinnet.

The Loan Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement, the
Management and Technology Services Agreement, the
Option Agreement and the Power of Attorney shall be
executed simultaneously with each other.

the significance of business activities of Xinnet to
the Group:

By means of the Structured Agreements, the Group may engage in
the business of virtual server hosting and maintenance in the PRC
and such business may widen the spectrum of services of the
Group. The widened services are expected to lead the Group to
having not only a stronger foothold against its competitors in the
PRC but also an achievement of efficiency and cost-effectiveness
in provision of virtual server hosting and maintenance services to
the customers of the Group.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)
(d) the financial impact of the Structured Agreements

(e)

on the Group:

XWHT is the parent company of Xinnet as XWHT has the right to
control Xinnet by virtual of the Structured Agreements. As a result,
the financial position and operating results of Xinnet and its
subsidiary shall be consolidated in the XWHT's financial statements
from the date on which XWHT gained control in Xinnet in
accordance with the HKFRS.

During the year, Xinnet's revenue was approximately
HK$136,542,000 (2017: approximately HK$117,937,000); loss before
income tax was approximately HK$26,744,000 (2017:
approximately HK$44,516,000); and total assets were
approximately HK$145,515,000 (2017: approximately
HK$144,339,000).

The loss for the year was mainly because revenue arising from
cloud business did not meet expectations.

the extent to which the Structured Agreements
relate to requirement of applicable laws, rules and
regulations other than the foreign ownership
restriction:

In view of the PRC legal opinion, (i) the Structured Agreements
have complied with the laws, rules and regulations in the PRC, and
complied with the respective articles of association of XWHT, ZQHT
and Xinnet; (ii) there is no law, rule or regulation specifically
disallows foreign investors from using any structured agreement
to gain control of or operate the business of Xinnet; and (iii) the
Structured Agreements would not be deemed as concealing illegal
intentions with a lawful form and void under the PRC contract law.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

46

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and
the risks associated therewith including actions
taken to mitigate such risks:

Xinnet's main businesses are classified as value-added
telecommunication services which is a kind of business restricted
to foreign investors in the PRC. By virtue of N\ EEE X B
#2 %€ (Provisions on the Administration of Foreign Investment
Telecommunication Enterprises), foreign investors are not allowed
to hold more than 50% in the equity interest of a PRC enterprise
providing value-added telecommunication services.

The main businesses of Xinnet are considered as value-added
businesses which widen the spectrum of services of the Group for
its customers and in turn enhance the Group’s competitiveness in
the PRC market. As the Group faces the aforesaid restriction in
equity interest of a PRC company, the Structured Agreements shall
be regarded as a strategic arrangement by which the Group may
fully and effectively control Xinnet, which in turn enables the
Group to achieve the aforesaid purposes. In addition, the
Structured Agreements offer flexibility to the Group in control of
Xinnet — (a) control of its management, businesses and
operations; and (b) owning of its 100% equity interest by exercising
the call option under the Option Agreement when the restriction in
having more than 50% equity interest of a PRC enterprise by
foreign investors is removed or repealed.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(f

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and
the risks associated therewith including actions
taken to mitigate such risks: (Continued)

In addition to the foreign ownership restriction under the prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, the Structured Agreements do not
violate any PRC laws, rules and regulations, and the execution of
the Structured Agreements by the parties thereto does not violate
any article in the articles of association of the contracting parties;
and such prevailing provision and notice issued by the PRC
authorities as (\FM 1R B EE R EE R E) (Provisions on the
Administration of Foreign Investment Telecommunication
Enterprises) (amended in 2008) and € 4h B #& & E ¥ 15 8 B &%)
(Catalogue for Guidance of Foreign Investment Industries)
(amended in 2015) issued by the State Council of the PRC, under
which foreign investor shall not have more than 50% in a
corporation providing value-added telecommunication services,
and (i) CEAR Maa SN IR B S SR E BB X B E IE RV A) (Notice
of Strengthened Administration of Foreign Investment in and
Operation of Value-Added Telecommunication Business) issued by
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC in
July 2006 under which a local PRC company holding an internet
content provider licence shall not lease, transfer or sell the licence
to foreign investors in any form, or provide any assistance to
foreign investors to provide internet content services in the PRC,
but such provision and notice are not governing or restricting the
control of a PRC company through structured agreements.

Given the foregoing, the Structured Agreements shall be regarded
as valid documents binding all parties thereto as at the date of this
report. However, if any new applicable law or regulation were
enacted in the future in the PRC, the validity and enforceability of
the Structured Agreements might have been affected, and as a
result, the structured agreements of controlling Xinnet would have
been disruptive which in turn would have affected the business of
the Group.
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(f)

48

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and
the risks associated therewith including actions
taken to mitigate such risks: (Continued)

The Ministry of Commerce of the PRC has issued certain
consultation paper (E&R#KE £17) in respect of a bill namely <+
# AR KEFMBEINE R E L) (Foreign Investment Law of the PRC)
(the “Bill") in January 2015, which is to be enacted into an act or
statute. As per sections 15 and 18 thereof, foreign investment
means foreign investors directly or indirectly conduct certain
investment activities, e.g. through structured agreements or trust
arrangement to control a PRC company or holding equity interest
of a PRC company. Any foreign investment in any business under
the catalogue of restricted investment shall apply for an access
permit from foreign investment authority under the State Council
of the PRC as per section 27 thereof. There is no indication in the
Bill that contracts under the structured agreements would be void.

Application for an access permit cited in the Bill could be viewed
as a kind of administrative procedure rather than a prohibitive
threshold, therefore, failure in obtaining the permit by fulfilling
certain administrative procedures would not be very high. As Mr.
Jiang is not a connected person of the Group, the risk of direct
conflict of interest with the Group will be very low. It is unlikely for
Mr. Jiang setting up another entity conducting business having a
direct competition with Xinnet's, otherwise, Mr. Jiang would not
execute and procure the execution of the Structured Agreements
by which Mr. Jiang has given up the businesses of Xinnet. As at the
date of this report, the Group is not aware that Mr. Jiang has
carried out or is involved in any business having a direct
competition with the businesses of the Group. If Mr. Jiang or ZQHT
breaches any obligations or undertakings under any Structured
Agreements, the operations of Xinnet would not be affected as the
position of the Group in controlling Xinnet has been fully secured
by (a) full control of the board of directors of Xinnet; and (b)
obtaining a charge of 100% equity interest in Xinnet (as per the
provision of the Loan Agreement, the pledgor has further charged
the remaining 20% equity interest in Xinnet as first fixed charge in
favour of the pledgee in October 2014).
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Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and
the risks associated therewith including actions
taken to mitigate such risks: (Continued)

Since the Bill has yet been enacted into an act or statute, the
sections or provisions thereof might be further modified and
amended after the consultation period, it is uncertain whether
there will be any additional conditions imposed on foreign
investors.

(hEE A R HEFBINEIZE L) (Foreign Investment Law of the PRC)
was promulgated on 15 March 2019 and will be implemented on 1
January 2020. The Foreign Investment Law does not clearly
stipulate the legality or effectiveness of foreign-invested
enterprises in adopting structured agreements to control domestic
companies in the PRC, nor does it require explicit requirements on
the specific form of the structured agreements or the specific
content of the structured agreements legal documentation. Thus,
after the Foreign Investment Law come into force, its provisions
shall not affect the effectiveness of the structured agreements
legal documentation. However, there are still uncertainties in the
interpretation and application of the PRC laws and regulations on
the effectiveness of the structured agreements, and the
interpretation of the relevant authorities may be different from the
above. Therefore, we cannot assure that the above structured
agreement will not be adversely affected.

The Structured Agreements might be subject to scrutiny of the tax
authorities in the PRC, and additional tax might be imposed, but
the Group does not expect that such tax risk is high and will lead
to any substantial financial impact on the Group.
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(8

(h)

Material change in the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been supplemented or modified
since the date of execution of all such Structured Agreements.

Unwinding of the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been unwound since the date of
execution all such Structured Agreements. None of the Structured
Agreement is to be unwound until and unless the restriction on
ownership by foreign investors is removed or not in force. In the
event of such restriction in foreign investment is removed or not in
force, XHWT will exercise its option under the Option Agreement
to acquire the entire equity interest in Xinnet. Upon completion of
formal acquisition of the entire equity interest in Xinnet, the
Structured Agreements will then be unwound.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Rong
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company is committed to maintain high corporate governance
standard and unambiguous procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance its
shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2018,
except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1. Explanations for
such non-compliance are provided below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTION
The Company has adopted the Model Code.

Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
than the Model Code (the "Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be or in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of seven directors
including three executive directors, one non-executive director and
three independent non-executive directors (the “INEDs"). The directors
are, collectively and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders. The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages
17 to 20 under the heading “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management”. During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this report, the Board consisted of the following:

Executive Directors

Ms. Liu Rong (Chairlady)
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi
Mr. Chen Ming Fei (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fung Wing Lap
Prof. Jiang Ping
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and monitoring its affairs. All directors
should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the abovementioned senior management of the Company.

The Board has the full support of its board committees and the senior
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Board members do not
have any financial, business and family or other material/relevant
relationship with each other. During the year, the Board held 14
meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

CG Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (the "CEQ") should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Since 2 January 2018, the Company has rectified the previous deviation
concerning CG Code Provision A.2.1 by the appointment of Mr. Chen
Ming Fei as the CEO and Ms. Liu Rong as chairlady of the Board with
effect from 2 January 2018. Prior to 2 January 2018, the role of CEO was
also performed by Mr. Yu Pun Hoi, the then chairman of the Company.
The Board believed that vesting the roles of both chairman and CEQO in
the same person provided the Company with strong and consistent
leadership, and allowed for effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies. By appointing Mr.
Chen Ming Fei as the CEO and Ms. Liu Rong as chairlady of the Board
with effect from 2 January 2018, the Company has complied with the
requirements under CG Code Provision A.2.1 since 2 January 2018.

During the year, the chairman held meetings with each of the non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors of the
Company and obtained independent opinions relating to affairs of the
Board and the Company without the presence of other executive
Directors.

Non-executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulated that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of its non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) for a
term of two years with effect from the signing date of service contracts.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, during the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Company has appointed three INEDs of
whom Mr. Fung Wing Lap is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

Notwithstanding that Prof. Jiang Ping and Mr. Fung Wing Lap have served
as an independent non-executive director of the Company for more than
nine years, (i) the Board has assessed and reviewed the annual
confirmation of independence based on the requirement set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and affirmed that Prof. Jiang Ping and Mr. Fung
Wing Lap remain independent; (ii) the Nomination Committee of the
Company has assessed and is satisfied of the independence of Prof.
Jiang Ping and Mr. Fung Wing Lap; and (iii) the Board considers that Prof.
Jiang Ping and Mr. Fung Wing Lap remain independent of management
and free of any relationship which could materially interfere with the
exercise of his independent judgement. Notwithstanding the length of
their service, the Company believes that their valuable knowledge and
experience in the Group's business will continue to benefit the Company
and the shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Training

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate in
a programme of continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should be
responsible for arranging and funding training, placing an appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the directors.

From time to time, directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the purpose of assisting
them in discharging their duties. The Company had received from each
of the directors the confirmations on taking continuous professional
training during the year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely, Audit
committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the Audit Committee consisted of all the INEDs as follows:

Mr. Fung Wing Lap (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Prof. Jiang Ping
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity
and credibility of financial reports and internal control procedures as
well as to maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor
of the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings, in particular, to
review with management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2018, and discussed the auditing, financial
control, internal control and risk management systems.

Remuneration Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consisted of all the
INEDs as follows:

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Fung Wing Lap
Prof. Jiang Ping
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model described
in paragraph B.1.2(c) under the CG Code (i.e. making recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration package of individual executive director
and senior management member). The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the establishing of formal and transparent procedures
for developing remuneration policies and the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration on salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings, in
particular, to review and recommend to the Board the remuneration
policies and the remuneration packages of the individual executive
directors and senior management, and to review the Restricted Share
Award Scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the emoluments paid or payable
to members of senior management were within the following band:
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HE2018F12ANRAILFE ENHENS
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Number of individuals

Emolument band B <2 i AE
2018 2017
Nil-HK$1,000,000 = 2 1,000,000 % 7T 0 0

Nomination Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the Nomination Committee consisted of the directors of the
Company as follows:

Ms. Liu Rong (Chairlady)
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi

Mr. Fung Wing Lap*
Prof. Jiang Ping*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

* INED
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating
nomination policies, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
directors, assessing the independence of INEDs, and make
recommendations to the Board on appointment of directors, and review
the board diversity policy annually. The Nomination Committee has the
authority given by the Board to seek external professional advice in the
selection and recommendation for directorship, when required, fulfilling
the requirements for professional knowledge and industry experience of
any proposed candidates.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings, in
particular, to review and assess the independence of all INEDs of the
Company; to consider and recommend to the Board for approval of the
list of retiring directors for re-election at the annual general meeting held
on 30 May 2018 (the “2018 AGM"); to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board; and to appoint the chief executive officer.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted the nomination policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the key nomination criteria and nomination
procedures for the nomination of directors of the Company.

Key Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall identify and nominate qualified
individuals for appointment as additional Directors or to fill the Board
vacancies as and when they arise. The factors listed below would be
used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate.

Reputation for integrity

o Accomplishment and experience in any particular industry

o Professional and education background

o Ccommitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

o Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,

cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)
Key Nomination criteria (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

Nomination Procedures

1.

58

Appointment of Directors

The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s) suitably qualified
to become the Board members, having due regard to the Policy
and the diversity policy of the Board (“Board Diversity Policy”), and
assesses the independence of the proposed independent non-
executive Director(s) as appropriate.

M

@

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by the
Nomination Committee, having due regard to the Policy and
the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s) as
Director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand for
election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
will be subject to re-election by shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) at the next annual general
meeting after initial appointment in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Re-appointment of Directors

Q)

The Nomination Committee considers each retiring Director,
having due regard to the Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy and assesses the independence of each retiring
independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers each retiring Director recommended by
the Nomination Committee having due regard to the Policy
and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board recommends the retiring Directors to stand for re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company's articles of association.

The Nomination Committee will undertake the review and revision
of the Policy, as and when needed.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in relation to the
nomination and appointment of new directors, which sets out the
selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and
specific needs, including but not limited to gender, age, race, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry experience and
professional experience. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee will give consideration to the board diversity
policy when identifying suitable qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, and will review the board diversity policy, so as
to develop and review measurable objectives for the implementing the
board diversity policy and to monitor the progress on achieving these
objectives.

The directors’ biographical information as at the date of this report is set
out on pages 17 to 20 under the heading “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”. The Nomination Committee
reviewed the board diversity policy and achievement of objectives and
effectiveness of the board diversity policy, and recommended the Board
that the existing Board was appropriately structured and no change was
required.

Dividend Policy

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board of the Company takes into account, inter
alia, the Group's earnings performance, financial position, general
business conditions and strategies, interests of the shareholders of the
Company, the Group’s expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans, business cycle of the Group’s business and
other external or internal factors that may have an impact on the
business, investment requirements and future prospects.

The proposed declaration of dividend is subject to the Board's decision
and the declaration of any final dividend for any year is subject to
shareholders’ approval. The declaration of dividend is also subject to
Hong Kong law and the Company’s articles of association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS T EE AL

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate EZ@BEETT MNIMESEBERT
governance functions set out below:

a.  To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on  a.  #|ERBAARNPES EHENLST
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board; W WAEESIREES

b.  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional b, B REREERSHEEASHED
development of directors and senior management; SEST e

c.  To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on . Sl MERANANREBTLAENREER
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; EHEKBERERER

d.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance  d.  4%IF « B RERES REZHIRTHE
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and BIRERFEMAE) : &

e.  Toreview the Company’'s compliance with the code and disclosure e, s AR QA FESFFRIH B R R ELEE

in the Corporate Governance Report. RIS NEIHEEE o
NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ FHEBXXERESHERLH
ATTENDANCE

The attendance record of each director at the Board, board committee T & RZBESHEHZ2018F 1283181+
meetings and general meetings of the Company held for the year ended FERTZANREFTSSE EHLESE
31 December 2018 is set out in the table below: EN LGN —PA =D

Attendance/Number of meetings

R/ eERY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Continuous
Board General Committee Committee Committee  Professional
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting  Development
Name of Director BEEng FEYF ] BRAE EBENZESSE FWZSeeE RiZEge BESEER
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi TRktsE 9 2 N/A TR N/A T 2 /
Ms. Liu Rong fxut 14 2 N/A TR N/A T 2 /
Mr. Chen Ming Fei BRIBRIE 12 - NA TEH NA R ER NA TEH /
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Lam Bing Kwan WRELAE 13 2 N/A NEFA N/A MER N/A NER /
Independent Non- BUFHTEE
executive Directors
Prof. Jiang Ping PR Ed 9 - 2 3 2 /
Mr. Fung Wing Lap BRI n 2 2 3 2 /
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning HEERE 8 - 2 2 2 /
Number of meetings held ERBREENY
during the year 14 2 2 3 2
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 97 to 103.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Group in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted approximately to HK$2,344,000 and HK$68,000
respectively. An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external
auditors of the Group is set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Jay Shree Aggarwal, who was an employee of the Company and
became the Company Secretary with effect from 1 July 2018 has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1.

62

Procedures for shareholders to convene a general
meeting (“"GM")

As per Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the directors of
the Company are required to call a GM if the Company has
received requests to do so from the shareholders of the Company
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings.

The request:

(@ must state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the GM;

(b)  may include the text of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the GM and may
consist of several documents in like form;

(c) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form at 12/F, The
Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company or in
electronic form by email at info@sino-i.com,

(d  must be authenticated by the person or persons making it;
and

(e) must be verified with the share registrar of the Company,
and upon the share registrar’'s confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Board to convene a GM by serving proper notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered shareholders of the Company. On the contrary, if
the request has been verified as not in order, the requesting
shareholders will be informed of this outcome and
accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requests proceed duly to convene a GM for a day not more
than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the GM
is given, the requesting shareholders, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a GM which shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which GMs are to be
convened by the Board, but any GM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

2,

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Section 615(2) of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests from the following number of shareholders:

(@ the shareholders of the Company representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders who have a
right to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the
requests relate; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.

The request (i) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form at
the registered office of the Company, 12/F, The Octagon, No. 6 Sha
Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong or in electronic
form by email at info@sino-i.com; (i) must identify the resolution of
which notice is to be given; (iii) must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it; and (iv) must be received by the
Company not later than 6 weeks before AGM to which the
requests relate; or if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting.

In addition, the request will be verified with the share registrar of
the Company, and upon the share registrar’s confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify
the Board for including the resolution in the agenda for the AGM.

Pursuant to Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 615 to give notice of a
resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own expense
to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the AGM in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and at
the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it
gives notice of the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
3. Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the share registrar of the Company. Shareholders
may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing at the Company's registered office at 12/F., The Octagon,
No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, or to
the Company by email at info@sino-i.com. Shareholders may also
make enquiries with the Board at the GM/AGM.

The details of the rights of shareholders of the Company can be found in
the Company'’s website at www.sino-i.com.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to safeguard shareholders’ interests and
believes that effective communication with shareholders and other
stakeholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the business performance and strategies of the Group.

The Board adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy which aims to
set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the
shareholders of the Company and potential investors are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, in order to enable shareholders of the
Company to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
shareholders of the Company and potential investors to engage actively
with the Company.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to all interested parties on a timely basis. All such publications together with
additional information of the Group are timely updated on the Company’s
website at www.sino-i.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to the special resolutions passed at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 30 May 2018, the Shareholders resolved to
approve and adopt the new articles of association of the Company, in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the memorandum and the
existing articles of association of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in monitoring the risk exposures and the
operating effectiveness of the underlying risk management and internal
control systems.

The Company assists the management in identifying, assessing,
responding, monitoring and reporting corresponding risks through risk
management and internal control structure. The system aims at
managing instead of eliminating the risks of unfulfilled business goals
that reasonably but not absolutely prevents the impact of material risks.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Company has established a sound risk management and internal
control structure, adopting a top-down organizational structure from the
Board to the specific internal control units with well-defined duties. The
Group's Internal Audit Department assists the Board and/or the Audit
Committee in the ongoing review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Board, through Audit
committee, is at least annually informed of significant risks that may
impact on the Group's performance.
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. ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group;
BREFEEREINREREERANPEZEZRS - LRERRKRE

. formulate a management structure with specific terms of reference;

HERRABEERERNERRE &

. determine the nature and extent of significant risk that the Company
is willing to take in achieving the strategic objectives, and formulate
the Group's risk management strategies.
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RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

Audit Committee
EREER

The Management
(including heads of business units,
departments and divisions)
EEE
(BIEEKEN  BARITEE)

Internal Audit Department
A BT EB
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AR EIEREE e

oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the Group;
EERNEE 2 R B IR RN E AR R AT

review and discuss with the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to maintain effective risk
management and internal control systems; and
BEREEERMALNR  NHEREEEBITHEBEUARRERE
BRAEEEZERG AR &

consider major findings on internal control matters and make
recommendations to the Board.
ZRAANEREEFENEZREERTAEFTSEHEBER

design, implement and monitor the risk management and internal
control systems properly and ensure the systems are executed
effectively;

HZEFR BERREERAREERANBPEZEZRS  UERZZZRN
BABRIAT

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations;

EEE R BRI EEEREE B B 2 ERR

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings on, internal
control matters raised by internal or external auditors; and
HRAPBLINBEEBAIRLE 2 BEATEEER 2 ASEREL KK
BBl FE SR ERAE ¢ R

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems.
MESSRARREERABEZERR 2 HRUE

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy,
appropriateness and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems as well as their execution;
HEBREERANPEZRF @2 - EHEMNE RERAITER
ETH N RB AT

make recommendations for improvement of any deficiencies in the
design and execution of the risk management and internal control
systems; and

R B IR I N BPBAYE R AT 2 SR ET BT T RRFA 1R HhH S R
follow up from time to time the implementation of recommendations
made by auditors to promote the standardization of all works.
TS ZEMER BB ETIRE - DUEESIEILIEREIL -
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CONTROL APPROACH AND TOOLS

During the year, the management analyzed the control environment and
the risks identified, and implemented various controls measures.

i. approach taken: the management conducts interviews with
relevant staff members, reviews relevant documentation of the
internal control system and evaluates findings of any deficiencies
in the design of the Group’s internal control system, provides
recommendations for improvement and assesses the
effectiveness of such recommendations, where appropriate. The
scope and findings of review on the risk management and internal
control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee
annually.

i.  management information systems and technologies: such
systems and technologies are employed to keep track of the
inputs and outputs of the Group’s operations, such as financial
data system and human resources. They are also employed to
track the audit process in the authorization system, in which
permissions and responsibility of authorisation are clearly
identified and adequate records can be maintained in the system.

iii. reports and variance analysis: such reports and analysis of
each segment are conducted on a regular basis such that the
performance of each segment can be easily accessible.

iv. audit and supervision: in 2018, the Internal Audit Department
conducted an independent, objective and fair supervision and
evaluation of all aspects of the Company’s management in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations and the Company’s
internal control management system and business conditions and
focused on the evaluation of the rationality, soundness and
effectiveness of business processes and related internal control
systems, including budget control and enforcement, legality and
compliance of financial revenue and expenditure activities,
feasibility and efficiency of foreign investment, full-process control
of audit process by key personnel who was departed/off-duty to
ensure the effectiveness of each business process and improve
overall economic efficiency, so as to reasonably ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and accomplish
established corporate goals.

TRERHRSE

ERLERAR

RAFER  ERECYEERRNARBD
ABIRBED - AR E B REE -

. FEREGE: EEEEARETETE
A 0 B AR B P R AT AR B S B
HARBANMERERGRPHAERL
ERATE s EREEREREEES
A EEA BRI 2 A R (&
F) - SRR EE RN EIEE MR HE
LEREBFERERZECALER
% o

i EERERRGREM : HAREHRS
B AFFEVEMASEER 2BA
REit  WHBBERERGERANER -
HITR A GERERRF - B
AR BT RARER R Mk R A
MRS R HRCER

i. WERERDN: THERHAETE
BAmE RO B ZREEEDLLZ
= -

iv. ERTEE :2018%FE - MEEBMKE
HEARE AR RRARREEEER
BAERAKERN BARKEEERN
ENHBREGET B - TE - AL
MEEMHE EHEGEBRENA
AR ERGENSEY  #21% A
MIEHEITHE  BREEEENT U
BRSORBAIEN - RN HIMR
B TR SEREUBEA
BT (BB S2BREEE  BES
EBRREERER RABBLEHER
T AEEBRREENKBEAERE
BARENLEBR -

WWW.Sino-i.com 67



Sino-i Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A W g
TREBRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT

As an important element of quality corporate governance, the overall
risk management process is overseen by the Board through the Audit
Committee. Rather than a separate and standalone process, risk
management is integrated into the business and decision-making
processes, including strategy formulation, business planning, capital
allocation, investment decisions, internal control and day-to-day
operations.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze, evaluate,
respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity,
function or process within its terms of reference. It endeavours to
evaluate the level of risk and compare it against the predetermined
levels of risk acceptable to the Company. For risk control and
monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding acceptable risks and
the ways to address unacceptable risks. The management will develop
contingency plans for possible loss scenarios. Incidents and other
situations incurring actual or potential loss will be investigated and
properly documented as part of the effort to manage risks.

RISK EXPOSURES

The following illustrates the major risks of the Group. Since the last
annual review, there was no significant change in the nature and extent
of risks during the year.

Technical risks — the Company is a technology-intensive company and
its profitability is directly affected by the uncertainty in the technology
landscape due to the rapid development in internet industry and the
quicker technology updates. If the Company cannot identify its technical
defects in a timely manner in the future or the technicians cannot solve
technical problems under the existing research and development
conditions, the Company will be exposed to declining profitability and
competitiveness, which in return will adversely affect the Company’s
operation. In view of the above risks, the Company will put more efforts
in research and development, recruit high-calibre personnel, optimize
the composition of our research staff, and develop towards
technological diversification in respect of technology research and
development, so as to reduce technical risks and provide technical
support for product innovation and business growth of the Company.
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RISK EXPOSURES (Continued)

Risks of talent loss — the research and development as well as
innovation of the Company rely on core technical staff and key
management personnel. The Company has a huge demand for
experienced high-calibre talents to catch up with the rapid development
of the Company’s business but the competition for talents is increasingly
keen. The ability to retain technical staff and recruit talents is the key for
the Company to maintain its market position and sustainable
development. Although the Company attaches great importance to the
career opportunities and incentive schemes for core technical staff, loss
of our core industrial, product, operational, technical and managerial
personnel in the future will have a negative impact of the Company. In
view of the above risks, to retain talents for the business development
of the Company, the Company has adopted or will adopt the following
measures, which mainly includes: 1. internal promotion mechanism: to
establish a sound promotion system to develop career paths for
competent employees with positive working attitude and innovative
spirits to utilize and grow their enthusiasm and expertise; 2. internal
training mechanism: to set up training programmes to enhance the
skills, all-rounded abilities and competitiveness of employees through
internal and external training course; and 3. good remuneration package:
to offer a competitive remuneration package and incentive schemes to
further enhance and optimize the remuneration management systems
of the Company.

Exchange risk — the Group is exposed to fluctuation in exchange rates
as the Group's revenue is denominated in Renminbi while Hong Kong
dollars are the reporting currency of the Group. The management will
closely monitor the exchange exposure in order to keep the net
exposure at an acceptable level and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Internal Audit Department is assigned with the task to perform
regular reviews on the Group’s internal control systems in respect of
operational, financial and compliance aspects and will report the audit
review findings or irregularities, if any, to the management and advise
on the implementation of steps and actions required to enhance the
Group's internal controls. The result of internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

Apart from reviewing the systems, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experiences of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programs and budget. The Board
acknowledges that the management has been progressively
implementing an adequate internal control system to ensure the
effective functioning of the Group's operational, financial and
compliance areas, including the following key measures, policies and
procedures:

70

financial reporting management:

proper controls are in place to ensure the maintenance of a
complete, accurate and timely record of accounting and
management information;

regular reports on revenue and ageing analysis of receivables
and internal financial reports giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's financial
performance are prepared for the management;

quarterly updates on internal financial statements giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, financial position and prospects in sufficient
details are provided to all Directors; and

annual audit is carried out by external auditor to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
the Group’s accounting policies and the applicable laws and
regulations.

the mechanism and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an internal work
team (if required), that any material information which comes to
the knowledge of any one or more officers should be promptly
identified, assessed and forwarded to the Board (if appropriate);

the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed and
monitored regularly by the Audit Committee designated by the
Board;
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

iv.  the Audit Committee designated by the Board to monitor, control
and regularly review continuing connected transactions of the
Company and ensure proper compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations, the Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements; and

v.  a whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group and those
who deal with the Group (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters. The Group encourages
reporting with real names and implements award policy if the
reported suspicion is proved to be the case. Such arrangement will
be reviewed by the Audit Committee to ensure that proper
arrangement is in place for fair and independent investigation into
the matters.

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group's systems
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and are not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the systems, accordingly consider the
systems effective and adequate.
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This Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. Following the
disclosure of information regarding Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") for the first time in 2016, the Group issued its ESG
report for the third consecutive year, covering the policies, measures
and performance regarding environmental, social and governance
issues of the Group. During the year, the Group has complied with the
“comply or explain” provisions set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide”.

1. ESG MANAGEMENT

The Group adheres to the operating concept of sustainable
development and highly values the concerns and interests of all
stakeholders. Through the active communication and interaction
with customers, shareholders, suppliers, industry, media,
employees, government and regulatory agencies and
communities, the Group pursues various ways of cooperation to
continuously strengthen its ESG management based on trust and
influence among each other with an aim to achieve the
advancement of economy, environment and society.

1.1 ESG working group

The Group always insists on strengthening the management
of the environmental, social and governance matters in the
course of its development and operation, and establishes
various environmental, social and governance related
systems and an ESG working group to effectively manage the
organization and planning, indicator management and
performance evaluation of the Group’s ESG matters.
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DECISION-MAKING
LEVEL
RRE

Establish at the board of

directors of the Group

BREEESS

To be responsible for

decision making and

leading the Group's

ESG planning and
reporting

COMMUNICATION
LEVEL

] F 7%
To execute and report the
ESG works

AT ERESCIIE

To form an ESG working
group consisted of

personnel from various

BEBESGHE
wmE functions and subsidiaries

T} :EE T ?E =]

To deploy the Group's
ESG works
HERREEESGIIE
To delegate ESG duties to
various functions and
subsidiaries of the Group

To manage ESG related
policies and systems
EIRESGHRER HllE

To prepare the Gr

ESG annual report
REEEESCFE MRS

To continuously strengthen
the communication with
stakeholders

FHE R B R AR 5 BB
To manage other matters
relating to the Group’s ESG
H— B S BEESGIERA
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1. ESG MANAGEMENT (Continued) 1.

1.2 Communication with the stakeholders

The Group highly values the expectation and requirements of
stakeholders and actively undertakes the responsibilities and
missions endowed by society. To fully understand the needs
of stakeholders, the Group identifies the important
stakeholders and formulates the specific methods in order to
communicate with and response to stakeholders. An
effective two-way communication channel allows the Group
to provide a timely response on the concerns of
stakeholders. The Group identifies the stakeholders and their
expectations as follows:

ESG

1.2

EXECUTION LEVEL
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Establish at all departments
and subsidiaries of the Group
RREE BTSN R
EHEBAR

To define and fulfill the
respective ESG work
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ESG information collection,
report disclosure and etc.
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1. ESG MANAGEMENT (Continued) 1. ESGEHE (&)
1.2 Communication with the stakeholders (Continued) 1.2 FFHBAHBEBE B

Stakeholders Expectations and requiremants Communcation and responses

Mz AERE A HYEBERERSR BEEEES X

Customers

®F

Shareholders

&

Suppliers
s

Industry
173

Government
and regulatory
authority

BN REERE

Community
#HE
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ESG MANAGEMENT (Continued)
1.3 Materiality analysis

According to the requirements of the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” of the Stock Exchange,
the Group further improves the process of defining the
content of the report and, based on the communication with
stakeholders, refers to the ESG information disclosure
content of the industry peers, the Group’s development
strategy planning and the public’s focus on the Group in
order to complete the major judgment of environmental,
social and governance issues in 2018, identify the
information disclosure content of this report and determine

the degree of disclosure. The results are as follow:
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AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HERERHRSE
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Procedures of selecting environmental, social and governance issues
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1. ESG MANAGEMENT (Continued) 1. ESGEXE (&)
1.3 Materiality analysis (Continued) 1.3 EAMBEEATE (B

Procedures of selecting environmental, social and governance issues (Continued)
BiIE  HEREABEGRARE (B

SELECTION CRITERIA &fi&iE %
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L contribution to
general concerns of stakeholders A— sustainable development
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o
requirements under
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strategic development of the Group — Governance Relporting Guide” of
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SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS

The Group integrates the concept of sustainable development into
business decision-making and daily operations, strictly follows the
laws and regulations in which the Group operates and adheres to
legal compliance operations. The Group continuously optimizes
use of resources to realize energy conservation and emission
reduction and minimize the environmental impact of business
activities. The Group also continuously optimizes its supply chain
management, chooses quality suppliers, fully values the result of
intelligent work and protects intellectual property rights.

The Group's awards in 2018:
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2018 FF R B FTEARE

Issued by Awards
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ccidnet.com

2017-2018 First Place in Market Share in the Enterprise

& Website Service Market in China
2017-2018 [ R Bl > S BUL RS T (5 B K E—

China SaaS Application Conference
FESaaSEEAAE

China Network Information Security Summit
PEBEIEEEREY

The 21st China Beijing International High-tech Expo
FE_t+—ETPEILRERMREXEES

The 4th Global Cross-border E-commerce Conference
ENERRETHBEHAR

Best IT service SaaS service provider
B EIT AR 7% SaaS AR %

2018 China Network Information Security Best
Product Award
2018 F B4 4R 1

.

Bl brec eyl

Best Performance Award
RERRE

Most influential network marketing service provider
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SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS (Continued)

21

Integrity and compliance

The Group integrates the concept of compliance operation
into corporate values, leadership, innovation and
cooperation, and operates its business according to law,
striving to become a transparent and trustworthy enterprise.
Complying with the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China (1 % A R H£ B A 5)5%), the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange and the laws and regulations in which it
operates, the Group classifies the risks involved in business
operation and the relevant internal measures and control
process in order to establish a scientific and systematic
internal system and risk management system. The Group
strives to maintain its competitiveness through internal
control and risk management, ensures its moral integrity
management philosophy and commitment, enhances its
reputation and social credibility, thereby helping the
Company to achieve strategic, operational and governance
goals and create common value for the Group’s
stakeholders. The Group established the Internal Audit
Management System (A #B 2 &t & £ & ) to conduct
compliance training every year, improve employees’
awareness and execution ability in compliance management.

The Group opposes any acts of corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering and strictly complies with the
Law of the People’s Republic of China Against Unfair
Competition (FF 2 A R £ F1 B = A~ 1E & # 5%) and other
laws and regulations in which the Group operates. If the
supplier contract sum exceeds a certain amount, the Group
requires its cooperator to sign an Anti-Commercial Bribery
Agreement (R 7 % B 8§ 1% &) to strictly limit the work
content of both parties. In addition, the Group’s core
subsidiaries establish a real-name reporting system, open an
anti-corruption complaint mailbox, set up a supplier blacklist
and record the supplier’s bad information to avoid unfair
business practices that may occur. The Group provides its
employees with legal training on anti-corruption every year,
aiming to establish their legal awareness and in line with the
high standards of honesty and integrity in the course of work
to prevent any form of corruption and bribery. In 2018, the
Group had no corruption lawsuit.
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2. SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS (Continued) 2. BITUEEEE W)

2.2 Reducing environmental impact 22 RBLBBEE

The Group strictly complies with the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (R AR
HF1 B 3R 5% IR # %), the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Water (FF2E A R HFEH
IGFRBEEER), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (FRZE A
REMBARSHB5A7%) and the local laws and regulations
on environmental protection in which the Group operates, so
as to minimize the environmental impact of business
activities as well as promote green operations and green
offices.

The Group is committed to providing digital intelligence
operation and cloud services for SMES with advanced
technology while its operation has less impact on the
environment and does not involve in the production and
packaging materials. The Group’s wastes mainly include
used toner cartridges and waste paper and obsolete assets
(such as computers, printers, air conditioners, cameras,
desks etc.). The Group stacks the hazardous wastes together
and engages a qualified third party for disposal. General
wastes are separated and recycled properly, while domestic
wastes water is discharged into municipal sewage systems
for unified and standardized treatment.
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Waste generation of the Group in 2018

2018 FAKEREREYELE

Unit Yield
B E4XE

Indicators
B

Used asset generation BEEEELS

Used toner cartridges generation BFEMSELES

Used toner cartridges generation intensity EEEfsyE £ 25 E

Waste paper generation

\Waste paper generation intensity

piece

%

tonnes

L7
kg/HK$10,000
FTr/BET
tonnes

L7
kg/HK$10,000
T/ BET
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SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS (Continued)
2.2 Reducing environmental impact (Continued)

The main energy and resources used by the Group include
electricity, gasoline and water. In the course of daily
operation, the Group advocates green office, encourages its
employees to set black and white printing as default, reuse
single-sided printed papers, use video conferences to reduce
unnecessary business travel and use public transportation.
The Group advocates employees to save electricity and to
turn off unnecessary electronic devices during holidays. In
2018, the Group’s comprehensive energy consumption was
583.12 tonnes of standard coal; the comprehensive energy
consumption intensity was 0.006 tonnes of standard coal per
HK$10,000; the greenhouse gas emission was 3,210.57
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents, and the greenhouse
gas emission intensity was 0.032 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalents per HK$10,000.
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Energy and resource consumption of the Group in 2018

2018 FAEEERMEFEEE

Indicators
EE

Total electricity consumption
Total electricity consumption intensity

Municipal water consumption

Municipal water consumption intensity I

Reclaimed water consumption FKERE

Gasoline consumption BB RAE

Outsourcing heat consumption INBZUERAE
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kwh 3,148,122.07
TR

kwh/HK$10,000 31.09
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tonnes 55,338.51
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2. SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS (Continued)

2.2 Reducing environmental impact (Continued)

RE #HERERHRSE

RO REBOHBEEAERBESE - BOBERER

Case: CE Dongli introduced cloud servers in the new datacenter to reduce energy consumption

. ®

BEHHE -

In 2018, in order to meet the growing scale of services, CE Dongli has relocated its datacenter from Guangzhou to
Beijing to reduce energy consumption. The new datacenter in Beijing is installed with an upgraded cloud server,
which allows CE Dongli to significantly reduce its use of traditional servers, thereby significantly reducing energy
consumption in the datacenter and further developing a new environment-friendly operation model.

20184F - HIEB N ARRE TENERNRBEHRE - BAOREER  SREBMNNOEEEBREBZIL R HE - bR
TREERAARENERER  KRERD TESREENER - KMABREBEER  E—PHRERERITE

2.3 Strengthen supply chain management

The Group has established a solid and close relationship with
its suppliers through continuous enhancement of supplier
management. When selecting suppliers, the Group strictly
abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Bid
Invitation and Bidding ( # A R # 1 B 18 1% 1% 12 %),
Regulation on the Implementation of the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Bid Invitation and Bidding (#r % A R ££
MEBIZRAZE M 5), and local laws and regulations of
the place of operation. The Group'’s core subsidiaries have
formulated a Procurement Management System (£ & & 12
#) fZ), which adopted the principle of unified management
and centralized planning, clarified the management
responsibilities of departments, and stipulated the form,
method and scope of procurement. The Group also strictly
reviewed the qualifications of new suppliers and
comprehensively evaluated their product quality, supply
capacity and after-sales service capabilities. Supplier list and
supplier blacklist were also established to ensure the
procurement quality and enhance procurement efficiency.

In 2018, the Group had a total of 35 suppliers in Mainland
China and 1 supplier in overseas.
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SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS (Continued)
2.4 Intellectual property right protection

As an enterprise driven by innovation and development, the
Group places great emphasis on the protection of intellectual
property right. The Group strictly complies with the laws and
regulations such as the Patent Law of the People’s Republic
of China (2 AR £ FIE EZF))%), the Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China(# Z A & % 7 B 75 1% /&) and
Regulation on the Implementation of the Trademark Law of
the People’s Republic of China (X AR XM B EIZEAE i
{&451). The Group's core subsidiaries has established various
systems and management measures such as the Intellectual
Property Right Management System (%0 % 2 #& & 12 41 ),
which adopts strict management of trademarks, patents,
copyrights, domain names, etc.. The Group requires
employees to respond positively to infringements, eliminates
the loss of intellectual property rights, and protects
intellectual labour results that are not suitable for patent but
have commercial value as technical secrets. The Group also
encourages invention and creation and grants bonuses to
research and development (R&D) teams which obtained a
patent.

In 2018, the Group had applied for 9 patents and 1 patent
was granted.
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PROVIDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

The Group has been committed to providing high-quality
professional services to its customers. The subsidiaries of the
Group provide diversified and customized services based on
customer needs and continue to enhance the customer’s
experiences. The Group also keeps abreast of market demand
dynamics and put great effort into product innovation and R&D.
Supported by comprehensive management system construction
and advanced technology, the Group provides comprehensive
protection of information security.

3.1 Improving service quality

The Group is always committed to helping enterprises
achieve digital intelligent management to improve
operational results with lower cost, higher efficiency and
faster response. The Group's core subsidiaries actively
integrate products and solutions in all aspects, continuously
enhance the product R&D capabilities, improve their service
model and provide industry-leading technical services to
SMEs. The Group also provides “Internet +” high-end
customized digital intelligent business services to the top 500
companies around the world, creating business value for
customers in various industries.

To effectively manage product and project quality and
continuously optimize customer service quality, the Group
strictly abides by laws and regulations such as the
Administrative Measures on Internet Information Services (&
B 48 (= B IR 7% & 12 #%5%), Regulations on Internet Security
Protection Technical Measures (B B 48 % 2 (R & AT HE iR
7€) and Regulations on Mobile Internet Application
Information Service Management (% 8) B B¢ 48 /e A2 A= 8
R % & 3 & F) The Group's core subsidiaries have
formulated Project Management Practices (38 B & 12 17 #8)
to regulate the management of new product development
projects and existing projects. Through a number of
management practices and processes such as Quality
Assurance Specifications (2 = {8 % # #i) and Product
Testing Procedures (Z aa Al & 7t #2), the Group strives to
provide customers with high-quality products and services.
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PROVIDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Improving service quality (Continued)

In 2018, the Group’s core subsidiaries have experienced
online transformation of customer service to provide one-to-
one exclusive service for each customer. Hundreds of
product seminars were held across the country, which
facilitated customers to quickly adapt to the new service
platform. The Group regularly conducted customer
satisfaction surveys and established a comprehensive
customer complaints mechanism to handle the complaints
and disputes in an efficient and proper manner. In 2018, the
Group received a total of 2,914 complaints from customers
with customer complaints settlement rate of 98% and a
customer satisfaction rate of 97%.

Technological research and development and
innovation

The Group is determined to providing companies with a full-
lifecycle digital intelligent business solution, which enables
companies to survive and remain competitive in a highly
competitive market environment. The Group also invested a
large amount of capital and human resources in technology
R&D and innovation. CE Dongli used approximately 10% of its
annual turnover for technology R&D and has over 1,000
professional R&D staff and designers across the country. The
R&D team has developed a variety of training and
communication opportunities to reward R&D personnel.
According to the market demand, Xinnet continues to
develop innovative products, such as “Arrow Cloud(87S822)",
a new generation of intelligent cloud server which is easy to
use with strong performance and suitable price, to meet the
ever-increasing demand of customer and enhance the
customer experience.

In addition, the Group participates in various industry
associations and forums and actively acquires the frontier
information of the industry. The Group also shares its
experiences with industry experts, customers, peer
companies to promote industry innovation and development.
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3. PROVIDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (Continued) 3. REEERKw@)

3.2 Technological research and development and 3.2 HAioER R AIET ()
innovation (Continued)

Case: CE Dongli conducted basic-level management cadre training in R&D systems to improve R&D
team management capabilities
R h B OHRARRAEBEERIEZI > BEAWREREEED /

In 2018, CE Dongli conducted a two-day training for basic-level management cadre to provide specific management
ideas, methods and tools in seven aspects of “identification, employment, motivation, planning, organization,
leadership and control” with an aim to conduct R&D talent training, cultivate cadres and enhance core management
capabilities. Through the simulation of situational exercises and meaningful and fun teamwork games, this training
program helped to enhance the enthusiasm of participating employees, and the whole process was full of joy with
experience gained. This two-day training helped the company to set the goals and develop the cooperation
capabilities of the ideal team, explore the refined management capabilities of the trainees, enhance the
cohesiveness of the R&D team and help key technical personnel to embark on the management path.
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3. PROVIDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (Continued) 3. REEERKw@)

3.2 Technological research and development and 3.2 HAiEH R AR ()
innovation (Continued)
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3. PROVIDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (Continued) 3. REEERKw@)

3.3 Protecting information security 33 REGFERE

The Group attaches great importance to information security
and privacy protection and its subsidiaries provide
information security for customers. CE Dongli has specially
formulated the Information Security Management Manual (15
B2 EIEFM) (hereinafter referred to as the “Manual”) to
provide guidance for information security. According to the
Manual, the company has established the information
security management system to clarify the departments and
personnel responsible for information security and
implement the hierarchical protection for information
security. Adhering to management and technology, the
company improves the security protection capabilities of
information systems and effectively protects information
security. Moreover, CE Dongli evaluates information security
systems regularly and corrects security vulnerabilities in a
timely manner to improve information security. CE Dongli
has agreed to ensure information security in the contract
with the customer and set up a 7*24 hours call centre to
handle security threats raised by customers in a timely
manner. In addition, the company also conducts special legal
training for employees to regulate the use of personal
information of customers.

The Group's products, such as the “Arrow Cloud (&7 28 2&)”
of Xinnet and the “CE Cloud Platform” of CE Dongli, have
passed the inspection of the National Network and
Information System Security Product Quality Supervision and
Inspection Center and obtained the Information System
Security Level Protection (Level 3) Certification (12 8 R &
2 ERRE (FE =) RFE) (the “Level Three Protection”) in
"Regulatory Level”, achieving an all-around and effective
protection of customer information.
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DEVELOPMENT OF TALENT

The Group pursues a people-oriented business philosophy and
regards employees as the greatest asset. The Group also protects
the legitimate rights and interests of employees, provides
competitive compensation and benefits and promotion paths, and
organizes a variety of cultural and sports activities to create a
healthy and harmonious working environment for employees. As
of the end of 2018, the total number of employees in the Group
was 6,403, of which female employees accounted for 44.5%.

Number of employees by gender
(Unit: person)
BRERESHWETAZ
(Bfr : A)

>

4. BIOANAHR

AEBEBEFETUABANKEES BB
THRETEREANNE  REBIAZE
B REFBRFINGFHEFFEA
BT WHEBLESTYHXEEE &
BTITEREMBA TIERIE - B 1E
2018 4K » EBE THAEUA6,403 A -
Erh 4 8 TH144.5% o

B Male employees M Female employees

S8 Z8T
Number of employees by age Number of employees by region
(Unit: person) (Unit: person)
RFREINEIAY RBEIWETAY
(Bfr: A) (Bfr: A)

W Below 35yearsold  m 45 years old or above
35 ATR 45554 1

W 35-45 years old
35-45%3%,
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4. DEVELOPMENT OF TALENT (Continued) 4. BIOATBE®)

4.1 Protecting the rights of our employees 41 REEIfH

In strict compliance with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (R #E A R £ F1BI &5 8)5%) and the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (Fr#E A R 4L
ME & B) 4 [F)5%), the Group signs labour contracts with all
employees in order to eliminate the occurrence of child
labour and forced labour. The Group’s core subsidiaries
formulate the Employee Handbook ( & T 3-ff) based on their
own operations and make provisions of relevant systems,
such as employees’ employment management, labour
relationship termination rights, business codes, social
security funds, salary, employee benefits, vacation benefits,
working hours/overtime, performance management,
employee career development, rewards and punishments to
safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of employees.
The Compensation and Benefits Management System (3B
BFIEIEHIE) is also established, which is a comprehensive
compensation system governing matters such as basic
salary, performance, project awards, equity interests, year-
end awards, bonus and subsidies etc. and providing
employees with subsidies for transportation, special matters,
full attendance, expatriate services, child education etc.

The Group has established a talent introduction mechanism
with different levels, including campus recruitment, internal
recommendation, online recruitment and general
recruitment, etc., and distributes recruitment information on
multiple channels on a regular basis. In 2018, the Group
started to use the recruitment management system and
managed various recruitment channels to improve
recruitment efficiency and quality. In addition, the Group
participated in “Dolphin Trainees Program (&8 stEl1)”, a talent
training program organized by Nan Hai in 2018, to recruit and
cultivate high-quality talents for the company.
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4. DEVELOPMENT OF TALENT (Continued) 4. BIHAABE @)
4.2 Promoting career development 42 RESTIBERR
The Group attaches great importance to the growth and AEFSEREINKREEE A
development of its employees and develops a ETHTF=ENEIERX  EHE
comprehensive training system for its employees to help IT2HE - REKE - REBETZ
them enhance capabilities comprehensively and rapidly. DIEEBBRARERFEEERE
Through the activities such as product development and Bl -ERMEXRTiE - R K
professional skills training, lectures hosted by product B AESRE CEBAFTFEURF
expert, design competitions, knowledge contests, the annual EEBFEIXRTRKEE LY A8
meeting of managers and annual excellent staff TRERTNBEZERTE - HE
commendation meetings, the Group’s core subsidiaries BTTEMRER - EEENL o 1oh -
provide its employees with a good career development HEMARET - ATIBR THES
platform, motivating employees to achieve a progressive and H3AMERE EA5FEFTE
active development. In addition, the Company organizes a THEABZER—2aBRETE
3-day intensive training for new employees. A senior AEEE . LNEBMFE TIRERA -
employee is also assigned to act as a mentor to a new
employee and help new employees quickly integrate into the
company.
Case: CE Dongli conducted a training program for senior business managers
b B HEREREESELEI
® ®
In 2018, CE Dongli organized a training program for senior business managers to introduce the company’s
development strategy, the customer operations management and team motivation management. Through lectures
and activities, managers were able to enhance their comprehensive knowledge and understanding of business
management. In addition, trained managers may have the opportunity to become training instructors and participate
in cross-regional training programs for senior management. This training program not only effectively improved the
overall quality of the company'’s senior management team but also cultivated senior training instructor talents.
20184 » HIE) NABEREBLESI  FAABELAT LRI FRECEENEGKEESEE AR
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4. DEVELOPMENT OF TALENT (Continued) 4. BIHAABE @)
4.2 Promoting career development (Continued) 42 REBTIRERREE)

Case: CE Dongli “Xuechao (2#)" knowledge contest
RH|: FEEH 28] NRRETE

In 2018, CE Dongli held a knowledge contest, which was an activity involving all employees, including a written test
of product knowledge, customers’ experience sharing on product and a sales plan display of portal products.
Employees who won the contest received bonus awards. This knowledge contest successfully helped employees to
enrich basic product knowledge, enhance sales skills and reinforce team cohesion.

20184F - MBI NUAMBHRENTITET 52 E2HENAHERLY - BEOEERASESR  BPEAE
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DEVELOPMENT OF TALENT (Continued)
4.3 Care for the health of our employees

Adhering to the people-oriented philosophy, the Group
attaches great importance to the health and safety of
employees, provides paid leaves and regularly organizes
various cultural and sports activities to achieve a work-life
balance for employees. The Group also set up a staff
communication box, conducts interviews with employees
who intended to left the company, listens to employees’
opinions and suggestions, and makes adjustments and
improvements to existing deficiencies. For example,
responding to the opinions from sales staff on monotonous
work content, CE Dongli launched its marketing platform
project in 2018, which effectively reduced the workload of
employees by replacing manual operations with big data and
Al technology.

The Group pays attention to the health and safety of its
employees and organizes safety regulations and training
activities regularly to strengthen employees’ awareness of
safety and prevention and reduce accidents. The Group’s
core subsidiaries have formulated the Working Injury
Declaration and Approval Process (I 15 B i} & 2 #t 75 12)
based on its own business characteristics to ensure that
employees with work injuries receive the proper treatment
and compensation. In 2018, the Group had no fatal work-
related accident, and the working days lost due to work
injuries were 83 days.

The Group's subsidiaries provide free medical checks for
employees to create a healthy and comfortable office
environment. The lighting, ventilation and office facilities in
the office building are in line with the needs of health, and
maternal and child rooms are provided to facilitate
breastfeeding female employees. The Group attaches great
importance to work-life balance and organizes a variety of
cultural and sports activities, including the CE Carnival,
Mother’s Day Essay Competition, the Children’s Day Graffiti,
and the Flash Mob on 1024 Programmer’s Day. The Group
also holds birthday parties and gives birthday presents, etc.
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4. DEVELOPMENT OF TALENT (Continued) 4. BIOATERE®
4.3 Care for the health of our employees (Continued) 43 BEEEISULREE®E)

Case: CE Blue Carnival in 2018
RO 2018 FEHFLEZFEHETEH

In February 2018, CE Dongli held a carnival event with the theme of “Variety Show". Through actively participating in
those exciting and varied theme activities, employees were able to truly feel the warmth and happiness of CE family.
This carnival event used the elements of CE Blue to create a blue ocean by putting balloons in the office area, which
was filled with the style of future technology. Employees participated in lottery activities through the WeChat Wall
function of Hui Xiao Bao (& $ &) in the CE Dongli Cloud Platform and experienced the future world through VR
technology. Various activities such as Werewolves of Miller's Hollow, painting class, parent-child interaction project
and succulent planting class were also provided in the carnival for employees and their families to share the
happiness and look forward to the wonderful year of CE Dongli in 2019.
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4. DEVELOPMENT OF TALENT (Continued) 4. BIHAABE @)
4.3 Care for the health of our employees (Continued) 43 BEEISLREE)
Case: CE Dongli organized Mother’s Day Essay Competition
A PEEHABIFEERUASES

® ®

In 2018, CE Dongli organized an essay competition for its employees on Mother’s Day. Participants could share
stories and photos with their mothers directly at “CE Dongli MyCE”. For the first 513 participants, one out of five
participants received a beautiful Mother’s Day gift. Outstanding essays were selected and posted on the WeChat
public platform. This event reflected the company’s concern for the family life of employees, and stimulated the
enthusiastic participation of employees and became a hot discussion topic.
HFE)NE2018 F AN B THREE IR - M A UEEE [F8) MyCE| 5 Z EISHH S MR
Ao BIS13ULEE - §ESHABS—MEENEHRNEY ARSI EENEFSXELARRKLET - X

v EERER T AEHETIREAENRE BB TEINRBLRXEL S| TR -

5. ASSIST IN SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT 5. BhOnERE
The Group has consistently fulfilled its corporate social NEBZERIFERTLEAEEF
responsibility for many years, actively maintained community BEReETREEEFR 2EdEED - M
relations, participated in community building, and grew with the fEERKE - AEBEE T ZOEEF
community. CE Dongli, the Group’s core subsidiary, launches a TEAHBB PO RAE] EHEEELD
long term love donation activity through “CE Micro Public Welfare BROEE  THET(REMAZE — &
(fF & A #5)" and formulated the “Management measures on DEZEEE) BT EOIBERMIE
donation of micro public welfare activities of CE Dongli” (FR 1A AMEEAFX  WREBEELBRWIER
#Fm— T OB 3% E E ¥ oK), which prescribes the use and (LB - I8 ARE LB RS E
management of charitable donations, to ensure the regularity and FEHEBEDGL o AN - B iBE [
transparency of the donations so that the care of donators can be AR 2HEZEMNEARERS - &
delivered in a timely and accurate manner. In addition, CE Dongli [BEHE+ D] S m AR %
participates in various social welfare projects through “CE Dongli A E&E - 2018 FELEMIE R BIE[+
Micro Public Welfare” and integrates the concept of “Internet+ EliRfTe KEHMIEBE ] [HEiliwxe
Public Welfare” into its daily operation. In 2018, CE Dongli VRHmALREFENPHESCERES
participated in projects such as the Love Supermarket of the Bank BIYRIEB | [HBILE e EITHEE
of China (9 Bl #R 7 e X & i T I8 B ), Children’s Hope House of HE|] 0 20184F - RE) HYHNEEL A ZE
Children’s Hope Foundation on Tencent Public Welfaree9.9 #712,0007 ¢ °
Philanthropy Day (sl Az e NFHZ REF BB ESER
427 KIEE) and Tencent SecurityeTencent Guardian Plan( &
M e fEASTEE 5T 2)). In 2018, CE Dongli donated a total of
approximately HK$12,000.
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5. ASSIST IN SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT (Continued) 5. BHHERE®)

Case: CE Dongli launched a child rescue project through the online public welfare platform
RO B HBERERALNETAHEREREER

Along with the ever-changing development in the internet industry, CE Dongli uses a new internet model to
stimulate public welfare activities from minority to public, from single to diversity and from offline to online, creating
a special public welfare model with a mobile donation, social communication and behavioural public welfare. In
2018, CE Dongli continued to participate in the projects such as “9.9 Philanthropy Day” (992 z H) and “Orphans
also need a home” (71l 52 17 b, & & — B ) of Tencent Public Welfare. Donors made a donation to the Children’s
Hope Foundation with Love Double Card(E » i f& &) and CE Dongli made a subsequent donation based on the
corresponding multiple of the donation amount shown on the card, thereby achieving a double contribution.
BEEGHMBTXAFTARNEEER PN EARE AR TN EBRANEX - BAREBRNBRERAR
HE—FEMEZT RETHRIE L  ITEBHEE  HXXEF  TRALZEREAREN « 2018F » FiEhh
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5.

ASSIST IN SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT (Continued) 5. BhugRE@

Case: CE Dongli participated in combating online fraud

P p B NS RITERKFR

In 2018, CE Dongli joined Tencent Security e Tencent Guardian Plan to combat telecommunication network fraud
with the police. The “Guardian Plan” is a public welfare platform of anti-telecommunication network fraud launched
by Tencent. As a cooperator, CE Dongli used its own business advantage to help police fight cybercrime based on
big data platform and underlying information technology, providing the public with comprehensive network security
protection and reducing the risk of cybercrime.

2018 FHENMA [BAL L e BT REENE] BMALE T HEITESEMEFR o [~TEEE REAAQF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
|

EEE - +852 2218 8288

{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINO-I TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino-i
Technology Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group”) set out on pages 104 to 263, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill and non-financial assets

(Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the
Group’s critical accounting estimates and assumptions in relation to the
impairment of goodwill and non-financial assets set out in note 4.1)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had goodwill and non-financial
assets amounting to approximately HK$77 million and HK$155 million
respectively relating to cash-generating units (the “CGUs") within the
enterprise cloud services segment.

Management has performed an annual impairment test in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies and concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the goodwill and non-financial assets. This
calculation was based on value in use calculations.

We identified the impairment of goodwill and non-financial assets as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and because the value in use calculations involve significant
management judgement and estimates with respect to the underlying
cash flows, in particular the average sales growth rate and discount
rates.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
goodwill and non-financial assets included:

— considering the historical accuracy of management’s budgeting;

— conducting in-depth discussions with management about the cash
flow projections used in the value in use calculations and
challenging the appropriateness of the significant assumptions and
critical judgement areas which underpin the value in use
calculations;

— benchmarking the growth rates and discount rates used in the
value in use calculations against independent industry data and
comparable companies; and

— performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of a

change in the key assumptions to the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment of loans to immediate holding company

(Refer to note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the
Group’s critical accounting estimates and assumptions in relation to the
provision for impairment of receivables set out in note 4.1)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had loan receivables from its
immediate holding company, Nan Hai Corporation Limited (“Nan Hai"),
amounting to a total of approximately HK$1,484 million. Among these
loan balances, approximately HK$1,006 million is bearing interest at 8%
per annum, repayable on 29 June 2019 and secured by a share mortgage
on Nan Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan Hai;
approximately HK$343 million is bearing interest at 8% per annum,
secured by a share mortgage on Nan Hai Development Limited and
repayable on 20 June 2021 ; and the remaining balance is interest-free.

We identified the impairment of loans to immediate holding company as
a key audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and because the impairment assessment performed by
management involves assessing the creditworthiness of Nan Hai and
hence a significant judgement and estimates in determining the
recoverability of the loans to immediate holding company.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
loans to immediate holding company included:

— assessing the financial position of Nan Hai by conducting in-depth
discussions with management of Nan Hai to understand their
business plans; and

— conducting in-depth discussions with Nan Hai's management
about their 12-month working capital forecast to ensure Nan Hai
would have sufficient financial resources to repay the loan
receivables when the loans mature and challenging the
appropriateness of the significant assumptions and critical
judgement areas which underpin the working capital forecast.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Group’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

100 www.sino-i.com

FHRPHEAER

EFEAREMENAERECT  HMEHE
m BEREFHRTAHEEN  ETRESGAHM
BmR MR IR BEI RS -

BPESEEMBEREANBERL TRERLME
o R HZFEMEREREMTE AN
EREW o

ARAHFAMHRROFTMS  RANE
TRMEEMER  GEHBRET  EEEME
FRE R E B RR AR AR BRETH
TROBEAFEENEBREUT FEEASE
R E B - ERBFICMITHO T - M3
PIRBEMENFEERERL - HAFE
BEZEE - RAALEFUAFL RS -

ESHAREUBRRARENSR

EXFAERBERBSAMASRONE BN
BHREEARFERADGIREEE MR FH
RERBmE  THERBREFREYBHREK
HR BN FEANRGFERMEBEAE
ARRAFTFAFZEHEE -

EREGaMBREAE EFAHTE &F
B ELENEES  TEERBER T RE RS
BREFENFE  UNERFELLERESR
W BRIFEFHAER BEEEBRAIFLE
2 HRIEAMERNERTER -

EENAEEE SREMBHREBE - -FZ
ZESHMHESHHBETREFNERE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % B WRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE #ZE I MBS BHRRARIEN
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) B

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those  #MEZERBZFEASZED - RPIECLEEY
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated  ARNEJ4GA B BEHRANEARAEE - AMER
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key  Fg#E1E1E - RPIEZEEN RS S il S L
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless =18 - BRIEER AR TA T ARERE LS
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 18 @ siEiigZE RABER T (N BEHER
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not  FsREFRESFHETHBENNEEERER
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of BE4SMAZRHEZE  BfPRENEERETH
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest (B IBHESTHE o

benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited ERVCERENMEBHAERAR
Certified Public Accountants HE SR

Lam Pik Wah MEE

Practising Certificate Number P05325 B E R P05325

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019 A 2019F 3 A28 H
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #EHZE2018F 12 A31HILFE

2018

Notes HK$'000

B 5T FET
Revenue Wz 5(a) 1,012,450
Cost of sales and services provided $HE MIRHERE Z A (158,095)
Gross profit EF 854,355
Other operating income E A& A 5(b) 157,866
Selling and marketing expenses THE RTinHERER X (729,390)
Administrative expenses THAX (109,124)
Other operating expenses Emggfx (176,484)
Finance costs BhE R AN 7 (2,127)
Share of results of associates iy NI E 17 (6,815)
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate B {EHE — B AT 2 BB =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 W& 34 405,865
Profit before income tax BRET1SHE RT3 FI 8 394,146
Income tax expense FriSHiF 9 (18,334)
Profit for the year FREF 375,812
Profit for the year attributable to: RTALTEEFERET
Owners of the Company RAREAR A 377,452
Non-controlling interests FEEAR M 39 (1,640)

375,812
HK Cent
b1l
Earnings per share attributable to FARRRER AEMNL
owners of the Company for the year SREF 11

— Basic — AKX
— Diluted — g
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2017
HK$'000
TAT

833,245
(154,847)

678,398

167,707
(564,744
(95,292
(151,884
(8,150
(1,040
(162

)
)
)
)
)
)

24,833
(14,811)

10,022

11,385
(1,363)

10,022
HK Cent
Al
0.06

0.06
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REZTHBERE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE 20184 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Profit for the year FREF 10,022
Other comprehensive income Hitt 2 E K=
Item that will not be reclassified to A EEN D EZ BmR
profit or l0ss: EA -
Fair value change on financial assets BAREEF AEMEEREE
at fair value through other JERMEEZAAEBEEBEED
comprehensive income -
Items that may be reclassified HgngeEH 7 EE B iR
subsequently to profit or l0ss: ZIHEEA -
Exchange differences on translation BMEBINEBRTHEHRE 2
of financial statements of foreign PE =%
operations 8,430
Exchange differences on translation BEREHMENTICIELERE
of investment in associates 28
Exchange differences reclassified on RIEH & — A& A RREEH
deemed disposal of an associate, 2 [ AR (FOBRFIR)
net of tax 359
Release of reserves upon disposal HEKTE QRSB O G
of subsidiaries (72,909) -
(79,666) 8,817
Total comprehensive income FRE2AEWREE
for the year 296,146 18,839
Total comprehensive income RTATEEEZEKRSEEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PiN/NSIEZ SN 297,926 19,517
Non-controlling interests R AR (1,780) (678)
296,146 18,839
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE U BRREER

As at 31 December 2018 72018412 A 31 H

2018 2017

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

5T FHET F#ET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - MR MRE 13 52,139 612,496
Prepaid land lease payments under LEAET2EMNLHHEE
operating leases 14 11,148 23,903
Available-for-sale financial assets AHPESHEE 15 - 444
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEFAHEMEZEY S
other comprehensive income LEREE 15 324 -
Interests in associates NGNS Pl 3 17 35,002 41,128
Goodwill SES 18 76,883 83,320
Other intangible assets HinmpEE 19 92,189 97,895
Deposits and other receivables & R HAb MU RIR 21 = 709
Loan to immediate holding company MEEERATIER 27(b) 356,995 1,046,644
624,680 1,906,539
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables FEUE Z5kIE 20 24,197 9,585
Deposits, prepayments and other e AR REMER
receivables I 21 98,689 182,204
Financial assets at fair value through BARBETABREZ
profit or 10ss TREE 22 47,765 103,500
Loan to immediate holding company AIEZERARER 27(b) 1,127,112 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekERR®IER 23 170,417 304,874
1,468,180 600,163
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables BB Z5IE 24 54,350 29,354
Other payables and accruals HAth eI RIB R ERTE A 25 48,753 93,987
Receipt in advance and deferred revenue FERIE [ iR E U 25 = 220,067
Contract liabilities AHEE 26 211,128 -
Provision for tax TRIaREE 158,591 145,957
Amount due to a director R—H[EEFRTE 27(a) 532 -
Amount due to immediate holding REZZER A BIHIE
company 27(b) 33,544 17,298
Amounts due to associates NS E S 27(c) 5,534 5,492
Bank borrowings, secured BHEAETEE 28 = 163,344
Other employee benefits Hitnfg 847 29 16,923 -
Finance lease liabilities MEHEAE 30 2 57
529,357 675,556
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (AFE)RE 938,823 (75,393)
Total assets less current liabilities @&EERABHERS 1,563,503 1,831,146
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
BEMBMRRAER @)

As at 31 December 2018 72018412 31 H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FHERT FET

Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Other employee benefits Hitnfg 8487 29 27,260 2,064
Finance lease liabilities BEHERE 30 = 14
Deferred tax liabilities FERIAEEE 31 4,475 5,680
31,735 7,758
Net assets EEFE 1,531,768 1,823,388

EQUITY =

Share capital A A 32 240,597 240,597
Reserves s 37 1,298,511 1,565,385

Equity attributable to the Company’s 742 B#H5 A EIE %
owners 1,539,108 1,805,982
Non-controlling interests By 39 (7,340) 17,406

Total equity REREE 1,531,768 1,823,388

Liu Rong Chen Ming Fei
EIES] R 1S 7R

Director Director
FF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERE®K

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=2018 F12 A31 AL FE

Notes
B RE
Cash flows from operating activities K& EKRERE
Profit before income tax R BT 1S 75 Bl )
Adjustments for: BTFIIEE AR -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB REHETE
equipment 13
Annual charges of prepaid operating KEHET 2
lease payments BNFEER 14
Amortisation of other intangible assets HEmpEEs 19
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BARBEFAEBREZ
assets at fair value through PREEAAEE
profit or loss &8, (W)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HEZRAREERA
fair value through profit or loss Bmkr eRMEEEIE
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, LEME - HEK
plant and equipment ‘Bz (W), BiE
Loss on written off of property, plant WEWE - BERREBEZEER
and equipment 13
Loss on written off of intangible assets W ER EE BB 19
Reversal of impairment loss on FEW B B F IR R E R 1B #E A
trade receivables
Reversal of impairment loss on other Ho b fE W EIE R (B E B R
receivables 21
Bank interest income RITHFEUWA 5(b)
Other interest income H A F B WA 5(b)
Dividend income IS ON 5(b)
Finance costs A& AN 7
Share of results of associates et NS
Share-based payments expense ARSI S 2 X 36
Provision for other employee benefits HibRBEA B 29
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR Z WS 34
Impairment loss of intangible assets E A ERERIE 19

Loss on deemed disposal of an associate

BIFEHE—RBERFZ
&1

Operating profit/(loss) before working
capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables
Decrease in trade payables,
other payables and accruals
(Decrease)/Increase in contract liabilities/
receipt in advance and deferred revenue
Increase in other employee benefits

BEESEHA 2
reEA(BR)

W B 53 B (32 )R

B - BAFAREMER
FRIRR D

FEATE 55008  E b A FRIR
K e E AR

BRaE/ TRRFIER
EE Y O ) N

H b e B &A1 0

Cash generated from operations EEMEHES
Income tax refunded/(paid) R (BA) 5
Net cash generated from operating BE BRI &5

activities
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2018
HK$'000
FET

394,146

36,305

367
22,853

11,743
1,309
(35)

77
1,356

(682)

(78)
(2,733)
(96,154)
(2,236)
2,127
6,815
178
41,193
(405,865)
3,620

14,306
(15,913)

66,130

(225)

(5,207)
2,640

61,731
868

62,599

2017
HK$°000
TAT

24,833

49,242
513
18,604

(2,837)

49

(21,142)
(1,998)
(97,600)

8,150
1,040

5,536
162
(15,450)
60,034
10,860
(58,761)
18,231

14,914
(1,012)

13,902
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continuea)
GEBRERERRK 0

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018 F12 A31 AL FE

Notes
ih=s

Cash flows from investing activities RETHRERE
Payments to acquire property, plant FEEYE - BERERBE TR

and equipment 13
Payments to acquire other intangible assets B HMEFEE 2 MK 19
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets at AR BEFTAEBREZ

fair value through profit or loss SEEERD, (M)
Bank and other interest received BUERTT R E AT E
Dividend income A& B A
Proceed from disposal of property, HEME - BE R&HE

plant and equipment FriS 5578
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HENB QRS HKIEA 34
Partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary — H&=—FREHEA A

without loss of control BB 5> HEE 7 1 I 8 Ok R T Il
Step acquisition of a subsidiary, net of ZEHWE—FHRB AR -

cash acquired HBREEAR © 33
Payments to acquire associates gt VNG AP 17
Repayment from immediate holding BEEERARZER

company
Investment in available-for-sale KRENHHESREE

financial assets
Net cash generated from investing activities & & &8 PT84 58
Cash flows from financing activities FEEBHRERE 47
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIEEASIEB
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITEE
Repayments of finance lease liabilities EERMEHEEARE
Increase/(Decrease) in amount R—BEEFHIA

due to a director #hn,/Crid)
Increase in amounts due to associates IR Es R N B FRIEIE AN
Advance from/(Repayment to) immediate  EEER A RIEZ

holding company (RIEHEZERARER)
Special dividends paid [EEREEF IS
Interest paid B E
Net cash used in financing activities BB EEATIEIR R
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekERRLIER

cash equivalents CRA), /B InF58
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1A1BZERENEREELIER
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,  YMEE R ZE RS~

on cash held %
Cash and cash equivalents at RNANHZE:2 R

31 December ZLRAEEE
Analysis of the balances of cash ReREEAHRELER

and cash equivalents Rz oM
Cash at banks and in hand RITHREREFRE 23

2018
HK$'000
FET

(30,595)
(27,176)

42,683
3,930
2,236

39
519,440

510,557

(160,757)
(69)

552
42

18,794
(557,607)
(2,127)
(701,172)
(128,016)

304,874

(6,441)

170,417

170,417

2017
HK$°000
TAT

(47,360)
(24,125)

(100,663)
213,531

2,457

(330)
(42,392)

311,291

(120)

312,289

157,316
(161,942)
(350)

(20,316)

(84,185)
(8,150)
(117,627)
208,564
85,230

11,080

304,874

304,874
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERBEIR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z=2018 £12 A31 HILFE

Equity attributable to the Company's owners
AOAERARGRR

Financial
assets at fair
valug
through
other
Capital comprehensive  Share-based Non-
Share  distribution General Exchange income payments Retained controlling Total
capital reservet reserver reserve* reserve* reserver profits* Total interests equity
EMEE
HtARHRE
L8 W& eHEE Wkt
& ARRE - B LRE XfZRE RERR* a FERER g
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
TER THL TEn TEn THL T#n TEn TEn THL T#n
(note32)  (note37(@)  (note 37(b) (note 3¢) (note 39)
(WD) (WE@)  (HEah) (Ki&t3) (H30)

At 31 December 2017 as originally presented 2017128318

(Fx28) 20597 52622 80913 - 1,422,089 1,805,982 17,406 1,823,388
Il applicaton o HKFRS 15 note 3. S EREANRREENS 9%

(H31) - - (137 (131 - (1371
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 ROBE1R182BE0ER 20,597 52,622 - 144718 1,798,611 17,408 1816017
Proft/(Loss) for the year EnER/(58) - - 377452 311452 (1,640) 3581
Other comprehensive income Af2ENE

Itemthat wil ot be reclassifed toproftorloss: 47 EEH S 85EE 7 ER -
—Farvaliechangeonrancialassetsat —HAAEEAZBAENE
farvalue rough other LEBEEIDAERED
comprenensive income

Iems thet may be reclassied subseuentyt - ZATREHAEZELER
prof orloss:
— Bchange diferences on ransiton of rencal —AE BN ERERRR

Statements of foreign operations ExzE - (5,814) - (5.814) (5,954)
— Exchangs diferences on transaton of —HERERELT/ELZE
imiestment in associates - (689) - (689) - (689)
— Release ofreserves upon disposal of —HENBATRARRE
Subsidiaris (note 34) (F3) - (72,909) - (72,909) - (72,909)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £R2EHELEE = (19412) 37452 297926 (1,780) 296,146
Specil didend rote 10) hIRE () - ° - (557,607) (557,607) - (357,607)
Share-oased payment expense (note 3¢) R 2R % (Hi36) - - - - 178 - 7
Release of reserve upon disposalof subsiciaries  HiENBA AR ERER (41,668) - 41,668 - - -
Disposal o subsiaries HENBAT - - - - (22,966) (22,966)
At 31 December 2018 ROBE12ENE 20,597 52,622 (31907) 178 126,231 1,539,108 (7,340) 1531768
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

MEEREHR o

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=2018 12 A31 HIEFE

Equity attributable to the Company's owners

KOS \ERER
Capital Non-
Share  distribution General  Exchange Retained controling Tota
capial reservet fesenver reservet profits* Total nterests equity
R

RE  SEEE* AR
HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
Thn T Thn
(note32)  (note37(@)  (note 37(0)
(%) (W3 (WE30)

EXfEs  REERN At HihEs  EaEE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
T T T T T
(note 39)
(39)

At 1 January 2017 RO1E1R1A 240,597 52,62 6074 72781 1410704 1,783,278 18824 1802102
Profit/(Loss) for the year ExEd/ (58) - - - - 1138 11,385 (1363 1002
Other comprehensive income Hp2mbs
Items that may be reclassified subsequentiy to BRuiEN B2k
proftor loss: ZEf
—Bxchangs differences on translation of financia —BEBNEBIRRE
statements of foreign operations LEREE - - - 7745 - 7745 685 8430
—Bxchange differences on translation of —HEREBEDNTA
investment in associates LEAEE - - - % - B - B
—Exchange cifferences reclassflied on deemed —RiEHE-BRELA
dlisposal of an associate, net of tax RENARCEREE
(HBEE) - - - 39 - 39 - 39
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZEUEER - - - 8,132 11,385 19517 (678) 18839
Acquisition of non-controling interest inasubsidiary B -EHERE L
iR - - (691 - - (691) 691 -
Step acquisiton of a subsidiary BIWE-BNELT - - - - - - (10 (10
Partial disposal of interest ina subsidiary without loss ~ HE-HNBATBHES
of control [hiE:S SR - - 3878 - - 3878 (1421 2457
At 31 December 2017 RO17E12A31A 20,597 52,602 9.761 80913 1422089 1,805,982 17406 1,823,388

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of =
HK$1,298,511,000 (2017: HK$1,565,385,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

IS R R B AR S B IR SRR 2 4R 6 FifE
1,298,511,0007 7T (20174F : 1,565,385,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 8 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-i Technology Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The address
of its registered office and its principal place of business is located
at 12/F., The Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock

Exchange”).

The immediate holding company of the Company is Nan Hai
Corporation Limited (“Nan Hai"), a company incorporated and
domiciled in Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The directors consider the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Dadi Holdings Limited, a limited

liability company incorporated in Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is principally
engaged in the provision of enterprise cloud services. Details of
the principal activities of the Company'’s subsidiaries are set out in

note 16.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 104 to 263 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") which collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
financial statements include the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income which are measured
at fair values. The measurement bases are fully described in

the accounting policies below.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and impacts on
the Group's financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

21

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management'’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) made up to 31
December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases. The results of the subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of the
disposal, as appropriate.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and
losses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised l0sses on intra-group asset
sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is
also tested for impairment from the Group’s perspective.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency
with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

2. FEESTHEBE®E)

21

2.2

RBEYE ()
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HYBHREMETBERCEHERH
FARRE -
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A3 A2 TEHE -
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HEEBHBRIE(RERBERME)
FFAERAE EAMERE ©

RAEIAZ R REBEARRREZE
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R RIREARRER AR H R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 8 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee's pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Associates

FESHBERBE®)

24 BERT

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from
these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of
the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate has
been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the reporting date retranslation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into Hong Kong
dollars. Assets and liabilities have been translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into the Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure
have been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in equity.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 have been
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates.
Goodwill arising on acquisitions of foreign operations before
1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Other exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised in the exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of disposal
are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or l0ss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress, are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost
of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

5%

10% to 33-1/3%, or over lease
terms whichever involves
shorter period

10% to0 33-1/3%

Buildings

Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures
and equipment

Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned asset or
where shorter, the terms of the relevant lease.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Construction in progress represents assets under
construction and is carried at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation
commences when the construction work is completed and
the asset is ready for use.

The buildings comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
and the other portion that is held for administrative purpose.
As the portion held to earn rentals cannot be sold separately
and is insignificant, the building is classified as owner-
occupied property rather than investment property.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Operating lease prepayments and land use right

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The
determination if an arrangement is or contains a lease and
the lease is an operating lease is detailed in note 2.14.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease/right of use except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived by the Group from use of the land.

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill arising
on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for goodwill arising
on acquisition of investment in an associate is set out in note
2.4.

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the aggregate of the fair value of
consideration paid and the amount recognised for any non-
controlling interests, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Goodwiill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses (note 2.18). Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUSs, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination. A CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on
the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Impairment losses for goodwill recognised in an interim
period are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the
end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or CGU, any
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the calculation
of the gain or loss on disposal.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHRBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Other intangible assets and research and 29 HttBEEERMERAE

development costs
Other intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Computer software 4 years
Development cost 2-4 years
Licenses 10 years

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases
the future economic benefits embodied in the computer
software to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

Intangible assets, are tested for impairment as described
below in note 2.18.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Other intangible assets and research and
development costs (Continued)

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in
profit or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly
attributable to the development activities are recognised as
intangible assets provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

(Vi)

demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development along with an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. The costs of internally generated developments
are recognised as intangible assets. They are subject to the
same subsequent measurement method as externally
acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHRBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets 210 R EE

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirely when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or l0ss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"):
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective
interest rate method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial
assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 2REE (B)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018 BE2018F1 A1 AEEAZETIK
(Continued) x(E)
Equity instruments BRATA

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are measured at
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair
value, dividends and interest income are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") on investments in debt instruments that are
measured at amortised cost. ECLS are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses, which are measured as the present
value of the difference between the cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e. expected cash
shortfalls). The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at
the effective interest rate of the financial assets. The amount
of ECLs is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECLs for trade
receivables that result from transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 15. Lifetime ECLS represent the ECLS that
will result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The ECLS on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECLs when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. When the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition (i.e. stage 1), the Group is required to
measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs, which represents the
portion of lifetime ECLS that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. When the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition (i.e. stage 2) or when the financial
instrument is a credit-impaired financial asset (i.e. stage 3),
the Group recognised lifetime ECLS.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESTHBEHMEW
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 eRMEE (8)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018 BH2018F1A1HEERZE5TK
(Continued) xK(E)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) TR EET RIEEE(B)

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i)
the financial instrument has a low risk of default, (i) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group also
considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when it has
an internal or external credit rating of “investment grade”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESBERBE @)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 EREE (&)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018 BH2018F1A1HEERZE5TK
(Continued) xR (E)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

On the other hand, a financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower,

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

In addition, the Group considers that an event of default
occurs when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the Group). Irrespective
of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account. The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2018

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. Accordingly,
the comparative financial information provided continues to
be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.

The Group's accounting policies for financial assets other
than investments in subsidiaries and associates are set out
below.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— loans and receivables
—  available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESBERBE @)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 ERMEE (&)
Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1 HAERAZETH
(Continued) xR (E)

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If
any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial asset.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or
financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or 10ss in
the period in which they arise.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate and transaction cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for
inclusion in any of the other categories of financial
assets are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets.

All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or 10ss
arising from a change in the fair value excluding any
dividend and interest income is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
the available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment losses (see
the policy below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary instruments, until the financial
asset is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 EREE (8)
Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1 HAERAZETH
(Continued) xR (E)
Impairment of financial assets EREEHE

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor;

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the group
of financial assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status of debtors
in the group, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group, and the
failure to renegotiate the repayment terms of loan and
receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured
and recognised as follows:

(i)  Financial assets at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESTHBEHMEW
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210&MEE (8)
Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2018 M2018F 181 HAEAZETR
(Continued) K(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TREEZREE)

(i)  Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale
financial asset has been recognised directly in equity
and there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, an amount is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss as impairment loss. That
amount is measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in
profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are not
recognised in the profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. Impairment 10sses in respect
of debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversal of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit of loss.

Financial assets other than loans and receivables that are
stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are written off
against the corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of loans and receivables is considered doubtful but
not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery of loans and receivables is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
loans and receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks or financial institutions and
short-terms highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash
flow statement presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

2.12 Financial liabilities

The adoption of HKFRS 9 does not change the accounting
policies on the Group’s financial liabilities. The Group
classified its financial liabilities depending on the purpose for
which the liabilities were incurred.

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings,
amount due to immediate holding company, amount due to
a director, amounts due to associates, trade payables, other
payables and accruals and finance lease liabilities. They are
recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All
related finance costs are recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for finance costs (see note 2.20).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHRBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial liabilities (Continued) 212 sREE %)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value less the
capital element of lease repayments (see note 2.14).
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within other payables. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised if and when it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the current carrying amount
i.e. the amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation, where appropriate.

2.14 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Leases (Continued)

)

(ii)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets.

Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rental are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Assets acquired under finance leases

When the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments of such assets, are
included in property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligation under finance lease.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments
less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
SO as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

FESHBERBE®)

215 BERIAREE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.16 Revenue recognition

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHRBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recoghition (Continued) 216 WSER(E)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services
iS one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

() Bundled services

The Group provides a one-stop bundled services from
domain name registration, website design to website
constructions with specific add-on features to the
website to small- and medium-enterprise (“SME")
customers. The Group accounts for these contracts as
a bundle of goods and services and such bundled
services as a whole is considered as a single
performance obligation. Revenue from such bundled
services is recognised over time by reference to the
Group'’s inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation relative to the total expected input. Payment
received in advance that are related to the provision of
such bundled services not yet delivered to customers
are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

0

(i)

(i)

Bundled services (Continued)

As a result of the change in accounting policy for the
website design service, adjustments have been made
to opening balances at 1 January 2018 (see note 3.1).

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has made
reclassification from receipt in advance and deferred
revenue to contract liabilities since under HKFRS 15
when a customer pays consideration, or is
contractually required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the Group recognises
the related revenue.

Internet-based services

The Group renders various internet-based services
such as internet marketing product and domain name
registration service without further bundling with other
services to customers. Revenue from provision of
services is recognised when the services are rendered
according to the terms of the agreements. Payment
received in advance that are related to the provision of
internet-based services not yet delivered to customers
are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities.

HKFRS 15 did not result in significant impact on the
Group's accounting policies of internet-based services.

Corporate cloud service

The Group provides various corporate cloud products
such as global corporate email, cloud storage and
cloud computing products to SME customers. Revenue
from the corporate cloud services are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the contract period. Payment
received in advance that are related to the provision of
corporate cloud products not yet delivered to
customers are deferred and recognised as contract
liabilities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Corporate cloud service (Continued)

HKFRS 15 did not result in significant impact on the
Group's accounting policies of corporate cloud service.
However, upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
has made reclassification from receipt in advance and
deferred revenue to contract liabilities since under
HKFRS 15 when a customer pays consideration, or is
contractually required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the Group recognises
the related revenue.

Advertising service

The Group also provides advertising service to
customers, through its network resources in the
information technology industry, where the Group is
not the primary obligor, does not bear the inventory
risk nor have the ability to establish the price.

Service fee is recognised as revenue on a net basis at
the end of each month. Invoices are issued on a
monthly basis and are usually due on presentation.
HKFRS 15 did not result in significant impact on the
Group's accounting policies of advertising service.

Other income

— Rental income under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease;

— Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset; and

— Dividend is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to
fulfil a contract when those costs meet all of the following
criteria:

(@ the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

()  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the cost
relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHRBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recoghition (Continued) 216 WSER(E)

Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2018

The Group has applied HKFRS 15, but has elected not to
restate comparative information. As a result, the
comparative information provided continues to be accounted
for in accordance with the Group’s previous accounting

policy.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, rendering of
services and the use by others of the Group's assets yielding
interest, royalties and dividends, net of rebates and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised
as follows:

— Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer. This is usually taken as the time when the
goods are delivered and the customer has accepted
the goods;

— Sales of services are recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered, by reference
to completion of the specific transaction assessed on
the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion
of the total services to be provided. When services are
performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a
specified period of time, revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the specified period of time
unless there is evidence that some other method
better represents the stage of completion;

— Rental income under operating lease is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease;
— Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method; and

— Dividend is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Receipt in advance and deferred revenue

Receipt in advance and deferred revenue consists primarily
of deferred revenue from prepaid service fees received from
customers. Revenue from prepaid service fees are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

2.17 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
included in liabilities as deferred government grants in the
statement of financial position and are recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets. Government grants relating to income is
presented in gross under “Other operating income” in the
profit or loss.

2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiary, intangible
assets, property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments under operating leases, non-current portion of
deposits and interests in subsidiaries and associate are
subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill and intangible assets that are not available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they are impaired. All
other assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less
costs of disposal, and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money and the
risk specific to the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHRBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) 218 FeRMEERME(E)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, when an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those CGUs that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which goodwill
has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment 10ss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Retirement benefits

The Group operates several staff retirement schemes
for employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), comprising
defined contribution pension schemes and a
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") scheme. The assets
of these schemes are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered funds. The
retirement schemes are generally funded by payments
from employees and by the relevant subsidiaries of the
Group.

The subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
required to participate in the defined contribution
retirement scheme for their employees, organised by
the relevant local government authorities. They are
required to make contributions to the retirement
schemes at a rate of 10% to 22% (depending on the
locations of the subsidiaries) of basic salaries of their
employees and there are no other further obligations
to the Group.

Before 1 December 2000, the Group operated a
defined contribution retirement scheme (the “ORSO
Scheme”) in Hong Kong for all qualified employees. The
rate of contribution payable by the Group was 5% of
the individual employees’ monthly basic salaries. The
Group's contributions under the ORSO Scheme were
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who left the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. There are no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority has
approved the ORSO Scheme as a Mandatory Provident
Fund Exempted Occupational Retirement Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the "MPF Schemes Ordinance”). With effect
from 1 December 2000, the MPF Scheme was also set
up under the MPF Schemes Ordinance for existing staff
who opt for this scheme and eligible staff recruited on
or after that date. When the underlying staff elects the
MPF Scheme, pension scheme benefits attributed to
the staff under the ORSO Scheme remain unchanged in
the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, eligible
employees are required to contribute 5% of their
monthly basic salaries whereas the Group’s monthly
contribution will be 5% of the relevant employee’s
basic salaries with a maximum monthly contribution of
HK$1,500. There are no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions after payment of the fixed
contribution.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees. Liabilities
and assets may be recognised if underpayment or
prepayment has occurred and are included in current
liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a
short term nature.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
(iiiy Share-based employee compensation

Share option

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees.

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value
is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based on
the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied.
The cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to
achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value
of the options, measured immediately before and after
the modification, is also recognised in profit or loss
over the remaining vesting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEREFBRBE®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued) 219 BEEA (@)
(iiiy Share-based employee compensation (Continued) (i) URBIZNAZEERM(E)
Restricted Share Award Scheme R #IBR 17 2 Bt 2/

The Group operates a restricted share award scheme
(the "Restricted Share Award Scheme”) and restricted
shares may be granted under the Restricted Share
Award Scheme for remuneration of its employees and
directors (“Restricted Shares”).

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
Restricted Shares are measured at fair value. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of
the Restricted Shares granted. Its value is appraised at
the grant date and excludes the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting condition (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets, if any).

All services received is ultimately recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if
vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when Restricted Shares granted
vest immediately unless the expense qualifies for the
recognition as asset, with a corresponding increase in
“Share-based Payments Reserve” within equity. If
service or non-market performance conditions apply,
the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
Restricted Shares expected to vest. Non-market
performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of Restricted Shares
that are expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number of
Restricted Shares expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share-
based payments reserve.

Where a grant of Restricted Shares is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the grant is
recognised immediately. This includes any grant where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iiiy Share-based employee compensation (Continued)
Restricted Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The Restricted Shares awarded under the Restricted
Share Award Scheme are issued by the Company to
custodian at nil consideration. When the Restricted
Shares are transferred to the awardees upon vesting,
the related service costs of Restricted Shares vested
are debited to the “Share-based Payments Reserve”
and credit to “Share Capital”. Where the Restricted
Shares held for employee share-based payment
reserve are revoked and the revoked shares are
disposed of, the related proceed is transferred to
“Share Capital”.

2.20 Finance costs

Finance costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other finance costs are
expensed as incurred.

Finance costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of finance costs
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHRBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes 221 R8BIz B RE L%

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit including existing
taxable temporary differences will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

2.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of
those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used
in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSS, except
that certain bank interest income, gain on disposal of
subsidiaries, fair value loss or gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loss on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, other interest
income as well as corporate income and expenses which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of the
operating segment, are not included in arriving at the
operating results of the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but loans to immediate
holding company, certain cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income/available-for-sale financial assets. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are not
allocated to a segment which primarily applies to the Group’s
headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.
These include provision for tax, deferred tax liabilities and
amount due to immediate holding company/a director/an
associate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Related parties

A person or a close member of that person'’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(@)

(0)

(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(0)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 8 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

FESHBERBE®)

223 BAEAL ()
K- AT ZBiERRa g gz A
THEBETESINEERZZ
ATHENBERERXEXRE LB

and include: ¥E
(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; iy HmBALZTEEEBxR
FERERE

@iy  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; iy ZBALTZEBRRERZE
and ZFE R

(iiiy  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or (i) ZmBALTHZBATZES
domestic partner. IREBHECZENA °

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RMBEBMBEHREEAN(EBY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") B EZAER )

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 3.1 RMAFTBREITEBH B R

1 January 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new or revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January

%A — H2018F1H1H
BEM

RAEE  AEEBTEHXEANT
MESSFMASRMAELAEER
2018 F 1 B 1EMBZ FEHMZ
B TSR R A B R A 2 FET s s

2018: HESCEb G 3k
Annual Improvements  Amendments to HKAS 28, BB BREE BEGIENE 28T

to HKFRSS Investments in Associates DIAEZ016F REERTRAE
2014-2016 Cycle and Joint Ventures BEFERE PEIRE B
Amendments to Classification and Measurement of ERUERE MR ZR5
HKFRS 2 Share-Based Payment ERIE 2% 2 155] ZnBRitE
Transactions
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BANKREEREIR ¢RTE
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BRI BRE R REFPANNE
Customers F15%
Amendments to Revenue from Contracts with ERBRE &L REFPALNE
HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications to F155 284 (BB B REE
HKFRS 15) E15%255)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

&5 (BRUHRERE MRS LBIRE
288)-2BERY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018 12 A 31 H It & [E

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to
HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,
clarifying that a Venture Capital organisation’s permissible
election to measure its associates or joint ventures at fair
value is made separately for each associate or joint venture.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group is not a venture capital
organisation.

RAEBMEREER(EFBE
B|EER ) )

3.1 RANETR] RSB BB MR
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BAEM(E)
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TRAERI B B & N AARE < B9 fEH /N
B IEBSEE] - HRBRERES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 8 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHNERBUMBBREERN(EFEBY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) FIREAER |) (@)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 3.1 ERHFAIRLEITEBHBER

1 January 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; share-
based payment transactions with a net settlement feature
for withholding tax obligations; and a modification to the
terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from cash-
settled to equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group does not have any cash-
settled share-based payment transaction and has no share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding tax obligations.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

() Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together
all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: (1) classification and measurement; (2)
impairment; and (3) hedge accounting. The adoption of
HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 has resulted in changes
in accounting policies of the Group and the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018 12 A 31 H It & [E

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

0

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous HKAS 39
categories for financial assets of held to maturity
financial assets, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has
no material impact on the Group's accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivative financial
instruments. The impact of HKFRS 9 on the Group's
classification and measurement of financial assets is
set out below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 8 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

0

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade receivables
(that the trade receivables do not contain a significant
financing component in accordance with HKFRS 15), an
entity shall, at initial recognition, measure a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. A financial asset
is classified as: (i) financial assets at amortised cost
("amortised costs”); (i) financial assets at FVOCI; or (iii)
financial assets at FVTPL. The classification of financial
assets under HKFRS 9 is generally based on two
criteria: (i) the business model under which the
financial asset is managed and (ii) its contractual cash
flow characteristics (the “solely payments of principal
and interest” criterion, also known as “SPPI criterion”).
Under HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives is no longer
required to be separated from a host financial asset.
Instead, the hybrid financial instrument is assessed as
a whole for the classification.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018 12 A 31 H It & [E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective

1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

() Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and it has not

been designated as at FVTPL:

It is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that meet
the SPPI criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and it has not been
designated as at FVTPL:

It is held within a business model whose
objective is to achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that meet
the SPPI criterion.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

0

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment'’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. All other
financial assets not classified at amortised cost or
FVOCI as described above are classified as FVTPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI or FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018 12 A 31 H It & [E

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

0

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

FVTPL

Amortised
cost

FVOCI (debt
instruments)

FVOCI (equity
instruments)

FVTPL is subsequently measured at
fair value. Changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit
or loss.

Debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are
subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value. Dividend
income are recognised in profit or l0ss
unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

0

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

As of 1 January 2018, certain unguoted equity
investments and club membership were reclassified
from available-for-sale financial assets to financial
assets at FVOCI. These unquoted equity instrument
and club membership have no quoted price in an
active market. The Group intends to hold these
unquoted equity investment and club membership for
long term strategic purposes. In addition, the Group
has designated such unguoted equity instrument and
club membership at the date of initial application (the
“DIA") as measured at FVOCI. As at 1 January 2018, the
directors consider that there is no material difference
between the previous carrying amounts and the fair
values of the unquoted equity investment and club
membership.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

3. RMBEBMBRELEN(EEY

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) B EZER ) @)
3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 3.1 RAFTRETEBHBER

1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (Continued)

The following table summarises the original
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the new
measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for each class

of the Group’s financial assets as at 1 January 2018:

S XH — H2018FE1 818
BER(E)

ERMKHREEANEISR — &5
TR

() EBTARZDERAE(E)

T = Bt AN & [ 74 2018 55 1
B1HZz&E+mE ERE
BB ERIERRE
FFEEREBREREM KR
HERIFE IR HETELER -

Carrying Carrying
New amount as at amount as at
Original classification under classification 1January 2018 1 January 2018
Financial assets HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
REEREH BEEENE
REE#E EAE3E  REEREIR
BEEBETEN BB REER R2018E1818 H2018%E1818
SHEE K2 EEER FORZIER ZEAE ZEAEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER
Listed equity investments Held-for-trading FVTPL 103,500 103,500
IIRARE BIEEE BAREEFAEBRE
Unlisted equity investments Available-for-sale (at cost Fvocl 120 120
less impairment)
FLMRARE e BOAEETA
(RRARRETR) Hth2 ke
Club debenture Available-for-sale (at fair value) FVocCl 324 324
2fES AHNE (RALEENE) BAREEITA
Rl e
Loan to immediate holding Loans and receivables Amortised cost 1,046,644 1,046,644
company
MEZERARER ERREKIE B
Trade receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 9,585 9,585
[EWE 53R ERR KR Sz
Other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 125,151 125,151
A Bk ERIE BB
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and receivables Amortised cost 304,874 304,874
ReRERREEER BN REKHIE B
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s
impairment model by replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred
loss model” to the “expected credit losses model”.
HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise ECLS for trade
receivables, financial assets at amortised costs, and
debt investment at FVOCI earlier than HKAS 39. Cash
and cash equivalents are subject to ECLs model but
the impairment is immaterial for the current year.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured
on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLS:
these are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date:
and (2) lifetime ECLs; these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective interest
rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018 12 A 31 H It & [E

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLS are based on
the 12-months ECLS. The 12-months ECLS is the portion
of the lifetime ECLs that results from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECLs. When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLS, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 8 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For debt investment at FVOCI,
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income, instead of reducing the
carrying amount of the assets.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.

T \FEFR | PRABBESERLT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BY B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECLs model

@)

Impairment of trade receivables

As mentioned above, the Group applies the
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECLS
which adopts a lifetime ECLs for all trade
receivables. As at 1 January 2018, the Group's
gross trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$32,136,000. To measure the
ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The loss allowance as at 1
January 2018 was determined as follows for trade
receivables:

RMERMBRELEA(HFEY
B|EER D @

3.1 BT RLIETE BB KR
£ X8 — H2018F1H1H8
RBEXRE)
EEMBREENEIFE—SRT
B (&)

(i) ZEEEZHEE)

B EEEEX &

(@ EWESHERE
a0 _E AT - AR
FER BB RS 2R
FOMML AT ETE
ZEEE  2¥REKE
SHER A2 BIESE
BEEE - 1201841 A
1B AEEEKES
OB O£ BmY A
32,136,000 Jt ° A& &t
EEHEEEBE  BIK
B S5 EEREERE
BERRFEREHAH
S4B R20184F1 A1
B REKZESHREE

0-90days 91-180 days 181-270 days 271-360 days Overdue more

pastdue  pastdue
ok ok
0-90A 91-180 A

Expected credit loss rate BEREEEIER (%)
(%) 0%* 0%*
Gross carryingamount S (& (T57T)
(HK$'000) 3,474 4,025
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BERE(TAT) 10 1

* rounded to nearest percentage for disclosure
purpose only

TEBEBEENT
past due past due than 360 days Total
B k] k]
1812708 271-360B  360BLE Lo

1% 95%

480 23,603
22,463

)

* WEEHRER
A

El
Lo EERERS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 8 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECLs model (Continued)

@)

170 www.sino-i.com

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

Applying the lifetime ECLs model does not results
in the recognition of addition ECLs on 1 January
2018.

Impairment of loan to immediate holding
company

As at 1 January 2018, the Group’s loan to
immediate holding company amounted to
approximately HK$1,046,644,000 and the loan is
considered to be of low credit risk given that
periodic payments have been received with no
history of default. Furthermore, no adverse
change is anticipated in the business
environment in which the immediate holding
company is engaged. As such, the directors
consider that applying the 12-months ECLs model
does not results in the recognition of ECLs on 1
January 2018.

3. BMNEAUBREERN(EFBEH
FEZER |) @)

e HET S CHE R

£ X8 — BH2018FE181H

BEME)

EEMRREENEIE—S@MT

3.1

(&)

() EBEEZHEE)
FAAEEBREA & (E)

@)

F& W 5 kIR R B (A8)

EREHEHEERERE
18 3 £ 8 B0 2018
FIAVRERBEINE
HEERIS

HHEEERARNERZ
DEREN

MR2018%F1A81H - K
SEREEERAAE
K #91,046,644,000 7%
T BREREE AR
BEREERR  RAA
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T \FEFR | FEBBEEEARAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018 12 A 31 H It & [E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. BN ERMBHREERN(EABH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) BIEEL ) @)
3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 3.1 BRMFFIARBITEBHER
1 January 2018 (Continued) =28 — B2018%F1H81H
BEM(E)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued) ERMBEHREENFEIF—SRT
A (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) ZHEEZHEE)
Impact of the ECLs model (Continued) FAHEEEEEN & (E)
() Impairment of other receivables (€) HAbEYWIERE
As at 1 January 2018, the Group’s gross other R2018F1H1H » &
receivables amounted to approximately SEHMEWGRIREEE
HK$126,532,000 and these other receivables are #9/5126,532,00078 7T
considered to be low credit risk. Applying the ZEE R EIAE S
12-months ECLs model does not results in the REEBEREERR - &
recognition of addition ECLs on 1 January 2018. B2 AEEEEE

BRI & E B 2018
FI1ATBEREINTE
H{=EEIE -

(i) Hedge accounting (i)  #H @I R
Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no impact on the BT EERF G IA
Group as the Group does not apply hedge accounting THhestRIBHARERT
in its hedging relationships. EEMTE  REARREE

7 48 P L 34 )b B R 1B R 0
SRt -
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B %5 8 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision in
HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally adopted
without restating comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the
new ECLs rules are therefore not reflected in the
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, but are recognised in the statement of financial
position on 1 January 2018. This mean that differences
in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at 1
January 2018. Accordingly, the information presented
for 2017 does not reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9
but rather those of HKAS 39.

The following assessments have been made on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the
DIA of HKFRS 9:

. The determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held;

° The designation and revocation of previous
designations of certain financial assets and
financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL; and

° The designation of certain investments in equity
investments not held for trading as at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had low credit
risk at the DIA, then the Group has assumed that the
credit risk on the asset had not increased significantly
since its initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R 3k MY =
For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective

RAEBMEREER(EFBE
BEmEER ] @

3.1 RANETR] RSB BB MR

1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contract with Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts, HKAS
18 Revenue and related interpretations. HKFRS 15 has
established a five-steps model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at the amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
method without practical expedients. The Group has
recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS
15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at the DIA (that is, 1 January 2018). As a result, the
financial information presented for 2017 has not been
restated.

The following tables summarised the impact, net of tax, of
transition to HKFRS 15 on the opening balances of retained
earnings as follows (increase/(decrease)):

HEA — H2018F1H18
BAEM(E)

EEMBRELENFE 155 — KB
BEFEEHRE
FEMBHREENFIRMAE
BEHENENREESDN B
BastERE 185t s R ERER
B BEAWBRSEANFISHME
YRS ERR - UKEEFA
Ml AR - RIBB B BEMELE
AIF155% - W RREER
Hipl R & P EBE mek iR m A #
Bz KESRER -

AEBECRBRFFZEL(LEE
BRATTTRREBR) R E BT 5]
HFEAFESH - AREZ KR
FEREBMBRELERFISH 2
2R ERARENIIRER R H
(BN2018F1 A1 R) 2 RE & T H
VIESRFTEREE - UL - 312017 F
22 BERLRET -

TRBAEEZE BT B RS LR
FISHHRBRNBOEHRE W
CRB(HBHRE) (8O
D))

HK$'000
FExT

Retained earnings
Contract liabilities

REBF
BHRE

Impact at 1 January 2018

M2018F1 8182

2 4
FE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BY 85 8RR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z20184F 12 A31 A L F &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contract with Customers
(Continued)

The following tables summarised the impact of adopting
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018 and its consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2018.
There was no material impact on the Groups’ consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2018:

Line items in the consolidated R E BB KRS AR
statement of financial position as & 15 %% #Z 2018512 A
at 31 December 2018 impacted 31 A 2 &AM BERREE

3. RHEABMBEREERN(HFBEH
BEmEER ] @

3.1

Amounts
reported in

accordance

by the adoption of HKFRS 15:  HE &% : with HKFRS 15
RETEHBRE
ERE15%KE2HR
kx|
HK$'000
TAERT
Receipt in advance and deferred TR B s
revenue -
Contract liabilities Y=L 211,128
Total current liabilities REAELERE 529,357
Net current assets REEEFE 938,823
Total assets less current BEERRBERE
liabilities 1,563,503
Net assets BEEFE 1,531,768
Reserves i 1,298,511
Equity attributable to the FAREEARLES
Company's owners 1,539,108
Total equity AL 1,531,768
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RAHR] BB T BB M IR
HEA — H2018F1H18
AR ()

EEMBRELENFE 155 — KB
BEFEHWRE (B)

TREM AT BT 3RS 2R E
155R AL B R 201812 A31H
ZERE AR R M EEE 2018
FRANBLEFEZHEAERER
ZHE . KEBEZE2018F 12 A
JINALEFEZEARESTERKT
BEATE

Hypothetical Impact of
amounts under adoption of
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
BEEBETEL RAFBUMBEE
F18HzBBREHE ERFEI15H2TE
HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TER

196,331 (196,331)
= 211,128

514,560 14,797

953,620 (14,797)

1,578,300 (14,797)

1,546,565
1,313,308

(14,797)
(14,797)

1,553,905 (14,797)

1,546,565

(14,797)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BY B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contract with Customers
(Continued)

The impact on the consolidated income statement (increase/
(decrease)) for the year ended 31 December 2018:

3. &
BH

3.1

Amounts
reported

in accordance
with HKFRS 15

REEBIUBERSE
ERE 15K 2]

Revenue (L6

Profit before income tax Br TS RADE R

Income tax expense Fr{5#MA%

Profit for the year FRER

Profit attributable to: BUF AT EEAERF

— Owners of the Company — RREHEAA

— Non-controlling interests — FEERR R

Total comprehensive income FHEEEEETR
for the year

Total comprehensive income AREEBAELZA
attributable to owners et
of the Company

Earnings per share attributable to XA R %E ABESRER
owners of the Company

— Basic

— Diluted

— &R
—&3

A2
HK$'000
TER

1,012,450

394,146
(18,334)

375,812

377,452

(1,640)

375,812

296,146

297,926

HK cent
2l

ERAMBREEN(ETEY
H28 )@

RAFT ] S RIEE] B B MK
£ XH — H2018F1H81H
RBEM )
ERMEHRELEAFE155E — XKE
BEEAHWE (E)
HEHZE2018F1283MBIEFE 2
AWK CRD)) 2 &
=

Hypothetical Impact of
amounts under adoption of
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
BRESBETEL BEABBUBRE
F18 e BEEEE EUE1SH2HE
HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TER

1,019,876

401,572
(18,334)

383,238

384,878

(1,640)

383,238

303,572

305,352 (7,426)
HK cent HK cent
2l Al
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. BRMEAUMKHREERN(FEBH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) FIREAER |) (@)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 3.1 ERHFAIRLEITEBHBER

1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contract with Customers
(Continued)

From 1 January 2018 onwards, the Group has adopted the
following accounting policies on revenues:

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the good or
service is transferred to the customer. Depending on the
terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract,
control of the good or service may be transferred over time
or at a point in time. Control of the good or service is
transferred over time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customers;

o creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

J does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the good or service transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
good or service.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of the
following methods that best depict the Group’s performance
in satisfying the performance obligation:

o direct measurements of the value transferred by the
Group to the customer relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract; or

o the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contract with Customers
(Continued)

Details of the new significant accounting policies and the
nature of the changes to previous accounting policies in
relation to the Group's various goods and services are set

RAEBMEREER(EFBE
B|EER ) )

3.1 RAFTREIETBEEBM KR
EXEA — H2018F1H18
BAEM(E)

BRMBHEEAE 15K — XA
BEFEHWRE (B)
EASESEERKRBE AR
TREARREEBESTBORRT
TERE 2 HE ZFHIFHINNT

out below:
Nature of the products or services,  Nature of change in
satisfaction of performance accounting policy and impact
Note Products obligations and payment terms on 1 January 2018
EnRBEEEE  THEIRE HETBRRAESB2HER
et Em R AT FRAR K R2018F 1818 Z¥
(i) Bundled services  The Group provides a one-stop bundled ~ The change on accounting policy is

service from domain name registration,
website design to website constructions
with specific add-on features to the
website to SME customers. The Group
accounts for these contracts as a
bundle of goods and services and such
bundled services as a whole is
considered as a single performance
obligation. Revenue from such bundled
services is recognised over time by
reference to the Group’s inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance
obligation relative to the total expected
input. Payment received in advance
that are related to the provision of such
bundled services not yet delivered to
customers are deferred and recognised
as contract liabilities.

R AR 75 REBERANEETPRESEEM -
MULERETLAZE BB R E M hNTh BE 2 43k
Rz — iR - NREEE IS
BRERBERE R RRBEARR - Wikt
WARBEBRRE-—BLHET - KRB
ZARFRTE 2 Wam IS 2 E AR E G
TEERAAIR ARLSER B AV B TS MIEL 2 %
AT BEREFHETERR o 1R ATIREREL R & P 1R
AR 2 ZRARGAB 2 TRE
FEREIWHERRENAE -

mentioned in note 2.16.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15,
approximately HK$7,371,000 was
adjusted by decreasing retained
earnings and increasing contract
liabilities as at 1 January 2018.

In addition, the Group has made
reclassification from receipt in
advance and deferred revenue to
contract liabilities since under HKFRS
15 when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related
revenue.
SETECRE B 216 Rt o

RWE BN BHREERFE1557%E
R2018F1A18 » BARE & TR D
KEHaEENMmELFAERNESELY
/47,371,000 7T ©

EAN + AR5 B S TR U R IR R FE e 2
B BREGHNERE  RESRESR
BMBEMEERFEISHE - EEPX
NREXEHREANKER - F
A RN AR EERERE KSR &
2H -

www.sino-i.com 177



Sino-i Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 8 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contract with Customers

(Continued)
Note Products
B & Em

Nature of the products or services,
satisfaction of performance
obligations and payment terms
EmBRBHEE  THENRHE

RAS IR

RANEBUMBEREERN(EFBEY

FEZER |) @)

3.1 EMFHITRLBITIEBHBER
£ X8 — BH2018FE181H
BEME)
ERMEHREEAE15% — K
BEEAHWNEE(E)

Nature of change in
accounting policy and impact
on 1 January 2018
HETBRAESBZHER
R2018F1H1BZ®E

(i
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Internet-based
services

B BB BT AR

The Group renders various internet-
based services such as internet
marketing product, domain name
registration service without further
bundling with other services to
customers. Revenue from provision of
services is recognised when the
services are rendered according to the
terms of the agreements.

Payment received in advance that are
related to the provision of internet-
based services not yet delivered to
customers are deferred and recognised
as contract liabilities.
REEREFEFPRESEEHAERRE
(171l N 48 4 & B R 2 vm B 0308 o 11 PR
) W S — SR E M AR TS - 1R
ARG 2 W ER AR BR 177 ok (R SR ER (1 AR TS B
TR ©

PERTUCE R A& PR (15 R 3 2 BB
WETRIRIE A B 2 SR I 5 12 I e
RREMEaE-

HKFRS 15 did not result in significant
impact on the Group’s accounting
policies of internet-based services.

However, upon the adoption of
HKFRS 15, the Group has made
reclassification from receipt in
advance and deferred revenue to
contract liabilities since under HKFRS
15 when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related
revenue.
BEMBmMEEREISREARAEH
BB AENIRT SRR &
BATE -

A RAE BB REERFS
SRIZ - NGBS TEUCGRIR SR A Wt
EHNOEEANEE  RERRES
BUBRESERNERE EEFPX
NREXAORERINRER - B
B RRN AR EERER RS &
P
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 Dece

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contract with Customers

Nature of the products or services,
satisfaction of performance
obligations and payment terms
EmBRBHEE  THENRHE

RAS IR

B %5 AR B AL

mber 2018 #ZE 20184 12 A31 A ILFE

RAEBMEREER(EFBE
B|EER ) )

3.1 RAFTREIETBEEBM KR
EXEA — H2018F1H18
BAEM(E)
BRMBHEEAE 15K — XA
BEFEHWRE (B)

Nature of change in
accounting policy and impact
on 1 January 2018
HETBRAESBZHER
R2018F1H1BZ®E

(Continued)

Note Products

M= Em

(iif) Corporate cloud
products
TrEEZER

The Group provides various corporate
cloud products such as global corporate
email, cloud storage and cloud
computing products to SME customers.
Revenue from the corporate cloud
services are recognised on a straight-
line basis over the contract period.
Payment received in advance that are
related to the provision of corporate
cloud products not yet delivered to
customers are deferred and recognised
as contract liabilities.

AEERFNEERPRHEBEEE
Em(PINeReEER EFHFEE
AEEM) REEEXRERBK 2 Wan
BHRILREREEERER - R YR
AEPERHEHARXNZEXEERE M
ZNFREETRELEARBENEE -

HKFRS 15 did not result in significant
impact on the Group's accounting
policies of corporate cloud products.
However, upon the adoption of
HKFRS 15, the Group has made
reclassification from receipt in
advance and deferred revenue to
contract liabilities since under HKFRS
15 when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related
revenue.
BEMBMEEREISREAEE
BRCXEERZGTBRITEEXR
& o NI BRAMNE B S 2R
155 1& - AN K E TR IRIE Rk
EWHEFHEEENEE  RAR
BIEEEMBREENEI55 - E
EPXNRENEGHNATAIMNKE
- BEeERAEERRER NS
AIEASEIH] -
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contract with Customers

Nature of the products or services,
satisfaction of performance
obligations and payment terms
EmRBEELE  THEIRE

R AT FRAR K

RAEBMEREER(EFBE
B|EER ) )

3.1 RAFTREIETBEEBM KR
EXEA — H2018F1H18
BAEM(E)
EEMBRELENFE 155 — KB
BEFEHWRE (B)

Nature of change in
accounting policy and impact
on 1 January 2018
HEHBRAESBH2HER
R2018F1A1B2¥

(Continued)
Note Products
FEEE ER
(iv) Advertising
service
EE R
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The Group also provides advertising
service to customers, through its
network resources in the information
technology industry, where the Group is
not the primary obligor, does not bear
the inventory risk nor have the ability to
establish the price.

Service fee is recognised as revenue on
a net basis at the end of each month.
Invoices are issued on a monthly basis
and are usually due on presentation.
REEFRBENEARRITE CWBRE
RAEFPREHESRSG B AEEYT
IEEERBA - HEREGFERR -
THEETE(EE o

RIEENE ARG FEEEERS
Yegs - BEThig A% RBERHRE
2H -

HKFRS 15 did not result in significant
impact on the Group's accounting
policies of advertising service.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHNERBUMBBREERN(EFEBY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) FIREAER |) (@)

3.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 3.1 ERHFAIRLEITEBHBER

1 January 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group had not previously
adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the clarifications in this, its
first, year.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreignh Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining the
date of the transaction for determining an exchange rate to
use for transactions that involve advance consideration paid
or received in a foreign currency and the recognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability. The
Interpretations specifies that the date of the transaction for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on
initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part thereof) is the date on which the entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group has not paid or received
advance consideration in a foreign currency.

HEA — H2018F1H18
BAEM(E)

BRMBRELRNE 155 2B
— REFFENWGE (FBUBR
HERIE 1558 27F)

M BREERNFESI ZER]
BREEEEBIETERZT
X ERIELZEREA HRBE
RERTA]  RIBELHEZARE ©
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. BN ERMBHREERN(EABH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (Continued) FEZER |) @)
3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued 32 EEMEMKRERZHITRL
but are not yet effective BB BT HREER
The following new or revised HKFRSS, potentially relevant to TH| R ge AN EB SRR EB
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are Y ity g S - )
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the KM MR AREBINRERER
Group. The Group's current intention is to apply these REERW - AEBE BN ZEE
changes on the date they become effective. HEMERARAZEZE -
Annual Improvementsto  Amendments to HKAS 12, BRI BRE BEGHED
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  Income Taxes' ERI2015F 2 F125ER
2077 FRBEE 1B
g
Annual Improvementsto  Amendments to HKAS 23, BRI RE BESTER
HKFRSs 20152017 Cycle  Borrowing Costs' ERI20155EF ERREEMR
207 FEBEE ZIEET!
i
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business? EBTHREER  EEIER?
FEIF 2B
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with EAMKREEL HRB#WERE2
Negative Compensation’ FIR2IER REER
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets ERPHREELED REEHEKY
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and F0REEBGH LQRAIEELE
its Associate or Joint Venture? RREBFR BT HEEELE
ERER-E
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material? ARGHENE 1R BEAZEER?
and HKAS 8 REEEHER
EXL v H
Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in EHSHERE 8T RABLE AR
Associates and ZIEFT RELELZ
Joint Ventures'’ REER
HKFRS 16 Leases' ERMBREEN HE
E165%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income &5 (BB KSRE EREEZ
Tax Treatments' ZBZEY)- PHETE
BEERBT
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 1 MN2019F1A1BS 2 &R 25
EHAR A K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 2 R2020F 1 A1z 8MAB 2 F
B
3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for 3 ZEEFTREN20177F1 18
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date Z1%FAME 7 BA AR o Ak B HAZR
has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the BIEIE Bk - REEAZEEET
amendments continue to be permitted. YEAERT ©
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHNERBUMBBREERN(EFEBY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) FIREAER |) (@)

3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued 32 EEMEBERERZHTRE

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to
HKAS 12 which clarify that all income tax consequences of
dividends are recognised consistently with the transactions
that generated the distributable profits, either in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to
HKAS 23 which clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to
obtain a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after the
related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale
would become part of the funds an entity borrows generally
and therefore included in the general pool.

BT EBMBEREER (8)
BBV EREER2015FE 2017
FRHNFENE — FEGHER
F12HFBR 25T
FENEBREE NEMETH%
TEAERI B B 8 NRARE 2 2B 1B /N
B IEBESEE] - HPRBREAES
FHERIZE 125 2 B8R - BIBERE
2B EHERIEZEEERN DR
EHZRGER B HAREBLR
s EM AN EEREE RN ER
R o

BEBRMEREER2015FE2017
FHRHBFENE — FRAGHER
23 EERRZIERT
FEMEBEE TEMETH%
TEAERI B B N RRRE 2 BB fEH /N
BIEE2EE]  c HRBRERAED
FPERIE 23R 2 EE] - BB E
BEEREEMBEEDZEER -
WG B EE R IR E T
ABFERNEERDERSRBA -
Rl A ER—RERCZESEP—
By - HULET A —RRARR -
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHNERBUMBBREERN(EFEBY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) FIREAER |) (@)

3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued 32 EEMEBERERZHTRE

but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with
negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income if
specified conditions are met — instead of at fair value
through profit or loss.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHNERBUMBBREERN(EFEBY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) FIREAER |) (@)

3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued 32 EEMEBERERZHTRE

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is
material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users.

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-term
interests (“LTI") in associates or joint ventures which form
part of the net investment in the associates or joint ventures
and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI before the
impairment losses guidance within HKAS 28.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued

RAEBMEREER(EFBE
B|EER ) )

32 ERMEMKRERZHITRNE

but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a
single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and
interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and presents them in the statement of
cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the lease.
This accounting treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHNERBUMBBREERN(EFEBY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) FIREAER |) (@)

3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued 32 BHEMGENAKRERZHITHE

but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a
lessee of leases for a number of properties which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss
over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 43(b), as at
31 December 2018, the Group's future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
HK$49,518,000 for properties under operating leases, the
majority of which is payable either within 1 year or between
2 and 5 years after the reporting date. Some of these
amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a more
detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets
and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on
adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for any
leases entered into or terminated between now and the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHNERBUMBBREERN(EFEBY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) FIREAER |) (@)

3.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued 32 BHEMGENAKRERZHITHE

but are not yet effective (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12,
Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect the
effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether
to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together based on which approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume
the tax authority will examine amounts that it has a right to
examine and have full knowledge of all related information
when making those examinations. If the entity determines it
is probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, then the entity should measure current and
deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity determines
it is not probable, then the uncertainty in the determination
of tax is reflected using either the "most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of adopting the above standards and amendments to
existing standards to the Group. Except as described above,
the directors anticipate that the application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation will have no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
performance and positions and/or the disclosures to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

188 www.sino-i.com

BT BB Y BHEER (@)
B (BB BREREEES) -
REF23R — IEHERZ TR
E

ZRBE BRI R ERE T
I 2 NEE EREIES  REE
SRTERIFE 125G TR R M
SR o

REZRE  BRAEEMEMHE
TEESBATEERARE - AE
EFRRNEE 2 fRTTA - BEE
TEBRRMGEERERE A ER
MZEE WHEEL DdEREE
EAEMEHRBER - HWERETE
MR e — B T ERIA
R RIEREIREENGRRE
BBz T A ENRRELER
e MEREENISHE TR ek
X-ATHEMERE - AIRA
[Alge R R [RHAE] MESD
RE R ETRR TN EE MROR A Z TS
ARREERE 2 MM -

AEBE D ETFRHEERMA L &R &
ETHAKEBRARNZEE - 17
LitFESN - ERFEHEBEAFTR]
BB B RS ER R EBRTIA K2
BIeUAKE 2 maMBRER
HRK, SR EBRE T BERERZ
BEEMBREATE -



T \FEFR | FEBEELAERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life, and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, 5% to
33-1/3% per annum and 10% to 50% per annum,
respectively, commencing from the date on which the assets
are available for use. The estimated useful life reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The measurement of the ECLs allowance for financial assets
measured at amortised cost is an area that requires the use
of significant assumptions about future economic conditions
and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers
defaulting and the resulting losses). A number of significant
judgements, including determining the criteria for significant
increase in credit risk, are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECLs. Details about
the judgements and assumptions used in measuring ECLS is
set out in note 2.10 to these financial statements. Changes
to these estimates and assumptions can result in significant
changes to the timing and amount of ECLS to be recognised.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)
Impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.18. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been
determined based on value in use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates about future cash
flows and discount rates. In the process of estimating
expected future cash flow management makes assumptions
about future revenues and profits. These assumptions relate
to future events and circumstances. The actual results may
vary and may cause a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of goodwill within the next financial year.
Determining the appropriate discount rate involves
estimating the appropriate adjustment for market risk and
for asset specific risk factors. Details of the estimates of the
recoverable amounts of CGUs containing goodwill are
disclosed in note 18.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting
date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or CGU and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018 12 A 31 H It & [E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4., EESIHEFTRHAE @)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 4.1 EESTHATREBR(E)

(Continued)
Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxes and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises taxes based on estimates of the likely outcome
with reference to current tax laws and practices. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income taxes and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses will be recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and taxation in the periods
in which such estimate is changed.

BNEABE R AR B H

AEBEZNBENPEMAEN
BERER BRI AR
ZESEAEHEAHE - —RER
BREPAARER S MEHEEAREY)
BEERKDE - AEEZ2EHRITH
ERER - RIBAFT AL
RERTIEA - MRS FERK M
HEFNREZSEIR - HEHE
KRB A RETE BREZ FAEH
AR AT IRAS -

EEEBRAAEFEIAERER
SHIRTAER T A 2 RIRERR
A RIEREE R EENHIEA
ERERCRERAEE - E1EH
HREGEFETR  ZEZRHT
ENEHHHRESH M ZRE
MIAEERRIA 2 HER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies
Research and development costs

Careful judgement by the Group’s management is applied
when deciding whether the recognition requirements for
development costs have been met. This is necessary as the
economic success of any product development is uncertain
and may be subject to future technical problems at the time
of recognition. Judgements are based on the best
information available at each reporting period. In addition, all
internal activities related to the research and development of
new software products are continuously monitored by the
Group’s management.

Control through contractual arrangement

Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in 1t T4k
B ERMAR AR (Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information
Company Limited) (“Xinnet”) and its existing subsidiaries
(collectively as “Xinnet Group”), the Group is able to control,
recognise and receive all the economic benefits of the
business of Xinnet Group as the Group (1) shall have all
requisite power and unrestricted rights, acting as a principal,
to control and manage all aspects, at its sole decision and its
own benefit, over Xinnet Group by virtue of the power of
attorney; and (2) shall have right to assume all profits of
Xinnet Group under the management and technology
services agreement. In view of the foregoing reasons, the
Group has determined that it has the practical ability to
unilaterally direct the relevant activities of Xinnet Group and
significant benefits derived from Xinnet Group and therefore
has consolidated Xinnet Group as wholly-owned subsidiaries.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5.

@)

T \FEFR | PRABBESERLT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BY B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

The Group's revenue is derived from contracts with (a)

customers of enterprise cloud services.

In respect of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018, approximately HK$38,495,000 and
HK$973,955,000 were transferred to the customers at point

in time and over time respectively.

Wz e H AR WA

AEEWERACEERBZEP
B8R -

AEBEZE2018F12A31 B ILF
€ 2 W25 #) 38,495,000 78 JT A —
FEBERERS - 49973,955,000
BRI EETEEERS -

Other operating income: (b)  HAbgLEWA -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 2,733 1,998
Other interest income on financial BEEN AT EC S REE
assets measured at amortised cost 2 HAb R B U A 96,154 97,600
Dividend income & EWA 2,236 -
Fair value gain on financial assets BARBEFABREY
at fair value through profit or loss SRYBEAR BEKE 2,837
Exchange gain, net b Uk 2= 5 R 4,261
Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HE&EW% - BE R HBE
equipment pdl € -
Government grants (note) AT R (BT 3E) 1,822
Rental income HEBA 21,532
Refund of value-added tax and BER N E TR
business tax 13,433
Reversal of provision for impairment FEW B 5 kI8 B B E Rl
of trade receivables -
Reversal of provision for impairment H b e W OB R E R B R
of other receivables 78 21,142
Sundry income FETEWA 1,641 3,082
157,866 167,707

Note: The amount represented grants to subsidise the development of
IT business in the PRC, of which the entitlement was

unconditional.

ffet  ZERREPEETERERE
Bewmbt ZRERFAEZENS

HAGRLE -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The board of directors (the “Board”) has identified the enterprise
cloud services as the only business component in internal
reporting for their decisions about resources allocation and
performance review.

2EHER
BER((EER ) BRLEBRB IR
SHIRTEERD B RKRTEMAIERT
WP I — ERER S o

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Represented)
(geE:5)
Reportable segment revenue Al 2o HpU 1,012,450 833,245
Reportable segment loss before income tax 7] 2375 2F% PS5 AT E 18 (102,534) (50,440)
Bank interest income HRITHEHA 2,372 846
Other interest income on financial assets  IREER A B 2 RMEE Y
measured at amortised cost HAF BN 95,861 97,009
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR W 405,865 -
Depreciation and amortisation e R i (2,077) (2,945)
Exchange gain i 5w 25,290 4,357
Dividend income A S A 2,236 -
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets BARBEFABREREZSH
at fair value through profit or loss BEEALEEEER) WS (11,743) 2,837
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HEZAABEFABREY
fair value through profit or loss THMEEER (1,309) -
Reversal of impairment loss on other H b pe IR RV E S B R D
receivables 78 -
Finance costs B E A AR (3) @)
Unallocated corporate expenses AN ERT (19,890) (26,827)
Profit before income tax bR ET 1S B A& A 394,146 24,833
Reportable segment assets AE2MHBEE 502,754 1,187,978
Loans to immediate holding company MEEZERARER 1,484,107 1,046,644
Financial assets at fair value through BAREEFABER
profit or loss ZERMEE 47,765 103,500
Cash and cash equivalents RENERRSEER 54,152 162,913
Available-for-sale financial assets AHECREE = 324
Financial assets at fair value through BAAEER AEMEE R
other comprehensive income L EREE 324 -
Other financial and corporate assets EmemhrEEaE 3,758 5,343
Group assets EEEE 2,092,860 2,506,702
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. THER @
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
(Represented)
(geE5))
Reportable segment liabilities B 5= 352,225 502,157
Amount due to immediate holding company /& & #1%2i% A 515408 33,544 17,298
Amount due to a director R—BEERIE 532 -
Amount due to an associate R —[EE & R B FIR 5,490 5,492
Provision for tax TRIARE M 158,591 145,957
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBAG 4,475 5,680
Other corporate liabilities EMEaE 6,235 6,730
Group liabilities SEAE 561,092 683,314
Additional segment information Mooy EpE
Bank interest income HITH S A 361 1,152
Other interest income on financial assets IR At EZ SREE Y
measured at amortised cost EmF 2 A 293 591
Finance costs BhE A AR (2,124) (8,14¢6)
Share of results of associates i N E (6,815) (1,040)
Depreciation and amortisation of FeREEE REH
non-financial assets (57,448) (65,414)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEWE 5B IR R EEIEREE
receivables 682 -
Reversal of impairment loss on E e R R B RSB
other receivables = 21,142
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEREER (3,620) (5,530)
Written off of intangible assets B E EMH (1,356) -
Additions to non-current assets FRRBIFRBEE
during the year 57,574 70,866
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % 2018 F 12 A 31 HILF[E

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group's revenue from external customers and its non-current
assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into the
following geographical areas:

6.

DEBER (@)

REBE A I TP 2 W R EIFRE
BE(EBTARINZRTIIRES -

Revenue from external Specified
customers non-current assets

REHIMEF 2 W= EEFRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET TERT THET
— Mainland China (domicile) — B Putt (E ) 1,012,349 830,777 262,022 852,233
— Hong Kong — &5 101 2,468 5,339 7,218
1,012,450 833,245 267,361 859,451

The geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based
on the physical and operating location of the assets. The Company
is an investment holding company incorporated in Hong Kong
where the Group has the majority of its operations and workforce
in Mainland China, and therefore, Mainland China is considered as
the Group’s country of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures
as required by HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did
not derive more than 10% of the Group's total revenue from any
single customer.

BEPMEMIZREREIERTEZ
WEE D - EWEFRDEEMAEM IR
BEZERMEEHEE D - KRFR
REBEBEMKLZRERBR AR KE
BAHDEHRE THMRHEAM -
At - SAEL BB M| E LA E 85K
[(REDE) 2 WEMS - AEEEHE
M AR E 2 MBI o

HE2018FE K20177F 12 A31TBILEE -
AREGTEATAE -FEFREBBAR
=@ 4a U5 10% 2 ek o

FINANCE COSTS 7. BMERAK
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest on bank loans IRITERZFIE 8,137
Interest on finance leases BEHEZFE 13
Amount recognised in profit or loss RiE=RER 2SR 8,150
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. KRETEH AR
The Group's profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ REBEBRFEHRA SN DE&M%G (5
(crediting): VRNZE=S=T IChiE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Represented)
(s ES)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN < 3,194
Depreciation of owned assets* HEEENE 49,051
Depreciation of leased assets* THEEETE 191
Operating lease charges on land THREF EEHEER
and buildings 45,075 39,941
Annual charges of prepaid operating KERET 2HENFEEER
lease payments* 367 513
Cost of sales and services provided $HE MIRHARTS 2 AR 158,095 154,847
Amortisation of other intangible assets* HEib & A ey 22,853 18,604
Property, plant and equipment written off* — ¥72£ - &= & R s * 77 4
Research and development expenses* 9T N B EE AL * 84,497 63,592
Impairment loss on intangible assets* | EERERE* 3,620 5,530
Intangible assets written off* BB E M > 1,356 -
Reversal of impairment loss on FEWNE 2 F IR R E R 1B E
trade receivables ((3:73)] -
Reversal of impairment loss on H b pe IR R E S B
other receivables (78) (21,142)

* included in other operating expenses

FEAEME SR
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrEHmx
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET
Hong Kong profits tax BEBEFER
— tax charge for the year — FRBIAEZH 10,532
— under-provision in respect of prior years — LA EERE T 1,040
10,532 11,572
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") B EFTET ([REMEH])
— tax charge for the year — FABREZH 4,164
— over-provision in respect of prior years — — LA{T &[S BB EE -
4,164
Deferred tax (note 31) FEERTE (HFE31) (925)
Income tax expense FriS®if > 14,811

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Hong Kong profits tax has
been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year.

PRC EIT has been provided on the estimated assessable profits of
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China at 25% (2017: 25%),
unless preferential rates are applicable in the cities where the
subsidiaries are located.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FiEHMAXw@
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit REAMERAE 2SR EEe S
at applicable tax rates: Az 8% -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT

Profit before income tax B 1S 5 BV ) 394,146 24,833
Tax on profit before taxation, calculated 3= E BRI 7% Rl AR R = F

at the rates applicable to profits in WA ERGTE ZBRTLA

the tax jurisdictions concerned Mz BiIE 57,522 384
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses MRS 2 RiET & 18,058 1,795
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBBRAZ R E (70,216) (5,725)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERARBARFEIB

recognised MsTE 14,012 18,381
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BT RERB BB

previously not recognised ik 2 (313) (1,064)
Tax effect of temporary differences FERLRHEZBIHGTE

not recognised (728) -
(Over)/Under-provision in respect NEFE (BERE),

of prior years BETR (1 1,040
Income tax expense FrSBif X 14,811
DIVIDENDS 10. K&

A special dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017
of 0.5 HK cents per share, amounting to a total dividend of
approximately HK$99,573,000 was proposed and approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2018.

On 11 July 2018, the Company declared a special dividend of 2.3
HK cents per share, amounting to approximately HK$458,034,000
in aggregate for shares in issue to the shareholders listed on the
register of members of the Company as at 27 July 2018.

20185 A30 B BT 2 AR A REAE
FREERMMERBZ=2017F12 A31
B IFF R B B8R 0.5 - AP
fi% B4 F£#999,573,0008 7T °

R2018F7 A11H » KRB ETHR
DB 201847 A27 B &5 AR TR
HMZ RS IRERIREEMR 235 -
BN& $£49458,034,00058 7T ©
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE 11.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company g5t E & I E 7R K 58 B ) 2
for the purpose of basic and diluted ZAYNEIE? ¥ S DN X eyl
earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary AT EEREARRR 2 Lk

shares for the purpose of basic hnkEFHE
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares LA TNIE B Frif RIB/E 58 T
in respect of: TERE

— Restricted Shares — PR &I

HEtEEREERN 2 BBk
JilltE B2k

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

BREF
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
11,385
Number of shares
BHEE
2018 2017
‘000 ‘000
T T %
19,914,505 19,914,505
%
8,189 -
19,922,694 19,914,505

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 is based on the profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$377,452,000 (2017: HK$11,385,000)
and on the weighted average number of approximately
19,914,505,000 (2017: 19,914,505,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year after deducting the number of shares held by a
custodian under the Restricted Share Award Scheme (2017:
ordinary shares in issue during the year).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the calculation of diluted
earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$377,452,000 and
on the adjusted weighted average number of approximately
19,922,694,000 ordinary shares in issue during the year, being the
weighted average of number of ordinary shares of approximately
19,914,505,000 used in basic earnings per share calculation and
deemed vesting of shares awards of approximately 8,189,000
existing during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the diluted earnings per

share was the same as the basic earnings per share as there was
no potential dilutive ordinary share in issue.

200 www.sino-i.com

HZE2018F 12 3B ILFEZ2ERE
KER RN QG A ARG R
377,452,000 7T (2017 4 : 11,385,000 78
T0) MR E BT E AR pRE B (48
MR — B8 ARBER S A () 2B+ 2
BEZRMHER)(2017F : FRE T
T AR ) 4919,914,505,000 A% (2017 4F
19,914,505,000 f&) 5T &5 H -

HE2018F12A3MHILFE - SRE
SERAFTDEANR G HEE ARG F AR T
#9377,452,000 BT R FAE ZITEL B
45 8 B 00 B 15 849 19,922,694,000 A%
(BPEH & &SRR E A 2 F) fr 3 X i A% N
B E#19,914,505,000 A% K F A IR B 15 1

55 8 2 B i 22 B 49 8,189,000 % ) &t B 15
H o

HE2017F12A31MBIEFE AR
EEABTHEYEZDBRITEER &

BRE

SR SR REREERFER -



—E-)\FEFR | PERBEEERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY B R M A
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12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 12. RERAMAX (BRESEHE)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Represented)
(s &%)
Directors’ fee (note 42(a)) ExmaE (3E420) 462 456
Wages and salaries ITERES 664,951 576,712
Pension costs — defined RREKA — TREENKETE
contribution plans 46,119 38,275
Other employee benefits (note 29) EfbiE BEF (H5E29) 41,193 -
Share-based payment expense A 2 X 178 -
Staff welfare BT EF 63,876 53,508
816,779 668,951
Less: Amounts capitalised in other B EMBEEEEERN 2R
intangible assets (27,086) (19,468)
Total employee benefit expenses EERAMAY 58 (789,693) 649,483
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BEREE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
HEME
£ HR - )
B RERRME AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEr FEx TR
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1818
Cost AR 659,840 258,119 5,296 923,255
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (115,865) (230,676) (4,974) (351,515)
Net carrying amount RERE 543,975 27,443 322 571,740
Year ended 31 December 2017  HZ 2017512 AMBLEE
Opening net carrying amount SR A E 543,975 27,443 322 571,740
Additions AE 22,309 25,051 - 47,360
Disposal & - (49) - (49)
Step acquisition of a subsidiary FHRE-EHERR
(note 33) (P3E33) - 74 - 74
Write-off isH - @ - @
Depreciation & (35,192) (13,728) (322) (49,242)
Exchange realignment ERER 40,790 1,827 - 42,617
Closing net carrying amount HRREFE 571,882 40,614 - 612,496
At 31 December 2017 and R2017512A318%
1 January 2018 201851810
Cost A 732,615 290,397 5,169 1,028,181
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (160,733) (249,783) (5,169) (415,685)
Net carrying amount REFE 571,882 40,614 - 612,496
Year ended 31 December 2018  #Z 20181231 HLLEE
Opening net carrying amount HBEmEE 571,882 40,614 612,496
Additions NE - 30,595 30,595
Disposal € = (4) (4)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34)  HEME A (HizE34) (541,158) (3,853) (545,011)
Write-off isH - (77) (77)
Depreciation Vil (20,943) (15,362) (36,305)
Exchange realignment BHESR (6,778) (2,777) (9,555)
Closing net carrying amount IR FE 3,003 49,136 52,139
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H
Cost B 4,768 277,223 287,160
Accumulated depreciation Z2:E (1,765) (228,087) (235,021)
Net carrying amount RERE 3,003 49,136 52,139
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, certain buildings of the Group amounting
to HK$571,784,000 were charged to secure banking facilities as
detailed in note 45(a).

The Group's motor vehicles and furniture, fixture and equipment in
respect of assets acquired under finance leases are fully
depreciated as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER
OPERATING LEASES

The Group's interests in leasehold land/land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their carrying amounts are
analysed as follows:

13. ¥  BERRXRE®)

R2017F12A318 &N £ B 2 &
571,784,000/ 7T 2 & FEFE B IR
TTRVEEIRTR - 1B R IR 45() ©

R20184F 201712 A31H » A& E
EEMEMEBETREEE 2 AEI
REM - EERIECE2ENE -

14. FEHET AN HEEE

AEBNEE LM, TR s
ERMNEEHEER - EREESTOT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FiET

At 1 January R1A1H 22,726
Annual charges of prepaid operating FEMEEHEBFEXH

lease payments (513)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HEME AR (M5F34) -

Exchange realignment [ 5 =58 1,690

At 31 December R12A831H 23,903

As at 31 December 2017, certain prepaid land lease payments
under operating leases amounting to HK$23,707,000 were charged
to secure banking facilities as detailed in note 45(b).

R20177F 128318 ETKREHEET
2 Y £ & £ 23,707,00058 7T 2 5t
ESERITRVE MBI - sH18 RITE45(0)
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15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS/ 15. AItEESRMEE BROANREBE
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH ARt EHKEzEMEE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
2018 & 20184 2017 £
12H31H 1A1H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHT
Available-for-sale financial assets At HELREE

— Club debenture —gAMES - 324
— Other unlisted equity investments  — Efth Ik AR AR E - 275
- 599
Less: Provision for impairment B ORE R - (155)
- 444

Financial assets at fair value BAREBEFAHM

through other comprehensive EEKEZ
income SRMEE

— Club debenture — gATES 324 -
— Other unlisted equity investments ~ — H i 3E F AR ARIRE 120 -
444 -
Approximately HK$444,000 were reclassified from available-for- MBS ERELERFIHRE B
sale financial assets as financial assets at fair value through other 20181 H1H » #7444,0007% 7T 5 8 M
comprehensive income as at 1 January 2018 upon adoption of AHHECHEEENHDBRZAAE
HKFRS 9 as detailed in note 3.1 to these financial statements. Bt AEfh2EKEZSREE 715
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 are

16. RMIB AT 2R
MR2018FE12ANBZ T EWE A A

as follows: BUR
Country/place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued
registration and and paid-up Percentage held by Principal
Name operations share capital the Company activities
MR FERRE 2RTR
=y REER MR BRERA 2B FARBEDL TEXK
Directly Indirectly
B &

China Enterprise ASP Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 100 Investment holding
(“CE ASP") HK$14,037,400

HEI R EBERERAR ) 14,037,400 7T REER
(ThErEHE] ZE B

Dadi Media Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of 100 - Investment holding
("Dadi Media") HK$2

R EHFRAA e 2B EER RAERR
([ R fEHE])

Hongkong New Media Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 100 Investment holding
Interactive Advertising Co., HK$100 and information
Limited technology

business

BRFORKEEEES ) 100872 Eidk BEER R A
BRRAT] R R

Robina Profits Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share of 100 - Investment holding

US$1 each
Robina Profits Limited AEREBRREHE 1REREE REER
1% Eiblk

P ARERMHBR AT PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Information

(“"CE Dongli") (note a) RMB242,369,720 technology
business
HEBARERHERLAR HRBRAARE BB ERES
(T8N ]) (Fista) 242,369,720 7T
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

16. RHB AT 2R (%)

Country/place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued
registration and and paid-up Percentage held by Principal
Name operations share capital the Company activities
HEmMARL R ERTR
a8 RERAR BEREZFHE KARFFESL FTEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE L
ERFAKBESARAR  PRC Paid-up capital of - 90.10 Information
(note b) RMB21,000,000 technology
business
ERFREESEERAR H HEBRAARE AR ER
(PFf3Eb) 21,000,000 7T
MEEREERMEBRAR PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Information
(note b) RMB50,000,000 technology
business
MBEBERRNBRAR F HEBRAARE AR ER
(PFf3Eb) 50,000,000 7¢
LRI REI (= S PRC Paid-up capital of - N/A*  Information
BRAF (note b) RMB45,000,000 technology
business
LR R (5 ST H BEBRAARE TEBr BRBMBEESR
ARAE (D) 45,000,000 7T
RESAERZERAR  PRC Paid-up capital of - 98.44 Information
(“Chengdu Gouyongyun”) RMB2,000,000 technology
(note b) business
PRSI ERHE B R A A H BEBRAARE AR ER
(IR EMAZ ) (FiFED) 2,000,000 7T
POEBRIREER(JER)  PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Investment holding
B AF (note b) HK$500,000
RRMBEERE (LR o R REER
BRAR (KEED) 500,000 % 7T
* controlled through structured arrangement with effective interests of * BB P - B R A 100%

100%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2018 which, in the opinion of the Board, principally
affected the Group's results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Board, result in particulars

17.

of excessive length.

Notes:

a. This subsidiary is registered as joint stock limited company under the law

of PRC

b. These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability company under the

law of PRC

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

16. RKE R B 2z ()

FRINHARRFR2018F12H31H 2
MEAR MEFERR XEMEBA
AYHARBEAFEEEBRIBZER
BRASEEEFECERID - EF
R RHEMMBARZFESE

Wi

a.  EZMBRARRETEZEZIMAKROER

R A]

b. REMBLRREREIERFMAERE
FRF

17. RBEE QR 2 Em®

Balance at 1 January
Investment cost

Step acquisition of a subsidiary

Share of results of associates
Exchange realignment

1A R Z 4R
BEMA

FE B — B R
L NG E

PE A EE

Balance at 31 December

W12 31 B 248k

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TAT
41,128 235
- 42,392

= (40)
(6,815) (1,040)
689 (419)
35,002 41,128

The carrying amount of interests in associates can be analysed as

follows:

REE N R 2 w2 FREER DT

Share of net assets
Goodwill

P R
P

Balance at 31 December

W12 A 31 B 248k

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
(Represented)

(&=&5))

12,713 17,618
22,289 23,510
35,002 41,128
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REFE R TR 2= ()
Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are MN20184F 2017412 A31H T B4
as follows: EEET

Particulars of

Place of issued and Percentage of interest held Nature of
Name incorporation paid-up capital by the Group business
ERTRBE
=g S AR 3L it B B&z#E FrEEfERERESL ERnE
2018 2017
Genius Reward Hong Kong Ordinary share of 50%  Inactive
Company Limited HK$200
("Genius Reward")**
Genius Reward ey 20078 T Limhk EmED
Company Limited

(['Genius Reward]) **

T4 (RED) (5 B BT A% D PRC Paid-up capital of 10%  Information
BRAF ("Haowa")** RMB5,000,000 Technology
(note) business

SR (B AR (E E R TiRtD HREBRAR AAREES
BRAT (47 ]) ** AR #5,000,0007T
(BfE)

FRCERR B (= B R Al PRC Paid-up capital of 30%  Information
BRA T ** RMB1,977,429 Technology

business

BXERBA R (5 BT HE R BB RES
BRRAF** AR#1,977,429 7T

IRSFEEREARAR  PRC Paid-up capital of 50%  Information
("Yigimai")** RMB93,255 Technology

business

FTRGEEREAERRRF  HEH HERE BABRES
([SHBE])** AR 93,255 7T

** ynlisted limited liability company * JEEMAREERT

Note: B

The equity interest of Haowa held by the Group is less than 20%. However, the NS B FTIS A 4 HE A8 2 AR i D 20% o PATH + AR

Group has the right to appoint one director in the board of directors of Haowa EEAERZTITERESSEP —FEE A

and thus the directors of the Company consider that it has significant influence NRAEERREHTE@REEATESN - Bilt -

over Haowa. As such, the Group has accounted for Haowa as an investment in REBEFITEMARIER BB E QR ZIKE -

an associate.
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The summarised financial information of the Group's individually
immaterial associates extracted from their management accounts
are as follows:

17. REEE DT 2 REHE ()

BERASEENTER 2B ERRZH
BEM(HaEEREE) BT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Revenue A 25,462 896
Loss for the year FHEIE (26,257) (1,437)
Other comprehensive income HEme2Elas (419)
Total comprehensive income FHEW =BT (26,257) (1,856)

The Group has discontinued recognising its share of loss of Genius
Reward and Yigimai. The amount of unrecognised share of loss of
the Genius Reward for the year and cumulatively unrecognised
share of loss of Genius Reward amounted to HK$394,000 (2017:
HK$397,000) and HK$7,783,000 (2017: HK$7,389,000) respectively.
The amount of unrecognised share of loss of the Yigimai for the
year and cumulatively unrecognised share of loss of Yigimai
amounted to HK$7,000 (2017: HK$124,000) and HK$131,000 (2017:
HK$124,000) respectively.

REEE B KR EFERE FE (S Genius Reward
S rEZEE FRABREMN
Genius Reward [E18 2 £ 88 MR TERE(L
Genius RewardES 1B 2 2t B9 5l B
394,000 7T (2017 4 : 397,000 7T ) &
7,783,000 7T (2017 4 : 7,389,000/8
TL) e FARERELEZPERBIB 2S5
MABRELITCEBECRFASED
Bl /57,0007 7T (2017 £ : 124,000 7T )
131,000/ 75 (20174 = 124,000/ 7T) °
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18. GOODWILL 18. &
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET
At 1 January ®1A1A
Gross carrying amount REBE 85,761 80,405
Accumulated impairment Z:HRE (2,441) (2,447)
Net carrying amount BREFE 83,320 77,964
Year ended 31 December BZ12A31MBLLEE
Opening net carrying amount BAIERTE FAE 83,320 77,964
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) Ui — MK B AR (3E33) = 946
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HENE AR (M5E34) (3,142) -
Exchange realignment b 5 =58 (3,295) 4,410
Closing net carrying amount B BRE SR E 76,883 83,320
At 31 December MR12A31H
Gross carrying amount FREME 78,975 85,761
Accumulated impairment Z:HRE (2,092) (2,441)
Net carrying amount BREFE 76,883 83,320
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18. GOODWILL (Continued)

For the purpose of the annual impairment test, the carrying
amount of goodwill, net of any impairment loss, is allocated to the
following CGUs under the enterprise cloud services:

8. BB

SLEERERAMNS - HEZEREEN
BRAEFDREEBBRDEE NIERER
BReELEM

CE ASP FEI A
Xinnet Group e

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT
53,543

29,777

The recoverable amounts for the CGUs given above were
determined based on value in use calculations, covering a detailed
five-year financial budget using the key assumptions stated below.
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the CGUs operate.

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations of CE ASP
CGU for the years are as follows:

EMR G EEB 2 TRES BT R
EAEED A S B RETEHA
MEEH - LHRTXEF 2 EBEHR
¥ o ERELFBAR G E EBLAE
BE 7 RMTIOREE -

FRAANAETERCRBRSELENM
EREEZEERRNT :

2018 2017

Average sales growth rate FEHEERER

Discount rate BLIR =

Growth rates used to extrapolate
cashflows beyond the budget period pr B

RIEREBEERRBAESREZ

11.62% 8.35%
11.93% 12.86%

0.00% 0.00%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 /£ 2018 F 12 A31 HIEFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations of Xinnet
Group CGU for the year are as follows:

18. BHE (&)

FRARREFREBREELEMRE

Average sales growth rate Ei e E R

Discount rate BLIE &

Growth rates used to extrapolate REEREMERSREL
cashflows beyond the budget period BERE

REEzEZEENOT
2018 2017
11.30%
18.39%
3.00%

The budgeted gross margin and net profit margin were determined
by the management for the CGUs based on past performance and
its expectations for market development.

The growth rate used for the above CGUs are determined by
reference to the average growth rate for the corresponding
industry to which the CGUs belong.

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the segment. Apart from the considerations described
in determining the value in use of the CGUs above, the Group's
management is not currently aware of any other probable changes
that would necessitate changes in its key estimates. However, the
estimated recoverable amounts of CE ASP CGU and Xinnet Group
CGU are particularly sensitive to the average sales growth rate
applied.

The recoverable amount of CE ASP CGU exceeds its carrying
amount by approximately HK$36,947,000 (2017: HK$8,404,000).
The key assumption is the average sales growth rate of
approximately 11.62% (2017: 8.35%). If the average sales growth
rate reduced by approximately 0.52% (2017: 0.21%), the carrying
amount of CE ASP CGU would equal its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of Xinnet Group CGU exceeds its carrying
amount by approximately HK$8,293,000 (2017: HK$2,172,000). The
key assumption is the average sales growth rate of approximately
8.25% (2017: 11.30%). If the average sales growth rate reduced by
approximately 0.36% (2017: 0.08%), the carrying amount of Xinnet
Group CGU would equal its recoverable amount.
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BEERENMERANTHEEER
BRERREEHMISER ZAHRR
TELBEUERE -

FPARSELBM 2 ERETNKSER
TELBMMEREBITR 2 FIERE
MEE

PrER ARG IR R BERTL R R BREEL 75 20
B TERR BREXEETREELE
M EREEMLEERARI  AEEE
I B AT N FAA T E A AT RE 3R
ZEHHERERE T BMEF - A
TECEERSELEMRHREEER
CEABMZEFAROeREEAZ
FHHEBRELEER

FPECEPRSEAEN KT S HE
#8 HE B M A 436,947,000 7T (2017
F 1 8,404,000 7T) - EBRZ AT
18K K 4911.62% (2017 4F © 8.35%) ©
i FHI 88 E 1 R R #0.52% (20174 -
021%) Bl EMEMBEELEUZ
REEBESRETKES5E -

FREERSELEM 2B S ER
i H BR [ 18 £98,293,0005% 7T (2017 4F -
2,172,000 70) - EBE R AFHHEEE
K R #98.25% (2017 FF : 11.30%) ° it ¥
585 & 18 & R 4 £90.36% (2017 5 -
008%) ' BIFIMBEEBSEESBMN 2K
HEEBHERERESHE -
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19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BB EE

Computer Development

software cost Licenses Total
e RERA faER @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2017 ®K2017%1818
Cost AR 271518 158,054 37,070 466,642
Accumulated amortisation 2EtEE (269,348) (94,167) (12,067) (375,582)
Net carrying amount BEFE 2,170 63,887 25,003 91,060
Year ended 31 December 2017  HZ2017512A31BLEE
Opening net carrying amount HREFE 2,170 63,887 25,003 91,060
Additions RE 2,248 21,877 - 24125
Amortisation charge for the year FRBHERY (1,373) (13,389) (3,842) (18,604)
Provision for impairment loss REEERE - (5,530) - (5,530)
Exchange realignment EHER 195 4916 1733 6,844
Closing net carrying amount BAREFE 3,240 71,761 22,894 97,895
At 31 December 2017 and R2017€128318R
1 January 2018 2018F181H
Cost AR 294,263 192,653 39,857 526,773
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEERAE
impairment (291,023) (120,892) (16,963) (428,878)
Net carrying amount BREFE 3,240 71,761 22,894 97,895

Year ended 31 December 2018  HZ2018F 12831 AL EE

Opening net carrying amount BREFE 3,240 71,761 97,895
Additions RE 90 27,086 27,176
Written off HisH (110) (1,246) (1,356)
Amortisation charge for the year FREHEFY (1,126) (17,801) (22,853)
Provision for impairment loss REBEEE - (3,620) (3,620)
Exchange realignment EHESR (121) (3,887) (5,053)
Closing net carrying amount HABREFE 1,973 72,293 92,189
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H
Cost XA 22,656 117,637 37,787 178,080
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEHERAE

impairment (20,683) (45,344) (19,864) (85,891)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,973 72,293 17,923 92,189
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Based on the invoice dates, the aging analysis of the trade
receivables is as follows:

20.

FEW & 5 RIE

JEWE ZHRBIREZAHEL ZEEDY
Mran

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

0-90 days 0-90H 3,474
91-180 days 91-180 H 4,025
181-270 days 181-270 H 480
271-360 days 271-360 H 554
Over 360 days H#iE 360 H 23,603
Trade receivables, gross JEUE S RIBEERE 32,136
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables S5 : F& U kI8 5 (E 5 (22,557)
Trade receivables, net FEWNE B F B F 5 9,585

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade receivables
from contracts with customers amounted to HK$24,197,000 and
HK$9,585,000 respectively.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in note 2.10.

Trade receivables are due on presentation of invoices. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade receivables are set out in note 50.4.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. The directors of the Group
consider that the fair value of trade receivables which are
expected to be recovered within one year are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because these balances
have short maturity periods on their inception.
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KERFEHNZEKRESRES A
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

21. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21. ®#e -  AAFEREMERFIE
RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Deposits and prepayments e RIAFHUR 83,165 69,150
Amounts due from related parties FEUR 8 7 50 I8 5 136
Others EHih 24,281 126,532
107,451 195,818
Less: Provision for impairment of other 35t = o JE Uk SR I8 R (B i 8
receivables (8,762) (12,905)
98,689 182,913
Less: Non-current portion B IERBE S
Deposit for renovation work B IRECZA S (709)
182,204

Impairment losses in respect of other receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against other receivables directly. The movement
in the provision for impairment of other receivables is as follows:

H & UK IR 2 BB B 1R AT AR R B
BOEAREBEMRLEZRBZHEY
o ERBRT  AEBEBBRSER
P EL A WK IR 8 © B A RUMRIR 2

AEREZHWT

2018
HK$'000
TR

At the beginning of the year FH)
Written off during the year FAME
Reversal during the year F AR
Exchange realignment ME =5
At the end of the year FHR

2017
HK$'000
TAT
32,046

(21,142)
2,001

12,905
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21.

22.

23.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21. B EARERHEMGERTIE
RECEIVABLES (Continued) €))
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting dates is the REBEFFEmSEAEERR AT
carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned in note 50.4. 50.4 Pfridt s SR FE WO IR 2 BREME -
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The AEBUVERZSEERIFTHEETMER
directors of the Group consider that the fair value of other e REBEEZRAS EHAIR—FRK
receivables which are expected to be recovered within one year WElHmERZRIB Y AR EEEEEE
are not materially different from their carrying amounts because HEZETESAKZE BRAAZSE
these balances have short maturity periods on their inception. RIS T EAN T ER -
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BAAREBESAERERZESHME
PROFIT OR LOSS =5
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets at fair value RAAEBEFABREZ
through profit or loss SREE
Listed securities: EmES
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~ — R& B L 2 RAE A
(note) ) 103,500
Note: The fair values of the listed securities are determined by reference to the Wizt : EMEHRZAABEDSERER A
quoted market bid price available on the relevant exchanges. RMIBEABERE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. REREEARELER

Deposits with banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

Included in bank and cash balance of the Group is an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$115,352,000 (2017: HK$129,313,000),
which represented Renminbi (“RMB”) deposits placed with the
banks in Mainland China.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies
through banks which are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.
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ARBTEERLIRAINE - RIBEHE
ZHNEEEERIARAEIE - EERE
BERE  ANEBELERERTET
SNERETE 2 SBITIE AR iAo -



24.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

TRADE PAYABLES 24. ESE S FIE
Based on invoice dates, the aging analysis of the trade payables is FENEBSFEEEEHEER 2B D
as follows: MaT :
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
0-90 days 0-90 H 12,046
91-180 days 91-180 H 1,181
181-270 days 181-270 H 1,661
271-360 days 271-360H 3,595
Over 360 days 838360 H 10,871
29,354
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the FTAZIEL BEE B AEEEMNE
Group's trade payables are considered to be a reasonable SHBEHERSBEARBEZE
approximation of their fair value. BAYE o
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HhENRERETEH

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the
Group's other payables and accruals are considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

PIBEREARES At AREEME
NRELEAERAZEEAERRSAR
BEZEENE -

www.sino-i.com 217



Sino-i Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY 85 8RR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z20184F 12 A31 A L F &

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. EEE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
2018 2018 £F 2017 £
124318 1818 12A318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FaxT FHET FET

Contract liabilities arising from: INTIHEBEMELEAHEE

Enterprise cloud services PEERE 211,128 227,438 -
As at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, the contract liabilities R2018%F1A1H K2018FE12 A311H »
mainly included the payments received in advance that are related AHNBEEIERIEHIE|HYARNER
to the provision of corporate cloud products not yet delivered to TOHEEEREB BN -
customers.

Revenue totalled approximately HK$216,581,000 was recognised in HAEYEMBEERZKEAERY
current reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities 216,581,000 7 T & B 5 BRI e R ©

balances at the beginning of the year.

Movement in contract liabilities EHNEEEE
2018
HK$’'000
FHET
Balance as at 1 January R1ATBZ &% 227,438
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AFRNERTAFVEDNEEZ
recognising revenue during the year that was Wasmal B a0 a &R
included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (216,581)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of AFRFR20184F 12 A 31 BiR
receiving payments during the year in respect of MARZNE P 2 B EEERKE
provision of corporate cloud products not yet N NTE A= Ob=V =il
delivered to customers as at 31 December 2018 211,374
Exchange realignment =5 (11,103)
Balance as at 31 December K12 A31H 2 &8 211,128
Management expects that the majority of the contract amounts EIEEEE - R2018F12A31H 2 K
allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as of 31 HMAES R ERBITRNETZEHER
December 2018 will be recognised as revenue during the next BT — (ARSI EZ AUk o

reporting period.
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27. LOAN TO/AMOUNT(S) DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/A DIRECTOR/ASSOCIATES

(a)

(b)

Amount due to a director

The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Loans to/Amount due to immediate holding

27H/Kﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ/ HE
B BERNRER K

R—BEEHNE

R—B[BEEFELAEERT 28K
HARBEKFEE -

(b) B/ XREEZBRIAER X

company b1 |
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Loan to immediate holding company MEEERARER 356,995 1,046,644
Current assets REBEE
Loan to immediate holding company REZEERARER 1,127,112 -
Current liabilities REBAE
Amount due to immediate holding REBEERABFIA
company (33,544) (17,298)
Loans to immediate holding company M E BRI B
On 29 May 2009, the Group entered into a loan agreement R2009F 5298 » AEEEHE

with its immediate holding company to advance a loan of
HK$1,645,530,000 which bore interest at 6.00% per annum
and would be repayable on or before 29 June 2011 and was
secured by a share mortgage.

On 20 May 2011, loan extension agreement in respect of the
loan agreement dated 29 May 2009 was signed and was
conditional upon its immediate holding company having
settled in full, the interest accrued on the outstanding
principal amount under the loan agreement on or before 29
June 2011. It was agreed that the repayment date for the
outstanding principal to be extended for two years to 29 June
2013 and the loan was secured by a share mortgage.

HEERARRIVERBE  mE
#141,645,530,0008 T2 B - 1%
FFE600FEFT B RAENR2011F6
A29H sk 2 BifEE - WA —TER
PIRIBIE AR -

MR201MESA208 Bt B8 A
2009F5 A2 A BRI R E
HERWZ - B AEERZERA
A R201MF6 A29 8 8k 2 A /&5 &
BEXp@ETNREERAS 2 2 8E
FRE  WEBEERESREERS
2B ABIEERFE2013F 6 A
298 - BRTIA—BRGIZIBEES
I o
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27. LOAN TO/AMOUNT(S) DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/A DIRECTOR/ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

27. O,/ REEEZERLAE—RE
E/BMENTERRE )

(b) Loans to/Amount due to immediate holding by B/ *TEEZRATER X

company (Continued)
Loans to immediate holding company (Continued)

On 9 May 2013, loan extension agreement in respect of the
loan agreement dated 29 May 2009 was signed and was
conditional upon its immediate holding company having
settled in full, the interest accrued on the outstanding
principal amount under the loan agreement on or before 29
June 2013. It was agreed that the repayment date for the
outstanding principal to be extended for two years to 29 June
2015 and the loan was secured by share mortgage of a
fellow subsidiary. The rate of interest applicable to the
outstanding principal amount of the loan during the
extension period is 7.50% per annum.

On 30 April 2015, loan extension agreement in respect of the
loan agreement dated 29 May 2009 was signed and was
conditional upon its immediate holding company having
settled in full, the interest accrued on the outstanding
principal amount under the loan agreement on or before 29
June 2015. It was agreed that the repayment date for the
outstanding principal to be extended for two years to 29 June
2017 and the loan was secured by a share mortgage of Nan
Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan
Hai. The rate of interest applicable to the outstanding
principal amount of the loan during the extension period is
8.00% per annum.

On 2 May 2017, loan extension agreement in respect of the
loan agreement dated 29 May 2009 was signed and was
conditional upon its immediate holding company having (i)
settled in full the interest accrued on the outstanding
principal amount under the loan agreement; and (i) partially
settled the outstanding principal amount of HK$200,000,000,
on or before 29 June 2017. It was agreed that the repayment
date for the outstanding principal to be extended for two
years to 29 June 2019 and the loan was secured by a share
mortgage of Nan Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Nan Hai. The rate of interest applicable to the
outstanding principal amount of the loan during the
extension period is 8.00% per annum.
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27. LOAN TO/AMOUNT(S) DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/A DIRECTOR/ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

(b) Loans to/Amount due to immediate holding

(c)

company (Continued)
Loans to immediate holding company (Continued)

On 21 June 2018, the Group entered into another loan
agreement with its immediate holding company to advance
a loan of approximately HK$342,506,000 which was interest
bearing at 8% per annum and repayable on or before 20 June
2021. The share mortgage provided in respect of the loan
agreement dated 29 May 2009 over the entire issued share
capital of Nan Hai Development Limited was expanded to
cover the obligations under this loan agreement.

As at 31 December 2018, approximately HK$1,005,858,000
and HK$342,506,000 were interest bearing at 8% and 8% per
annum respectively and repayable on or before 29 June 2019
and 20 June 2021 respectively (2017: approximately
HK$1,005,858,000 was interest bearing at 8% and repayable
on or before 29 June 2019). The remaining balance was
interest-free.

Amount due to immediate holding company

The amount due to immediate holding company is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Amounts due to associates

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

27. B,/ REEERAR—8E

B BENRERTHE @)

(b) B/ XREZEZRATER X

(c)

15 (#8)
B E PR 2 a1 B 5K ()

R2018F 6 218 » AEEEEHE
PR ARRIN S — M ERRE - ME
B 49342,506,00058 T2 B IR
FEGEFBMER20216F6A208
S AIERE - Fh B A 200945 A 29
A BRI ERAEERRER
RNRE I B TARAIR 2 IR 1218
BRREREAETIGHRE AT -

201812 5318 » 491,005,858,000
78 7T I 342,506,000 8 TT RIE 7 BIlR 4
F&8E RSEF BEIA R D RIZAR
20196 A29H Kk2021F 6 A20H3k
2 BB 2 (20174 © #91,005,858,000
P TTEIBIE T R 8[E AT B R A 2019
FOAXAHZAIEE) - %A
®E o

REZEFZERAFIHE
REEERARFIAREER %
BRARERFERE -

R N BRIE

BRARESEER 2R RARE
KA B

B

o

A

= ©°

A
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28.

29.

BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED

During the year ended 31 December 2018, all bank borrowings
were repaid. The interest rates of the borrowings were ranging
from 4.36% t0 5.22% per annum.

At 31 December 2017, all of the bank borrowings, which were
denominated in RMB, were repayable within one year. The bank
borrowings’ interest rate profiles were as follows:

28.

REHERTHEE

BE2018F12A3BLEFE - AR
TEEEHEE - BEZFHENT436
EZE5220F -

MR20177F12A31H 23 AA RS
BEZRITEEER —FRNERE - RiTE
BREFBOT

2017
HK$'000
FHETT
Floating rates FENFE
— ranging from 5.21% to 5.22% per annum — FRRNFE52NEES52E 144,127
Fixed rates (& 7 F &
— 5.00% per annum — FFE5.00E 19,217
163,344

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
value.

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

In December 2017, CE Dongli, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, implemented a scheme (the “Scheme”)
to incentivise the senior management personnel of CE Dongli (the
"CE Senior Management”). The Scheme lasts for a period of 5
years up to 31 December 2021. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Group
will effectively grant a total of 15,996,402 units of right to receive
profit-share and bonus reward (the “Bonus Reward”) to CE Senior
Management. The recipients of such Bonus Reward have the rights
to exercise at the price of RMB1 for each unit of Bonus Reward in
return for one unit of equity interest in CE Dongli (the "CE
Interests”). Upon the exercising of all units of Bonus Reward, the
CE Senior Management will in substance indirectly holding a total
of approximately 6.6% of the CE Interests. Within one year after
the expiry date of the Scheme (i.e. 31 December 2022), it is
mandatory for the Group to buy back all of the CE Interests from
the CE Senior Management (the “Buy-back”) and there is no choice
for the Group or the CE Senior Management to opt for alternative
equity settlement. The Buy-back will be made at the pre-
determined prices, depending on various performance conditions
including CE Dongli's audited and approved revenue and net profit
margin.
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OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, a total of 9,716,300 (2017: 3,436,200)
units of Bonus Reward were granted to the CE Senior Management
and 3,951,800 (2017: 1,718,110) units of the Bonus Reward were
exercised. With reference to the probability of meeting the
performance conditions set out in the Scheme, the Group
estimated a provision for the Buy-back amounting to
approximately RMB34,850,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$41,193,000) (2017: Nil) (note 12) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, a total provision of approximately
RMB14,862,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,923,000) (2017:
Nil) and RMB23,940,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,260,000) (2017: approximately RMB1,718,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,064,000)) was recognised under the current
liabilities and non-current liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

(a) Total minimum lease payments is as follows:

29.

30.

Hitg S &\ (@)

M2018E 12 A31H AL SR EIE
A B ® 1 A ££9,716,3001E (2017 4F :
3,436,2001E ) fE AT #E B B8 7 - H
3,951,800 1& (2017 4F = 1,718,110 @) TE4L
BREEACEITE - REERZTEIF
BERIE G Z AR - AEBGEHE
2018 12 A31 BIEFERBRIEELA
R # 34,850,000 7 (48 & 7 #941,193,000
BIL) (2017 F « F)(FsE12) »

R2018F 12 B31H » R A B kR
®EAZTRBBEBENIERD A BEERE
HHEEE AR 14,862,000 T (FBERL
16,923,000 7C) (20174 : ) AR
23,940,000 7T, (48 & 7 49 27,260,000 7 7T )
(2017 5 : Y AR¥1,718,000 7T (FHE R
492,064,00087T)) °

MEHEeE
(@) BEAENRATOT :

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Due within one year R — & N EI E 61
Due in the second year W — F 5 B 15
76
Future finance charges on finance lease @& E 2 KR & B (5)
Present value of finance lease liabilities MEMERERE 71
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30. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

30. MEHEEEBE W

(b) The present value of finance lease liabilities is (b) MEAEEERBEWNT :
as follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET
Due within one year, included under FSTAREIEE - RN—FARE|H
current liabilities 57
Due in the second year, included under s AZEREIEE @ N E —F5|H
non-current liabilities 14
71

The Group has entered into finance leases for item of one
photocopier (2017: a motor vehicle and two photocopiers)
with remaining lease terms of 1 year (2017: one to two
years). Interest rate under the lease is 3.3% (2017: ranging
from 2.40% to 3.33%) per annum. The lease does not have
options to renew or any contingent rental provisions. Under
the lease terms, the Group has the option to purchase the
leased asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently
lower than the fair value of the leased asset at the end of the
leases.

Finance lease liabilities are secured by the underlying asset
where the lessor has the rights to revert in event of default.
The carrying amount of the finance lease liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and approximates their
fair values.
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31. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 31. EEREERE

At 31 December 2018, the movement on the deferred tax liabilities
are as follows:

R2018F 12 A31H EERBEEFEZ
ZHHmT -

Revaluation of
intangible assets

EfETEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At the beginning of the year F17) 6,176
Credit to profit or loss (note 9) FrAEEER (FIsE9) (925)
Exchange realignment MEH ZRE 429
At the end of the year Fx 5,680

At 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of the
subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong and in Mainland China of
approximately HK$14,917,000 (2017: HK$6,414,000) and
HK$154,057,000 (2017: HK$405,032,000) respectively. The tax
effect of unrecognised deferred tax assets amounted to
approximately HK$46,317,000 (2017: HK$102,316,000).

Deferred tax asset in respect of unused tax losses has not been
recognised in the financial statements due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams against which the tax losses can be
utilised. The tax losses of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China can be carried forward for 5 years, while tax losses of the
companies within the Group operating in Hong Kong can carry
forward their tax losses indefinitely under the current tax
legislation.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. As at 31 December
2018, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as there were no temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of PRC
subsidiaries (2017: Nil).

R2018F 12 A31H  REBRREE
LR EENEBARERSAM
T8 [B518 9 51149 14,917,000 7 7T (2017 4F
6,414,000 7T) } 154,057,000 7% 7T (2017
4 : 405,032,000 70 ) ° RFERIELFE
BEZRBEEEY H46317,00078 T
(2017 4F : 102,316,000 7T) °

REATART A BANIEER 2 B EENK
R B EAETHRRTEREREAREDA
BB R ZEERAEE - REBEBITH
& R BEREE B R) 2 IR
BRZESE  MAKREBETREEZE
Z AR BRE R A ] R A

RIBHELEMEVL - 520085141
B AP EMBARMSENEIRZ
PRBBIEHIT - R20185F 12 A31H » 47
EMBHRERALETRELR ARG TD
A A I 4 B e B Y B R AR 0 IR B A
ZERSERR (20175 < &) o
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32.

33.

SHARE CAPITAL 32.
2018
Number of
shares
BB EE
Issued and fully paid BRTREAE
Ordinary shares gl
As at 1 January R1A1H 19,914,504,877
Issue of new shares (note () BITHRR M (P EE(a) 1,806,000,000
As at 31 December mMM12A318 21,720,504,877

(@  On 19 December 2018, 1,806,000,000 ordinary shares were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
to be issued to a custodian at nil consideration according to
the Restricted Share Award Scheme. The custodian will hold
the Restricted Shares and such Restricted Shares shall be
transferred to the selected participants upon satisfaction of
their respective vesting conditions. Details of Restricted
Share Award Scheme is disclosed in note 36.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no
acquisition of new business.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's business
combination was as follows:

On 30 March 2017, the Group acquired an additional 55% equity
interest in Chengdu Gouyongyun from a minority shareholder at a
cash consideration of RMB600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$676,000). Together with the 20% equity interest acquired by
the Group in prior year, the Group was able to exercise control
over Chengdu Gouyongyun and Chengdu Gouyongyun became a
subsidiary of the Company since that date. Chengdu Gouyongyun
is a company established in the PRC and was principally engaged
in enterprise cloud service. The acquisition was made with the aim
to expand the Group's enterprise cloud services in the PRC.
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33.

i s
2017
Number of
HK$'000 shares HK$'000
FEx ERGE4E FTAT
240,597 19,914,504,877 240,597
240,597 19,914,504,877 240,597
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 33. ¥B&6tw
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Chengdu KE A E R E A W B a3 R E
Gouyongyun as at the date of step acquisition and the ENBEAREBENANEESRENT ¢

corresponding amounts were as follows:

Carrying Fair value
amount adjustments Fair value
BREE AREEHAE ~RfEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHEIT
Property, plant and equipment 1% - BRE K& 74 - 74
Deposits, prepayments and e ENFIEREM
other receivables (note (c)) e W =B (M E () 13 - 13
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERRSIER 346 - 346
Other payables and accruals HAb IR EFTE A (452) - (452)
Provision for tax RIE R (24) - (24)
Total identifiable net liabilities at ¥R A EEEHE A 25
fair value BEFHEIAE (43)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = 10
Fair value of 20% equity interests 7 25 U B8 Al FT#5 A B
in Chengdu Gouyongyun held SR E 20% PR iE
before the step acquisition NREE (237)
Goodwill (note (b)) P (Mi5E (b)) 946
Total cash consideration BIRSRE 676
An analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BHEWERFRESRERKRSEE R
of the step acquisition were as follows: HUFREAITIAT -
HK$'000
FHETT
Net cash outflow arising on: AT EIBEAIR S MLFE
Purchase consideration settled in cash DNRESENCEENRE (676)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired g4 RERIBE4AIAR 346
(330)
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As the acquisition of additional 55% equity interest in Chengdu
Gouyongyun was considered as a step acquisition under HKFRS 3, the
20% equity interest in Chengdu Gouyongyun previously held by the
Group was treated as if it were disposed of and reacquired at fair value
on the step acquisition date. Accordingly, it was remeasured to its
acquisition-date fair value.

The goodwill arising from acquisition of Chengdu Gouyongyun represents
the synergistic effect by enabling the Group to expand its enterprise
cloud services business in a more efficient and cost-effective manner.

The fair value and the gross amount of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables amounted to HK$13,000. None of these receivables was
impaired and it was expected that the full contractual amounts could be
collected.

The acquisition-related cost of approximately HK$85,000 was recognised
as an expense under “administrative expenses” in the profit or loss.

Chengdu Gouyongyun contributed revenue of HK$140,000 and net 10ss
of HK$3,347,000 to the Group since the step acquisition date to 31
December 2017. Had the step acquisition occurred on 1 January 2017,
consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2017 would have been HK$833,421,000 and HK$9,292,000,
respectively.
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 34. HEMB AR

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group disposed of HZE2018F12A3MBILFE A&EH
92.36% equity interest in Digital HUIGU Real Estate Management MEBEEER AR ZHE QA S8
Co, Wd ("HBEABEXEEKRMH AR F" and 100% equity EABEEERMABRARZ92.36%
interest in Dadi Music Holding Ltd. to subsidiaries of its immediate # X Dadi Music Holding Ltd. =z & 2B &
holding company at consideration of approximately - (B 5 B4 A520,600,000 7T 1% 8
HK$520,600,000 and HK$8 respectively. The disposal was BT e HEFIEEEN 20186 A21H
completed on 21 June 2018 and 7 May 2018 respectively. The %2085 A7H TR « ZE M B AR
carrying amount of the net assets of these subsidiaries at the date REERB O FEEREEBENT ¢

of disposal was as follows:

HK$°'000
FHET

Property, plant and equipment W - B REE 545,011
Goodwill kS 3,142
Prepaid land lease payments under operating lease  &4BE 2B N +HAEE 11,625
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5KIA 656
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Be - BRAFEREAERZIE 243,563
Cash and cash equivalents HehERRELEE 1,160
Other payables and accruals E b e RIE K R B (580,547)
Trade payables FERE 55008 (5,828)
Provision for tax TRIR B (8,172)

210,610
Non-controlling interests RIS (22,966)
Exchange reserve released on disposal oS R AR BR 2 B 3R (72,909)
Gain on disposal HE W= 405,865

520,600
Satisfied by: AR5 S AERT -
Cash BE 520,600
An analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect LEMRBARMI A RERRESIE
of the disposal of subsidiaries was as follows: BERAFBEIFAT :

HK$'000

FExT

Cash consideration received BUERESRE 520,600
Cash and cash equivalents disposal of FtERe rERBSER (1,160)
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRARIFIES Z IR SR AFEE 519,440
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting on 28 May 2012, the Board adopted a share option
scheme. Under the share option scheme, share options may be
granted to directors, employees of the Group and those who have
contributed or will contribute to the Group at any time within ten
years after its adoption at the discretion of the Board. No share
options have been granted by the Company since the adoption of
the share option scheme. There was no share-based
compensation expense for the share option scheme included in

profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

36. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 9 October 2018, the Company adopted the Restricted Share
Award Scheme to recognise the contributions by certain of the
Group’s personnel and to provide them with incentives in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the

Group.

On 19 December 2018, a total of 1,806,000,000 Restricted Shares
were approved to issue to the custodian and held for the relevant
selected participants. The Restricted Shares of the Company will
be vested only after satisfactory completion of performance-based
targets. The Restricted Share Award Scheme is subject to the
administration of the Board in accordance with the Restricted
Share Award Scheme. As of 31 December 2018, 1,806,000,000
shares were held by the custodian for the Restricted Share Award

Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further grant of restricted shares
which will result in the total number of shares granted by the
Board under the Restricted Share Award Scheme to exceed

2,462,000,000 shares.

Unless terminated earlier by the Board, the Restricted Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years from the

date of its adoption.
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35.

36.

BRESE

BIFEN 201245 A28 B R1T 2 R FEF
AEERBZEBAFRE EFTHEMN
—IEME AR T Bl - BIRMEAREETE] - R®
HWE+FRN ESSAERBBRD
BRhETAEEZES - BEEULRZ A
S AEAERELRERZAL - RAAF
B B 40 BE PR 5 &1 AR BE 4B 4R B (T 1 B
% # o B 220184 Kk 2017412 H31H
IEFE - BESERETZARSG I
ZHERZET AR o

PR %1l Bz 17 2% B 51 &
MR2018F10 A9 » KAAAIEFHN—IER

R RN A8 UBEARBET A
BAFERI A SR HLEER) - LB
REBDAEERFBELENRER -

2018412 4198 » & #£1,806,000,000
AR PR B 1) EHE AT TREE AL A
BEESHERE - AREIRGIKRME
RABERABER 2 BEERE THKET
2RE - RERNHEREEARESTS
R IR 6l i (0 22BN ET 21 B 12 - R 2018 4F
12 A31H - 1,806,000,000 i% 17 B 5E & A
BLIR I A% ) S ET B35 o

i EfE — S E R FIRD S EHES
GIRBER B R G EE TR D 2 R 8
BB 2,462,000,0000% - BlEE=E 115
EHARBIR -

BIFMEESRERL TR R
DRSS ERAARESRPTF
BRI AER o
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36. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

Movements in the number of share held for the Restricted Share
Award Scheme and the Restricted Shares of the Company are as

36. REIRMDERBETE ()

SR I A (0 BB AT Bl B 2 I R AR
BIRGIRG 2 BB #EHn T

follows:
Number of
shares held
for Restricted Number of
Share Award Restricted
Scheme Shares
7 PR i Bt 47
REFTEIEE BR i
2R EE & E
‘000 '000
TR TR
At the beginning of the year FH) = —
Granted (note (a)) B (M5t @) - 1,806,000
Allotted to custodian (note (b)) fog T 508 A (D) 1,806,000 -
At the end of the year FR 1,806,000 1,806,000

(@  On 19 December 2018, the grant of 1,806,000,000 shares of
the Company to be awarded to selected participants under
the Restricted Share Award Scheme was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company and the shares
would be transferred to the selected participants by the
custodian at nil consideration upon satisfaction of its
respective vesting conditions. As at the grant date, the fair
value of each of the restricted share was HK$0.055.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, 1,806,000,000
shares of the Company were allotted to the custodian of the
Restricted Share Award Scheme at nil consideration.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, approximately
HK$178,000 was recognised as share-based compensation
expense included in the profit or loss.

(@ F2018F128198 » KR AL
% B A 7% ) 1,806,000,000 A% AN 2
AR - AR IR IR %I A% (0 22 Bh 3t
EIREEELEE  MABRNY
REZEEBEHEEKEHRTE
ANEEEETREDEE - NEH
BE: SR&GIRHDz2AAEESR
0.0558 7T °

(b) & =2018%12A318 Ik F & -
1,806,000,000 & A 1A A A% 17 1% (8
Bo 3 T R HII D 2B st Bl 2 5T &
}\ o

H E2018F12H31H It & B &

178,000 8 LR IBHER Bt ABRR ZIA
Bt 2 HERS -
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37. RESERVES
Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 110 to 111 of the financial
statements.

Notes:

(a) The Group's capital distribution reserve represents the excess of the
credit arising from the reduction of nominal value of ordinary shares and
share premium account, over the net assets of a subsidiary distributed
during the year ended 31 December 2005.

[(9)] The Group's general reserve includes capital reserve arising from
acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years and statutory reserves.

Subsidiaries of the Company established in Mainland China are required
to transfer 10% of their profit after tax calculated in accordance with the
PRC accounting regulations to the statutory reserve until the reserve
reaches 50% of their respective capital, upon which any further
appropriation will be at the directors’ recommendation. Such reserve
may be used to reduce any losses incurred by the subsidiaries or be
capitalised as paid-up capital of the subsidiaries.
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37. RESERVES (Continued)

37. #E @

Company AN
Share-based
General  payments Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
BB % 4
—RhE A1} REEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THT THET THET
(note a) (note 36) (note b)
(Mzta) (FiE36) (HEEb)
At 1 January 2017 R201741 718 79,579 - 163788 1,716,767
Loss for the year FNEE - - (146,325) (146,325)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F128318%

1 January 2018 2018F1A1H 1,490,863 1,570,442
Profit for the year FREF 16,386 16,386
Special dividends (note 10) FrRlR 2 (i3 10) (557,607)  (557,607)
Share-based payment expense RS T 2B = 178
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12831H 949,642 1,029,399
Notes: M5k

@

(o)

The Company'’s general reserve includes capital reserve arising from
acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years.

Included in the Company’s retained profits is an amount of approximately
HK$10,053,000 (2017: approximately HK$10,053,000) which represents
the balance of the special reserve arising from the Company's capital
reduction effected in a prior year.

According to the court order dated 21 June 2001 confirming the
Company'’s capital reduction, the Company was required to credit a sum
arising from the capital reduction to a special reserve which cannot be
treated as realised profit as long as (a) the outstanding liabilities of the
Company as at the effective date of the capital reduction (i.e. the
“Relevant Debts”) are not fully discharged; and (b) the persons to whom
the Relevant Debts are due have not agreed otherwise.

RABRZ —RFFREIEBEFEWEME

RAIEE 2 EARE -

FTARRABMRE & F 2 & B84 10,053,000
77T (2017 4 © #910,053,00078 7T) FEE £
AARDBEFBIRAR A 2 B R -

RE AR A RIEIR IR AN AT B i A
2001F 6 A21 Bz ERms » AREERK
B AR AN BT EE 4 2 SR R AR RI A T
ETHER - EFAFETSRADE
BmA : QARFREIRIRAERB R
KEEBEEIMEBEEE]D BARTEM

w5

P RO)EAEEZREALESTTR
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38. THE COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 38. NN AEZ MM RBT
POSITION
2018
HK$'000
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - HEMERE 541
Interests in subsidiaries RSB R R Z xR 105,721
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRMEE =
Financial assets at fair value through other & A (BEET A HAD
comprehensive income PERREHEE 324
106,586
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through mAREEABREY
profit or 10ss TREE 47,765
Amount due from immediate holding FEWE Z LA RIRUA
company 17,106
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR B BB A B ROE 1,607,180
Amount due from an associate FE UL —FEl gt & R B 5108 12
Deposits, prepayments and other Re - ENRER
receivables B G 1,786
Tax recoverable AU 7 IR =
Cash and cash equivalents REREFERRESIAE 42,429
1,716,278
Current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables and accruals H b e IE R BB A 4,925
Amounts due to subsidiaries YL NGIE e 547,941
Amount due to a director R—BEENRIE
Finance lease liabilities mEHEAE
552,868
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,163,410
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBEE 1,269,996
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2017
HK$°000
TAT

2,421
105,721
324

108,466

103,500
121,369
1,537,706
9

1,926

868
162,547

1,927,925

4,146
75,559
145,604
29

225,338

1,702,587

1,811,053



38. THE COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION (Continued)
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BY B R M A

Notes
FiaE

2018
HK$'000
FET

1,269,996

240,597
1,029,399

Non-current liabilities kRBERE

Finance lease liabilities mERE

Net assets EEFE

EQUITY R

Share capital f& A 32
Reserves i 27
Total equity RS

1,269,996

Liu Rong

e
Director

EE

Chen Ming Fei

R IS 7R
Director

4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

38. KRR ZMBEMRREE (&)

2017
HK$'000
TAT
14

1,811,039

240,597
1,570,442

1,811,039
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39.

40.

41.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

39. FERER

2017
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 January ®n1A1H 18,824
Loss for the year FAEE (1,363)
Step acquisition of a subsidiary Z AU — T B A A (10)
Acquisition of additional interest in a EE—RANB AR ER
subsidiary 691

Partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary HE—ERBARBY = (1,427)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HEN B E (KiFE34) -
Exchange realignment PE N =% 685
As at 31 December ®12A31H 17,406

The non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries that are not 100%
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, other interest income
amounting to approximately HK$94,957,000 (2017: HK$40,786,000)
in relation to loan to immediate holding company was dealt
through the current amount with the immediate holding company.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a MPF scheme and an ORSO scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of the trustees.

Subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
organised by the relevant government authorities. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

The total costs charged to the consolidated income statement
amounting to HK$46,119,000 (2017: HK$38,275,000, represented)
represent contributions payable to the schemes by the Group at
the rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
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0. TEHFREXSZ

HZE2018F 128318 ILFE - B@RA
BEEERARER ZHMF B AL
94,957,0007% 7T (2017 4 : 40,786,000
T0) BB EE BRI AR 2 EREREE
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AEBRBEEMBARERERRIL®IE
a8 RBRERRGE - SFEEERAN
SEEESHIAIEAERZESH
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RENZEE -

AEBEBRAKENGFE 2HE—BEER
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PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Directors emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) are as follows:

Fees
Fik
HK$'000
TEw
2018 20185
Executive directors HTES
YU Pun Hoi Tos
CHEN Ming Fei RIS A
LIU Rong £
Non-executive director FHTES
LAM Bing Kwan HEE

Independent non-executive directors B EHITES

Prof. JIANG Ping TFHE
FUNG Wing Lap BE
XIAQ Sui Ning B

42. EEMEREEBEEHFAL

(a) EEME

RIFBBEDIE622EEF B R EK
5155 383 15 S BB AN 622G E R
A(RBEEENRER) ROIREZ
EEMewT

Basic salaries,

housing,

other
allowances Pension Share-hased
and benefits scheme  payments

inkind contributions expense Total
BEXFe
5 Hit
ZEREY Bihe DY
Gilk TR XX it

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
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42.

EEMeRAEBESHFALT@®

(@) EEM=0

Basic salaries,
housing,
other
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
ERES -
#FE -
EEREY Bike
e Fllz FEIHT 4Bar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FTHL THL THEL
2017 2017 %
Executive directors BTEE
YU Pun Hoi Tos - 127 6 133
CHEN Dan* BT+ - 101 - 101
CHEN Ming Fei [GRE - 486 96 582
LIU Rong 3% - - - -
Non-executive director FBTES
LAM Bing Kwan MRE 60 - - 60
Independent non-executive directors BIFHITES
Prof. JIANG Ping LR 138 - - 138
FUNG Wing Lap b-1-3v 120 - - 120
XIAO Sui Ning HEE 138 - - 138
456 714 102 1,272

* resigned as executive director with effect from 31 March 2017
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42. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 42. EEM4¢RAEBESHF AT (&)

PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
included one (2017: one) director, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2017: four) employees are as follows:

(b) EEBRSHFAL

AEBEFARERSHFALTERE
—%(017F : —R)EE - Hi2
SEBE L3 - Herr4 (20174 ¢

mE)EEZMENT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Basic salaries, other allowances and AEXF S - HinE K
benefits in kind EWFz=
Pension contributions RIREHR

1,670
210

1,880

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals, other
than a director (2017: a director), fell within the following
band:

Emolument band

TEmeHmAL(—REZ(2017
F—REF)RINZMENTFT
SIEE

e EE

Number of individuals
AB
2018 2017

Nil-HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T

I

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid to any of the Company's directors or
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

None of the directors have waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

HZE2018F K 2017412 A31H 1k
FE WEAARAESRAAER
BEFA LIRS - ARSI
LBk AN ARE BB S fek(E
AR E o

MEEENEARBNEHE2018

FR2017F12A3MBIEFE ZF
AN -
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43. COMMITMENTS 43. EiE
(@) Capital commitments (@)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments as follows:

BRARE

R2018F 12 A3MH  "&EEAB
PR T B AHE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Contracted but not provided for in BRIABREE
respect of — renovation work — B IR 57,181
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEHRE

At 31 December 2018, total future minimum lease payments
in respect of land and buildings under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:

M2018F 12 A31H - IRIET A
HEEHERN I RET ZRK
RIEBEENKERNAT ¢

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT TAT

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years EEERF

28,605 34,482
20,913 21,578

49,518 56,060

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases of the Group run for an initial period of
one to five years (2017: one to five years), with options to
renew the lease terms at the expiry dates or at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
landlords. None of the leases includes any contingent
rentals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 2018 12 A 31 H It & [E

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 44. FREE
Guarantees given in connection with credit facilities granted to: A TR EEREMIEL 2 &R
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
An associate (note) —REEEE AR (HEE) 19,522
Note: MizE -
In February 1993, a Group's associate borrowed a loan of US$5 million from a MI1993F 2R NEEBE AR MIERERT
Filipino bank namely Banco de Oro Unibank (formerly known as Equitable PCI Banco de Oro Unibank ( 7 #& Equitable PCI Bank
Bank Inc. and then as Banco de Oro-EPCI Inc.) (“Banco Unibank”). The loan was Inc. - H 1% 1§ A& Banco de Oro-EPCI Inc.) ([Banco
secured by a guarantee executed by the Company (“Banco Unibank Unibank]) & EX & 35,000,000 7T ° AN A 7l 5L 7%
Guarantee”), and by share mortgage of 74,889,892 shares (the “Philippines B 3R # #2 R (Banco Unibankf® & 1) » I A
Shares”) of Acesite (Philippines) Hotel Corporation Inc. (“Acesite Phils.”). Due to Acesite (Philippines) Hotel Corporation Inc. ([ Acesite
the pending litigation as more particularly set out in note 46, the Group is not Phils.]) 2 74,889,892 & ix 17 ([ SEEE AR5 1) E K
able to obtain updated indebtedness information from Banco Unibank. Given Z RN MR o ARAERFEA GHEEMMIE
the foregoing limitation, it is estimated that the outstanding balance of the total 46) + 785 E KBNS Banco Unibank 2 & #T &7
indebtedness owing to Banco Unibank was approximately US$2,599,000 B o B R B - 2EHEE QA EN 20184 12
(equivalent to approximately HK$20,350,000 (2017: US$2,498,000 (equivalent to A3NB 2 KRB XK - &5 4 K Banco
approximately HK$19,522,000)) by reference to the unaudited financial Unibank {5 18 48 88 2 7K {8 38 &5 82 40 /5 2,599,000 %
statements of the associate as at 31 December 2018. 7t (FEE 74 4720,350,000 % 7T) (2017 4F : 2,498,000
ST (FE R #719,522,000/7T)) °
CREDIT FACILITIES 45. EERE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group does not have any credit R2018F 12 A318 » AEE I &ET
facilities. EEmE -
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s credit facilities were secured R20177F 128318 AEEZZE @
by the following: BLATYZIBE R -
(@) charge over certain buildings (note 13) with a net carrying (@) BRMEFEAI571,784,0008 T2 5
value of approximately HK$571,784,000; and FEF (MisE13) 21\ &
(b)  charge over interest in prepaid land lease payments under (b) BRTEF(EHY23,707,000/8 5T 2 &£ &
operating lease (note 14) with a net carrying value of HMET BN LHEE (HFE14)
approximately HK$23,707,000. 2R 2 HED o
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46. PENDING LITIGATIONS

@)

In respect of the purported sale of the Philippines Shares,
which were mortgaged by Acesite Limited (“Acesite”), by
Banco Unibank, to Waterfront Philippines Inc. ("Waterfront”),
a Filipino company, in February 2003, Acesite, a former
subsidiary of the Company; Evallon Investment Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; Mr. Yu Pun Hoi,
the executive director of the Company and the chairman and
executive director of Nan Hai, the immediate holding
company of the Company; and, South Port Development
Limited, a former wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
as first, second, third and fourth plaintiff respectively issued
a claim against Banco Unibank and Waterfront, on the
grounds that the purported sale of the Philippines Shares
was unlawful as such sale was in breach of the terms of the
mortgage; in breach of a compromise agreement reached in
January 2003; and in other breaches, for damages; further or
other relief; interest and costs and etc. in February 2006
under High Court Number of HCCL 5 of 2006 (“the Case”).
The directors of the Company, after discussion with legal
adviser on the outcome of the Case, considered that the
Group would not incur any material outflow of resources as
a result of the above matters.

Dadi Media, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as
plaintiff, issued a claim against two minority shareholders of
Digital HUIGU Real Estate Management Co., Ltd ("85 EA &
EEBRMHAEMRAR"), aformer subsidiary of the Company,
for the sum of HK$27,750,498 together with interest thereon
and costs in May 2004 under High Court Number of HCA1130
of 2004. The two defendants filed a defence and
counterclaim in June 2004 and then an amended defence
and counterclaim in September 2004. The counterclaim was
further amended and re-amended. In December 2004, the
two defendants issued a claim against CE ASP, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Dadi Media under High Court Number
HCA2892 of 2004, for (1) the sum of HK$806,250; (2) an
award of compensation pursuant to section 32P of the
Employment Ordinance; (3) the sum of HK$13,000; and (4)
interest and costs. CE ASP filed a defence in March 2005.
These two cases are still in progress and no trial date has
been fixed. The directors of the Company note that the cases
have been dormant for a considerable period of time and
take the view that the Group would not incur any material
outflow of resources as a result thereof.
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46. 1FRFA

@

Ft Banco Unibank #2003 4 2 A [[13F
7 & A a)Waterfront Philippines Inc.
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KEBRAA  ARBIRITEEN
RAREELERARIEEERREHR
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2 & W B 2 7FlSouth Port
Development Limited » 9 Bl 1 & 28
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5200618 T8k -« BEAMN Sk E b 7
B & 8 k&A% M[Banco
Unibank & Waterfront42 1 = (& - 12
BAEBIEIFEERNBEE
T R % i IR IR RS 8
R F2003F 1 AEK 2 Z i
MEMER([RHE]) - EBEEEM
MEGHERETTRE  ARFE
ERAE ERLEREE  AEEH
TEEATMERERRH

RARZEK B AR Kb EEEA
R4 200445 ATt &AM
A 4 BHCA1130-2004T T A #
27,750,498 8 02 &58 - 1B [F fEETF
ENER  MARBAKEBRGE
HEABXEERMNABRATIMZ
DHRRERIE o XM B IS F 2004
FOAREMBERF - HER
200449 AR B ST IR R R G ©
ZRFPERE— BT RBIERT
R2004F 128 - ZREWERDSE
A BT 5 7 4 5% HCA2892-2004 18
(1)806,2507% 7T : (2 %k 12 1% 15 71 52
2P IFIE T HEE : (13,0008 7T : &
GFBRER  MAMEE2EN
BARFECERRERE - A
PEFN2005F3 AR ETNE - %
AREGESIREETH - B
KETHEMBB - ARFEZ IR
B ZERMCEEFE—BRRER
PTREBAEE TR BEEEM
EETRERERAL -



—E-)\FEFR | PERBEEERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BY B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018412 A31 A Lt F &

47. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOWS STATEMENT 47. BEREBWRABTM T

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cashflows will be classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing

MEBMEK

TERFAAEEREBETHMELREL
22 BRASKIFRSES WAL
BFELABZRERERARKRER
BB ARNKERE LD GARE

activities.
Amount due
Bank Finance Amount  to immediate Amounts
horrowings, |ease duetoa holding dueto Dividends
secured lihilities director company  associates payable Total
Eivd HEHE  n-%E2 nER
BiRE 8f FE O BROAFE RBEARRE Eftke it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn TAn TEn Thn TAn TAn TAR
(note 28) (note30)  (mote27(a))  (note27(h)  (note 27(c))
(K 28) (W00 (W) (RE27)  (KE27(c)
ALY ey 2017 Represente) K751 A1 B (8E5) 1860 0 19619 97,3 5501 - M3
Changes from cash flows; ReNERy:
Procegds from new bank loans FERERTEE 157316 - - - - - 157316
Repayment of bank loans EE50ER (161,942 - - - - - (16192
Capital element offiance ease rental pid BREERERS AR - (350) - - - - (350)
Repayment toa drector A-4ESE - - (0316) - - - [0316]
Repayment to immediate holding company HERZRAAES - - - (84,189) - - (84,189)
Total changes from financing cash flow REnerEsLE (629 (30) (2031 (84.189) - - (109477)
Exchange relignment (Represented) EiZE(EE5) 1580 - 67 4097 0 - 16365
Other changes: 0 R
Interest expenses flagx 8137 13 - - - - 8150
Inerest paid Bfifle 8,137 - - - - - 8137
Interest element offirance lease rentals paid BREERERECHBHA - (13 - - - - K]
Total other changes Hpsaas - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2017 (Represented) ROTE12H A (BES) 18330 i - 17,29 5492 - 186205
Changes from cash flows; ReTiEss:
Capita element of firance ease rentalpaid BRRERERE CETHA
Advance from associies EVNE
Advance from a director S EE
Advance from immediate hokding company ERBERLTEZ =
Repayment of bank loans BgRnEn (160,757) = (160,757)
Special dvidends paid BiEIRE - (557.607)  (557,607)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ H&BEHERBAE (160,757) 18,794 (557,607) (699,045)
Exchange realignment EXZE (2,587) (2,548) (5,155)
Other changes: 4Ll
Interest expenses flef 214 217
Inerest paid BfifI8 (2.124) (2.124)
Inerest element offiance lease rentls paid BRBERERSZF2HR - - (3)
Specil dhidends Bilka 557,607 557,607
Total other changes ) b L 557,607 557,607
At 31 December 2018 ROBE12ANA 33,54 - 39,612
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. BABA RS

Remuneration for key management personnel which represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 42.

Included in other interest income of HK$96,154,000 (2017:
HK$97,600,000), amount of HK$94,957,000 (2017: HK$93,539,000)
was interest income from immediate holding company in which
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi has 59.25% (2017: 59.14%) beneficial interests.

Included in the rental income of HK$12,320,000 (2017:
HK$21,532,000), amount of HK$7,098,000 (2017: HK$12,826,000)
and HK$795,000 (2017: HK$1,443,000) were rental income earned
from certain subsidiaries of Nan Hai in which Mr. Yu Pun Hoi has
59.25% (2017: 59.14%) beneficial interests and companies in which
Ms. Liu Rong has 72.47% to 80.00% (2017: 72.47% to 80.00%)
beneficial interests respectively.

Included in the revenue of HK$1,012,450,000 (2017:
HK$833,245,000), amount of HK$14,585,000 (2017: HK$3,899,000)
and HK$260,000 (2017: HK$1,101,000) were information service
income from certain subsidiaries of Nan Hai in which Mr. Yu Pun
Hoi has 59.25% (2017: 59.14%) beneficial interest and companies
in which Ms. Liu Rong had 72.47% to 80.00% (2017: 72.47% to
80.00%) beneficial interest respectively.

Included in the administrative expense of HK$109,124,000 (2017:
HK$95,292,000), amount of HK$3,820,000 (2017: Nil) was rental and
management fee paid to certain subsidiaries of Nan Hai in which
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi has 59.25% (2017: 59.14%) beneficial interests.
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£ E fth B B U A 96,154,000 7T (2017
£ 1 97,600,000 7T ) R+ 94,957,000
7L (2017 4 : 93,539,000 7t ) AR B F
mBEERE R EREHR59.25% (2017
F 1 59.14%) #ews 2 BRI AR 2 FE
A »

£ & W A12320000% TT(20174F :
21,532,000787C)FF + 7,098,000/ 7L (20174
12,826,00078 7T ) K 79500078 T (2017 & :
14430007870) ARl AR E TRELERE
AR 35 R 8 59.25% (2017 FF © 59.14%) #E %5
ZRSETETHBRR MRS LLTNE
B E M B7247%% 80.00% (2017 £ ¢
7247% % 80.00%) tEzn 2 N A Z FE WA -

£ U 251,012,450,0005 7T (2017 4 -
833,245,000 7T ) 1 14,585,000/ 7T
(2017 4 : 3,899,0007% 7T ) K 260,00055
7t (2017 4F : 1,101,000 7T) » Rl &K E
FREBEEREFERES 59.25%(2017
F o 59.14%) w2 mEE T ETHEA
AIRBIBLIRNERERREET7247%E
80.00% (2017 £ : 72.47% %= 80.00%) # %5
AR ZEFBREUA o

£ 17 B B9 2 109,124,000 78 7T (2017 4F -
95,292,000/ 7T) 7 + 3,820,000/ 7T(2017
F:T)RENTRBEERETESHE
B 59.25% (2017 5 : 59.14%) #E% 2 /8
ETETHBARZHEAEREERE -
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50.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=2018F 12 A31 HIEFE

MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in notes 27(a), 27(b) and 48, no transactions,
arrangements, or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during the
financial year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial
instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in its
investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including currency risk and interest risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the Board. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the
Group’s short to medium term cash flows by minimising its
exposure to financial markets. Long term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. The Board from
time to time identifies ways to access financial markets and
monitors the Group’s financial risk exposures.

49.

50.

BEEERS  REHESHNHZE
KR

BRPRE27(@0) ~ 27(0) R A8 PRI EE & SN - AR
RABER] AR EARREBE @M
ARBEERNETERXHEZRBREAXN
BEARVRFENEMZIEEZRS
ZHRAHL

BHREBEERAABENE

AEERANAEEHRERERPTE
RemTAmMAEGRR - BEERR
BREMSER(EEERER & ERE
) EERBREEBESER -

MHEREERAREENEEEER
BEERE -  BEMBRARZERER
EHEREEREAEERMBEH S ZEA
@ EMERASEREH AR -
RYPERREZERR/ENEXARK
FERFHEDR -

AEEBRALFEHE2ESEHT AR

KEE EFETHYEEATRTS
ZIEN R AR B AT 2 BT RR o
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial
position relate to the following categories of financial assets

and financial liabilities:

Financial assets

Available-for-sale
financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans and receivables
at amortised cost:
— Loan to immediate
holding company
— Trade receivables
— Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost:
— Loans to immediate

holding company
— Trade receivables
— Other receivables
— Cash and cash equivalents

TREE

AfHESREE

manBEA

Bk eREE
tize 3l v
B R EERR
— MERERITE
B
— RBKRE SR
— HAd YR
RekFRREEA

WA
— AEZRERRA
— W E 5 50R
— HAd YR
—HEkFRARE
JHH

50. IEMREERAAEBETE®

501 cRIEEREEZIE

BRTIENEREENERAR
R BARRRER 25 2 BRE1E
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2018 2018 2017 2017
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
FREE AREE REE AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FExT FAT FET
444 444

103,500 103,500

1,046,644 1,046,644

9,585 9,585

125,151 125,151

304,874 304,874

1,484,107 1,484,107 - -
24,197 24,197 - _
15,524 15,524 - -
170,417 170,417 - -
1,742,334 1,742,334 1,590,198 1,590,198
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

50. IEMREERAAEBETE®

(Continued)
2018
Carrying
amount
FREE
HK$'000
FExT
Financial liabilities A=A
Financial liabilities measured REHR AT EZ
at amortised cost: SREE
— Trade payables —ENESHE 54,350
— Other payables and — Hp I RE R
accruals EEER 48,753
— Amount due to immediate  — R E BT
holding company UNCIE O 33,544
— Amount due to a director —R—REEHE 532
— Amounts due to — REE R EIFIE
associates
— Bank borrowings, secured — AERRITEE
— Finance lease liabilities —REHESE
— Other employee benefits — HitEEREF 44,183

1

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate their fair value as all of them are in
short-term nature: cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and payables, other receivables and payables,
bank borrowings, loans to immediate holding company,
amount(s) due to immediate holding company/a director/
associates. Analysis of the interest rates and carrying
amounts of loan to/amount due to immediate holding
company and bank borrowings are presented in notes 27(b)
and 28 to the financial statements respectively.

86,898

5.1 TREEREBEZ2E(H)

2018 2017 2017
Fair Carrying Fair
value amount value
AREE BRMEE “afEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEBT FET
54,350 29,354 29,354
48,753 93,987 93,987
33,544 17,298 17,298
532 - -
5,492 5,492

163,344 163,344

71 71

44,183 2,064 2,064
186,898 311,610 311,610

TREELACRAGBREHNE -
HEFMERAREBEMRS Bk
FRAEELHEE BREEMNESHR
R BN R EN IR - RITE
E WERZERARENR  REE
BRAR,/ —HZE8F /HERER
B MERERRARERREER
ERARRBRRITEEZMER
BRENE 2 T 2 Bl 7 B 7 SRR MY o
27(0) 228 £71] »
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.2 Currency risk

50. BIRAREERAABETE®)

50.2 & ¥R

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to
currency exchange rates in RMB is minimal as majority of the
subsidiaries of the Group operates in Mainland China with
most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB.
The Group currently does not have a hedging policy on
currency risk but the management would consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The policies to manage currency risk have been followed by
the Group since prior years and are considered to be
effective.

50.3 Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact
of interest rate changes on interest bearing bank borrowings
carrying interests at variable rates and cash and cash
equivalents. Borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
carried at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group will review whether bank loans
bearing fixed or floating rates should be drawn from time to
time with reference to the trend of changes in interest rates.
The interest rates and repayment terms of cash and cash
equivalents and bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed
in notes 23 and 28 respectively. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
directors monitor interest rate change exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate change exposure
should the need arise.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.3 Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued) 50.3 HERENRERE (8)

50. BIEBEERAAEBETE S

Cash flow interest rate risk sensitivity

As at 31 December 2018, the Group was exposed to changes
in market interest rates through its cash and cash
equivalents (2017: cash and cash equivalents and bank
borrowings), which are subject to variable interest rates. The
following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit/(loss) for
the year and retained earnings to a change in interest rates
of +50 basis points and -50 basis points (2017: +50 basis
points and -50 basis points), with effect from the beginning
of the year. The calculations are based on the Group’s bank
balance (2017: bank borrowings and bank balance) held at
each reporting date. All other variables are held constant.

A mEFF R REE

MN2018%E12 A31H » AEERE K
FEFERFBEZESMNERRSE
BQ017F BEkERIBLER
ARRITHEE) MAEMSF =g
R - NREM TR - F
REF, (BB RREEFH IS
+50 & = 25 K7 -50 fE E 25 (2017 £ -
+50 EFL2E & -50 1B E2) F| R & &)
ZHERE o WWHIRBEAEBR S
EHEFHE ZRITEHK(Q017F
BITEERBITER)TE - F1E
HAab BB MR o

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT TAT

If interest rates were 50 basis points i F) & = F 50 {8 Z 24
(2017: 50 basis points) higher (2017 5 : 50{EE2Zh)
Increase in profit (2017: Increase in profit) 4 A1 13 0

for the year (2017 4F : )@ FIEh0) 826
If interest rates were 50 basis points i ) 2= T~ B 50 {8 Z 26

(2017: 50 basis points) lower (2017 % : 50 fEHE2h)
Decrease in profit (2017: Decrease in profit) 4 ;&% F)jE 2

for the year (2017 F @A) (826)
The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be FE 2 BRESHEEAENB AT

reasonably possible based on observation of current market MEERT Y ABAIALEE - WAS
conditions and represents management’s assessment of a BEUNENAKR+ —EABRE
reasonably possible change in interest rate over the next ATPATALE BN S o

twelve month period.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk

50. BIRAREERAABETE®)

504 &=

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables, other receivables, loans to immediate holding
company and cash deposits at banks. The carrying amounts
of trade receivables, other receivables, loans to immediate
holding company and cash and cash equivalents represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash deposits at banks since they are
substantially deposited at state-owned banks and other
medium or large-sized listed banks. Management does not
expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group has large number of customers and there was no
concentration of credit risk. The Group has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverability of these receivables at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

internal credit rating;
o external credit rating;

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
customer’s ability to meet its obligations,

o actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the debtor/customer;

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the customer, including changes in the
payment status of customer in the Group and changes
in the operating results of the customer.

BRAREERAABETE®)

504 EEREE (&)

REERSEREHRE—EREZE
NFHEREER CENBERER
RBBEERBELN - A EEER
e B EBERN  AEELREE
Rk A B 2 B QR R Y2 i
REBZENRR - HEZEASE
BRI EAMKIBE ZRTIEER - LHN

ATIEIZ

o MEMEERFA
o IMPMEERFA:

. ﬁ%AﬂEﬁE”EEEZ

BEhERRERETH 2 ¥ -

M%&ﬁ@#ﬂzﬁmXE
HIE KA FEE)

s BERA/BEFPEEXBECE
FRETAMEAES

s EFBEHRARMTR/RZEKR
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)
() Trade receivables (i

The Group measures loss allowances for trade

receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which

is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group's

historical credit loss experience does not indicate

significantly different loss patterns for different

customer segments, the loss allowance based on past

due status is not further distinguished between the

Group's different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018:

0-90 91-180  181-270
days days days
pastdue  pastdue  pastdue
B ki ks
0-90H 91-180H 181-270H

Expected credit loss rate (%) BHEEERE () 0%*

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) B A(E (T 7T)

19,097

Loss allowance (HK$'000) BEEE(TEL 52

*

rounded to nearest percentage for disclosure purpose only

Expected credit loss rates are determined with
reference to historical actual loss experience. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)

0]

Trade receivables (Continued)

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment (see note 2.10 — accounting policy applied
prior to 1 January 2018). As at 31 December 2017, trade
receivables of approximately HK$22,551,000 was
determined to be impaired. The ageing analysis of
trade debtors that were not considered to be impaired
was as follows:

50. BIRAREERAABETE®)

50.4 EERM (&)

0]

JEW B 55 7E ()

MN2018E1 A1 8A » EREF
EEBEBEBRTNRERTER
BEBE(RKE210 — ®
20181 A1 HRIEA 2 &5t
) o 20175124318 -
& U E 5 7k 18 4922,551,000
BILETARE WE AT
EREZERE SRR EK
DTN

2017

HK$'000

FHT

0-90 days past due #H30-90 H 3,474
91-180 days past due #HI91-180 H 4,025
181-270 days past due #HI181-270 H 480
271-360 days past due #H 271-360 H 554
Overdue for more than 360 days BHI360 H A L 1,052
9,585

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believed that no impairment
allowance was necessary in respect of these balances
as there had been no significant change in credit
quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable.

B 78 HA 1B 3 R E 2 FE WK
BEhE2ERNEEE R
FREREZBILEP - RIB
BELR EEER/HEA
LR FRBRIELRERE
RAREHREEERYEE
REF - BERDBEER
2 EME -
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(0 Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

50.

REMREERAABENE®

50.4 ESEREE (4
) EREZHE ()
FA- BEESFIEMS R

BEBERZEHNOT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT BT

Balance at 31 December
under HKAS 39

Impact on initial application of

HKFRS 9

REBEFB G ERIE 395
AHERI12A31 Az 4%
VIF AT BN RS R

FoOR R E

Balance at 1 January R1B 18z &8 20,727
Reversal of impairment loss F R EEERED

during the year _
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE A A -
Exchange realignment [ =58 1,824
At the end of the year FR 22,551
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Loans to immediate holding company

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's loans to
immediate holding company amounted to a total of
approximately HK$1,484,107,000 and these loans are
considered to be of low credit risk given that periodic
payments have been received with no history of
default. Furthermore, no adverse change is anticipated
in the business environment in which the immediate
holding company is engaged. Accordingly, 10ss
allowance for the loans are measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLS. No loss allowance was
recognised as the amount of ECLs for the loans has
immaterial financial impact to these financial
Statements.

Prior to 1 January 2018, impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment. At 31 December 2017, the loan to
immediate holding company was neither past due nor
impaired. Based on past experience, management
believed that no impairment allowance was necessary
due to their track record with the Group and the
balances were fully recoverable.

Other receivables

The balances are considered to have low credit risk as
the counterparties have a low risk of default and does
not have any past due amounts. Loss allowance for
these balances is measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs. No addition loss allowance was
recognised as the amount of ECLs for these balances
has immaterial financial impact to these financial
Statements.

50. BIRAREERAABETE®)

50.4 EERM (&)

(ii)

(iii)

B EEERABIEN
R2018F 12318 « AEE
MEERZEBRARERAHY
1,484,107,000/8 L 2 & &
REEAEAFEEERR -
REAAE EHWE S A
BB I FBETE
BERAGFEEEIREL
|mAFNER Al ZFE
R EBERBHIZASER12ME
BEBMEEEBRB S E
E-ARZEERZESHE
BEBEEYZEYBRE
OISR EREN - R AR
REERE -

&

>

R2018F1A1HAT - ERA
BEEEBRBATRERFER
SBEEE - B 2017 412 A 31
B mEEERAFTERI
s s R E - BIFBEL
B EEERADAELR
BEE REAEBEREY
MEREBEAELRHZE
F - BESEGIET2EIK
@o

E At KR

ZEHBERREEER
% RASHEFHENER
BAK - B 30 & AT 7] B B R
He ZER/BZBRBRER
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.5 Liquidity risk

50. IEMREERAAEBETE®

50.5 FHEE R

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
managing liquidity risk.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:

EERPESRRE AEEER
FEREEBRATENRERE
RIRESHEB K - RAREXRBIE
HESMRERSRENDTE -

AEERNAEBF EBRERDE
SHRER XRREREERDES
[z

TRAVAKESITESRABER
BEAHZHRTEOINRER - 1t
TIRBEARBREORERE (B
BATHOM R (B RFE)BHRER
B2 BVEAR RSt E 2 R B S ) A
EAKEAEREXNZKFEAH
Mg

Total On  Morethan  More than
contractual demand  1year but 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted or within less than but less
amount cash flow one year 2years than 5 years
REBEH RERE BB-F BBME
REE BRERELH F-FR  EOR@E  ELREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TiEn TR
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%12831H
Trade payables NEGE 54,350 54,350 54,350
Other payables and accruals HitENTERETER 48,753 48,753 48,753
Amount due to immediate REEERATZE
holding company 33,544 33,544 33,544
Amounts due to associates REENEIFIE 5,534 5,534 5,534
Amount due to a director R—ZEETE 532 532 532
Finance lease liabilities HERERE 2 2 2
Other employee benefits HibEERM 44,183 47,567 17,420 12,920
186,898 190,282 160,135 12,920
Financial guarantee issued BREHBER
Maximum amount guaranteed ERERERE
(note 44) (PzEad)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=2018F 12 A31 HIEFE

VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50. BIRAREERAABETE®)

50.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 50.5 RENVE SRS (8

Total On More than More than
contractual demand 1 year but 2years
Carrying  undiscounted or within less than hut less
amount cash flow one year 2years  than5years
RUBEEH HREKE BiE—F RRmE
FRE RBen2sE d—FR  BEORRE  (EIRDE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx T T THT FEx

As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12831R
Trade payables RECE ¢ 29,354 29,354 29,354 - -
Other payables and accruals HENTERETER 93,987 93987 93987 - -

Amount due to immediate REBERATFHE
holding company 17,298 17,298 17,298 - -
Amount due to an associate R—FE#BE N AZE 5492 5492 5492 - -
Bank horrowings RIEE 163,344 165,600 165,600 - -
Finance lease liabilities BEMEERE 71 76 61 15 -
Other employee benefits HipEERA 2,064 2,064 - - 2,064
311,610 313,871 311,792 15 2,064

Financial guarantee issued BREHBER
Maximum amount guaranteed RREREE
(note 44) (Pt 44) - 19,522 19,522 - -
50.6 Price risk 50.6 fEi&ER

The Group is exposed to price risk through its financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (note 22) at the end of the
reporting period. Listed equity securities held by the Group
have been chosen based on their growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.
The management also performed analysis of the nature of
market risk associated with the equity securities held for
trading, including discussion with the investment advisors if
applicable, and concluded that the price risk is more
prominent in evaluating the market risk of this kind of

investments.

RB|ERR - AREBERIEE
AAABZER S BEE(ME22)
AEERER - NEEPUEME L
MRABHZDEREEREN - I
SEMERAERRAFHRELM
5o BEENONEFIEEERA
EFREcmBRREE - BER
EABRTEREREETH®
EwmaERRARSFELEREZ
mSRERLEER -

www.sino-i.com 257



Sino-i Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 8 AR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # = 2018 12 A31 B IEFE

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.6 Price risk (Continued)

50. BIRAREERAABETE®)

50.6 EREERR (&)

Price sensitivity analysis

The policies to manage the price risk have been followed by
the Group and are considered to be effective.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to price risk at the end of the reporting
period for the Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. A 32% increase or decrease is used as it
represents management'’s assessment of the possible
change in price of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

If the prices of the listed equity securities held by the Group
had been 32% (2017: 32%) higher/lower, the Group’s profit
for the year would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$15,285,000 (2017: HK$33,120,000) as a result of the
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50. BIRAREERAABETE®)

50.7 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Group followed HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures which introduce a three-level hierarchy for fair
value measurement disclosures and additional disclosures
about the relative reliability of fair value measurements.

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.
The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three
levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs
used in measuring the fair value of these financial assets and
liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1: quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities,

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable of the asset and
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

— Level 3. inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

507 SR T A AAREEFTE

AEBETEBYBRELERS
FERMTE: BB ZENHLIR
BEMEIHEIA=ZERR X
RERREEFE AL AN
TRHLERIMIEE -

~

b

<

TREVRBAAEBERBARTT
BEFAGZEVBRARER 2R
BENAE - HRABREFENSF
TREERBBE AN EBEMER
ZEBERBAZ RGN -
TMEERBBENR=ZE - 2R
BERBORUTEE

— R1E-HRABEIRBENA
Bmi5 2 wECREH

)

— F2B - HEEMABEMER
(BNEH) sk s (Bt
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 50. IKEKREERAABETE®)
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
50.7 Fair value measurement of financial instruments 507 eI EZARBETE(®)
(Continued)
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial SHEESABERERES A YA
asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on the NEEEERNY BN HEAYEA
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value KEEFEEEATSEREBEA
measurement. BRED o
The financial assets measured at fair value in the NEAPBIRRRENIZALEBE
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into HECERMBEESABUTAR
the fair value hierarchy as follows: (BE2EHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
18 %28 %3E Aast

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FTERT TR

As at 31 December 2018 M2018%12H31H

Financial assets measured BAREBETFEZ

at fair value ERMEE
Financial assets at fair value BARBETAEM
through other comprehensive EEREZCMEE
income 324
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFFAEBLRZRE
through profit or loss ZERMEE 47,765 47,765
Total fair values NABEBRE 47,765 48,089
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E8 F283 $3B FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHT
As at 31 December 2017 A2017%12831H

Financial assets measured BRAAREENEZ

at fair value ERMEE
Financial assets at fair value WARBETAERRER

through profit or loss ZEBMEE 103,500 - - 103,500
Available-for-sale financial assets mJ{tHE S IEE - 324 - 324
Total fair values NABEERE 103,500 324 - 103,824
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

50.7 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

The fair values of the listed equity securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
determined with reference to the quoted market bid price
available to the relevant stock exchanges as at the end of
reporting period. Given that the relevant stock exchanges
are considered as active markets, the fair values of the listed
equity securities are grouped into Level 1.

The fair values of the club debenture are determined with
reference to the quoted market bid price available to the
second-hand market as at the reporting date. Given that the
second hand market is not considered as an active market,
the fair values of the club debenture are grouped into Level
2.

There have been no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 in the
reporting period. The methods and valuation techniques
used for the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged
compared to the previous reporting period.

51. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and
services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure and
make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payables to shareholders, issue new shares or raise and
repay debts. The Group’s capital management objectives, policies
or processes were unchanged during the current and previous
years.

0. IREREERAABETEE)

B

507 EMIAZAAREE

ok

BE(E)

pil

DERRANBEAABRRZS
MEEz ETRAESFZ AREE
T2 EREWRRBAR ZAA@RT
BEABEE - HREER S
TEAERTS  EMRAERZ
NREBEIAEIE -

EfEFZARBENDZ2ERER
H-FHGABRZTmSRIERE -
HRZFHHAE TR AERTS -
GEHZARBEIIAE2E -

RIREHE - F1E - F2EBHES3
BEZzRYBEAEE - ANFER
REEZTERMGEERMTEBER
SRR L EEE -

51. EXER

AEEMEANEEZTZEREARERAE
B HERER T WEBEY KR
ERTERAREEZER  SREREMH
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51.

52.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as
the sum of the bank borrowings and finance lease liabilities less
cash and bank balances. The Group aims to maintain the gearing
ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the reporting

51.

BEARAEE (@)

AEBEFERERNB B X (AMERFEERR
RSABINETFR) BEERN - BEFF
HRRTEENRERERE Z AR
RekBITEFAE - AKEZBER
HEABBLELREFRAENRF - R}

date were as follows: HSEMZEXRBBLEQAT -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Bank borrowings RITEE 163,344
Finance lease liabilities BEREAaE 71
Total debt BT 2 163,415
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERERBEER (170,417) (304,874)
Net cash and cash equivalents ReRERRLERFHE (170,415) (141,459)
Total equity R 1,531,768 1,823,388
Total equity plus net debt ERBAEMELFE 1,361,353 1,681,929
Gearing ratio EREBELE N/AF3E A N/A i A3

EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE 52. REAHREE

On 21 March 2019, the Company and its immediate holding
company entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Loan
Extension Agreement”) to extend the due date of repayment of the
outstanding principal due by the immediate holding company to
the Company in respect of the loan agreement dated 29 May 2009
for another period of two years from 30 June 2019 to 29 June 2021.
The Loan Extension Agreement is conditional upon (i) its immediate
holding company having settled in full the interest accrued on the
outstanding principal amount on or before 29 June 2019; and (i)
the independent shareholders of the Company having approved
the Loan Extension Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Loan Extension Agreement, the loan is interest
bearing at 8.00% per annum and secured by share mortgage of
Nan Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
immediate holding company. Details of the transaction have been
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2019.
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53.

54.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=20184F 12 A31 HILFE

Comparative figure 53. kEBEF

Certain comparative figures have been represented to conform EFHRHFERLES - UFEEREE
the current year's presentation. 225 e

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 54. #EMBHRE

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 FELN 201994 3 A28 B #Hb i R IE# T
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 28 March BEHZE2018F12ANBLEFE 2%
2019. K o

www.sino-i.com 263



Sino-i Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFFEUBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group ANEEBRETEMEHEE 22BN EEREBE
for the last five financial years is set out as follows:

Revenue

YA

Profit/(Loss) for the year
Less: Non-controlling interests

AERRN,(B1]R)
B FEE RS

Profit/(Loss) attributable to the AN A RIEHB AJEL
owners of the Company wm A (E518)

Total assets BEE

Total liabilities BafE
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ZREEHIMT

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
AR THAT TAET TAT TAT

1,012,450 833,245 818,098 808,287 784,763

375,812 10,022 46,663 46,052 (118,249)
(1,640) (1,363) (2,480) (1,818) (2,886)

377,452 11,385 49,143 47,870 (115,363)

ZAOLPR 2,506,702 2,579,413 2,563,714 2,556,056
(LR (683,314)  (777,311)  (799,880)  (821,572)

CRENATS 1,823,388 1,802,102 1,763,834 1,734,484
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